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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting to you the Ninety Second Annual Report together with the audited accounts
of the Company on a standalone basis and in a consolidated form for the year ended 31st March, 2025.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

A summary of the financial results for the year 2024-25 along with the previous year’s figures, both on Standalone
and Consolidated basis, are given below:-

(Rs. in million)
Standalone Consolidated
Current Year | PreviousYear | Current Year | Previous Year
ended on endedon ended on endedon
31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024

Total Revenue 2382.81 3446.65 6748.22 7580.83
Profit Before Interest, Depreciation and Tax
and exceptional items 1318.01 2471.81 1508.62 3047.07
Less: Finance Cost 0.98 4.68 5.24 9.58
Less: Depreciation and Amortisation 31.03 20.78 180.89 126.11
Profit Before Exceptional Items and Tax 1286.00 2446.35 1322.49 2911.38
Less: Exceptional Items - - - (98.42)
Profit before Tax 1286.00 2446.35 1322.49 3009.80
Less: Tax Expenses (89.76) 208.99 58.24 431.74
Add: Share of profit of jointly controlled entity - - 9.70 160.26
Profit for the Year 1375.76 2237.36 1273.95 2738.32
Add: Other Comprehensive Income 517 (6.80) (4.94) (10.71)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year
before Minority Interest 1380.93 2230.56 1269.01 2727.61
Less: Minority Interest - - 4.46 17.47
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 1380.93 2230.56 1264.55 2710.14
Add: Balance as per the last financial statements 7,410.86 6,639.56 9146.78 8181.71
Profit available for appropriation 8,791.79 8,870.12 10411.33 10891.85
Appropriations:
Debenture Redemption Reserve - - - 157.12
Special Reserve 275.15 447 47 275.15 447 47
General Reserve 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Dividend on Equity Shares 663.12 911.79 663.12 911.79
Others (on account of buyback) - - - 57.76
Impact of Ind AS / Restatement - - - 70.93
Total Appropriation 1038.27 1,459.26 1038.27 1745.07
Balance carried forward to Balance Sheet 7,753.52 7,410.86 9373.06 9146.78
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The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) with effect from 1st April 2018. As a result,
the financial statements for the financial year 2024-25 have been prepared in accordance with the principles laid down
therein with respect to the recognition and measurement of items appearing in the financial statements. These principles
have been prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant rules and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India.

STATE OF COMPANY'’S AFFAIRS
Your Directors are pleased to report the salient features of the Company’s performance during the year as under:

a) Total Revenue decreased by Rs. 1063.84 million from Rs. 3446.65 million in the previous financial year to Rs.
2382.81 million in the current financial year, as explained below:

(i) Revenue from operations was lower by Rs. 1530.95 million as compared to previous year primarily due to
lower Investment income in a fluctuating market in the 2nd half of FY 2024-25 leading to mark-to-market
decline of Rs. 478.94 million in value of the Company’s investments as at 31st March 2025 (against an
appreciation of Rs. 665.75 million as at 31st March 2024).

(ii) Other Income was higher by Rs.467.11 million in the current year compared to the previous year. The Company
had received higher interest on income tax refunds and higher gains from sale of property during
FY 2024-25.

b) Asaresult of the above, the Company registered Profit After Tax of Rs.1375.76 million compared to Rs. 2237.36
million in the previous year.

c) Rs. 275.15 million was transferred to Special Reserve as required under Section 45 IC of the RBI Act, 1934.
With this transfer, the accumulated balance in the said account as on 31st March 2025 stands at Rs. 6783.16
million.

d) Rs. 100 million was transferred to General Reserve after which the accumulated balance in the said account as
on 31st March 2025 stands at Rs.7051.15 million.

e) The Capital Risk Adequacy Ratio (CRAR) was maintained well over the statutory minimum requirement of 15%
throughout the year. As at 31st March 2025, the ratio was 95.65% (96.95% in the previous year).

f)  Net Owned Funds of your Company as on 31st March 2025 are marginally lower at Rs. 18142.39 million compared
to Rs. 19014.82 million in the previous year.

g Average pre-tax yield on investments was 10.44% in FY 2024-25 as against 12.52% in FY 2023-24.

h) The Company’s total investments as on 31st March 2025 at Rs. 18612.85 million was lower than Rs. 20202.16
million as on 31st March 2024.

With the discontinuation of deposit mobilization from April 2011, the Company is exploring various business
opportunities to augment its investment activity.

Currently, the Company is purely into investment activities without any customer interface and does not carry out
any other NBFC activity.

As a measure of expansion and diversification, the Company is now engaging in Non-NBFC activities. The Company
is having existing land banks and is in the process of monetising these through development of its land & properties.

Additional efforts in scaling up size and impact have been initiated across the Company’s activities as well as group
entities in a focused drive towards business transformation in many spheres. A separate directorate has been constituted
in this regard to channelize these initiatives towards meaningful outcome across the group.

DEVELOPMENTS RELATED TO TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND
(IEPF)

As on 31st March 2025, the outstanding liability towards deposit-holders is Rs. 4,000 (Rupees Four Thousand only),
which is shown as a liability in the books of the Company and the entire outstanding amount has been transferred
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to the IEPF Authority upon completion of 7 years from the respective date of maturity since the Company did not
receive any redemption requests from deposit holder. As on the date of this report, there exists no liability towards
deposit holders.

During a hearing before the Hon’ble High Court at Calcutta on earlier writ petitions, the IEPF Authority mentioned
that there is some claim on interest, which was earlier approved by the Reserve Bank of India as being attributable
to the Company. Accordingly, the IEPF Authority issued a letter dated 24th June 2019 directing the Company to
deposit Rs. 5049 million on the same grounds as above. The Company has contested the same before the Hon’ble
High Court at Calcutta as part of the earlier writ petitions. The Single Bench of the Calcutta High Court had delivered
a judgment on 26th June, 2023 (the said order) against which the Company has filed an appeal before a Division
Bench which has granted a stay on the operation of the said order and the appeal is subjudice pending disposal.

CORPORATE DEVELOPMENTS

Non Banking Financial Company - Investment and Credit Company (NBFC-ICC)

The Company is currently holding Certificate of Registration (CoR) as a Type 1 Non Deposit taking NBFC-ICC, vide
its CoR dated 31st March 2023. Type 1 category has been granted since the Company has not accessed public funds
nor has any customer interface and thus will fall under the “Base Layer” category under the extant Master Direction
— Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023.

As a measure of expansion and diversification, the Company proposes to engage in Non-NBFC activities. The Company
is in the process of monetising existing land banks in its possession through development of its land & properties. For
the purpose the Company intends to access external finance in the form of loan or such other credit facilities. Such
facilities, if availed will be used for the purpose of development of its land and properties and other ancillary activities
related to its investment activity. In order to avail external credit facilities for the above, the Company has made an
application to RBI for conversion of its category from a Type 1 ND NBFC ICC licence to a Type 2 ND NBFC ICC
licence, which is pending.

Matter under Section 397/398 of the Companies Act, 1956

A Company Petition was filed by two shareholders before the Hon’ble Calcutta High Court in 1991 under Sections
397 and 398 of the Companies Act, 1956 seeking certain reliefs, which was countered by the Company. Thereafter,
many appeals, applications, counter applications etc were filed in the Hon’ble Calcutta High Court and the Hon’ble
Supreme Court, post which the original petitioners were transposed by Bhagwati Developers Pvt Ltd (BDPL) as the
petitioner in the original application.

Upon an order issued by the Hon’ble Supreme Court in 2021 pursuant to a transfer petition filed by BDPL, the matter
was referred to the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (Hon’ble NCLT) to hear this matter under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA notification issued thereunder.

Upon completion of hearings in this matter, the Hon’ble NCLT had issued an order dated 18th July 2022, nullifying
the issuance and allotment of 30,000 equity shares as well as transfer of 15,626 equity shares made in 1988 (whereas
the Company's transfer records covers only 10,915 equity shares between the parties in the matter before the Hon’ble
NCLT), including the resultant corporate actions related thereto like dividend, bonus shares etc. The Order also directed
appointment of a special officer to oversee and ensure adherence to the above and other matters.

The Company preferred an appeal against the said impugned order before Hon’ble National Company Law Appellate
Tribunal (Hon’ble NCLAT) and accordingly, vide Order dated 5th August 2022, the Hon'ble NCLAT upon considering
the material facts and circumstances was pleased to stay the impugned order till further notice. Hearing in this matter
is being conducted and the matter is sub judice as on date.

COMPANY’S BUSINESS AND OUTLOOK

The Company is purely into investment activities and does not carry out any other business activity involving any
customer interface.
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In addition to augmenting its investment activities, the Company is actively exploring avenues for monetizing its real
estate properties. To this effect, the Company has embarked on a ‘one of its kind’ real estate development project
comprising residential, retail and commercial space under one roof titled “Trayam”. The new project is being launched
at Rajarhat, Kolkata.

The business environment, which was on a recovery path was impacted due to global reasons like volatile global trade
networks, the continuing Russia — Ukraine and the Israel — Palestine conflicts. The Indian economy bounced back
supported by rate cuts and despite uncertainty in trade policy, the outlook with RBI projecting a real GDP growth
of 6.5% in FY 2025-26 on the back of strong domestic demand and government capital expenditures.

Your Company’s subsidiaries are engaged in the hospitality, healthcare, financial services and real estate development
sectors, offering their customers a wide range of products and services. Profitable and efficient performance of the
subsidiaries is critical to enhancing shareholder value of your company.

Focus on strong leadership with a strategic vision, optimization of efficiencies, rationalization of costs and resources,
upskilling of human capital, adaptability to changing regulations are the key tenets for future growth and transformation
across the Company and the group as a whole. This is an imperative in the current dynamic business environment
to keep ahead of competition. Initiatives on benchmarking standard operating procedures, best practices in corporate
governance measures and entrepreneurship programmes are being conducted across the company and the group for
transformative future growth.

VARIATION IN NET WORTH

The Net Worth of the Company as at the close of the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 was Rs. 21743.66
million, as compared to Rs. 21201.78 million as at the close of the previous financial year ended 31st March, 2024,
registering a growth of Rs.541.88 million, an increase of 2.56% over the previous year.

DIVIDEND

An Interim Dividend of 100% (Rs. 100/- per equity share of Rs. 100/- each fully paid-up) declared on 6th February,
2025 was paid for the year ended 31st March, 2025.

Your Directors are pleased to recommend a final Dividend of 100% (Rs. 100/- per equity share of Rs.100/- each fully
paid up) subject to the approval of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Total Outflow on account of the Final Dividend would be Rs 331.56 million.
GROUP ACTIVITIES
Rejuvenation, transformation and growth were the key focus areas in the current year.

The audited accounts of the subsidiaries, together with their respective Directors’ Reports, are given separately in the
Balance Sheets of subsidiaries. However, a brief synopsis of their performance during the year under review as well
as an overview of future plans are given below, to keep shareholders abreast of the overall picture of the business
of the Peerless Group.

Peerless Hotels Limited (PHL)

PHL focused on re-engineering its processes and improving operational parameters in its quest to return to the path
of excellent performance.

PHL registered a total income of Rs.658.90 million compared to Rs. 610.61 million in the previous year and earned
Profit After Tax of Rs. 73.50 million compared to Rs. 117.04 million in the previous year. Revenues registered a growth
of 7% on the back of increased room revenues, F & B revenues and other income.

Peerless Financial Products Distribution Limited (PFPDL)

PFPDL registered Total Income of Rs.216.08 million compared to Rs. 188.64 million in the previous year, i.e., an
increase of 14.5%. The Company earned a Profit After Tax of Rs. 41.42 million compared to Rs. 33.59 million in
the previous year. Improvement in revenues is primarily attributable to PFPDL adapting to the new normal by increasing
customer base, cost optimization, improving productivity and efficiencies.
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The Peerless General Finance & Investment Co. Ltd. (PGFI), the Holding Company entered into a Share Purchase
Agreement on 16 April 2025 for sale of the Company's entire stake of 5,19,68,536 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each
in Peerless Financial Products Distribution Limited (PFPDL) to Darsh Advisory Put. Ltd at a total purchase consideration
of Rs. 23.17 crore. The transaction will be completed upon receipt of statutory and regulatory approvals.

Peerless Securities Limited (PSL)

During the year under review, PSL registered Total Revenue of Rs. 229.60 million and a Profit of Rs. 55.18 million
which were significantly higher than the corresponding figures of Rs. 178.68 million and Rs. 52.53 million of the previous
year. This significant improvement in top line and bottom line was primarily due to commendable performance in
the 1st half of FY 2024-25 triggered by buoyant markets as well as improvement in efficiencies and productivity
parameters, driven by technological intervention.

Peerless Hospitex Hospital and Research Center Limited (PHHRCL)

PHHRCL recorded Total Income of Rs. 3,585.06 million and Profit After Tax of Rs. 266.16 million, registering a
profit margin of 11.71%, compared to income of Rs. 3,371.74 million and profit of Rs. 395.31 million in the year
before. Work on the proposed S.K. Roy Institute of Oncology Services (SRIOS) project to provide comprehensive cancer
services is underway and is progressing satisfactorily. Focus areas of this expansion will be to offer comprehensive cancer
care and nuclear medicine, new dialysis unit and a new transplant unit for both bone marrow and organ transplant.

The Company continues to have NABH accreditation, including its laboratory services.

PHHRCL has made acquisitions in a 140 bed hospital in Barasat, West Bengal which is being custom-fitted to offer
broad specialty-based services and a select few super specialties.

In order to diversify its footprint beyond West Bengal, PHHRCL has acquired Ayursundra Hospitals (Guwahati) Private
Limited (AHPL), a well-known, strategically located, 250 bedded multidisciplinary super specialty hospital located in
Guwabhati, Assam, was acquired in 2024 as part of our expansion plan. AHPL has been acquired through a Corporate
Insolvency Resolution Process approved by the National Company Law Tribunal, Guwahati Bench vide its order dated
20th December, 2024. The acquisition was made through 100% equity participation. With this acquisition, PHHRCL
accesses a two fold advantage — (a) Guwahati is a strategic gateway to the Northeast region, which provides access
to patients from multiple bordering states and (b) the hospital features top-tier infrastructure, considered as one of
the best in Guwahati.

The consolidated financials of PHHRCL shows a total revenue of Rs. 3621.19 million and a profit after tax of
Rs. 45.88 million, the major impact being the effect of Ind AS implementation in the standalone financials of AHPL.
Consolidated financials are for the period 21st December 2024 to 31st March 2025.

Ayursundra Hospitals (Guwahati) Private Limited (AHPL)

During the year under review, AHPL registered revenues of Rs. 159.36 million and losses of Rs. 337.62 million compared
to revenues of Rs. 491.43 million and losses of Rs. 174.87 million in the previous year.

Peerless Financial Services Limited (PFSL)

PFSL has sold off its entire loan book in FY 2023-24 at a discount and invested the proceeds of the sale in various
investments.

During the year under review, Total Income was Rs. 36.48 million compared to Rs. 110.15 million in the previous
year. The Company recorded a Profit of Rs. 6.91 million compared to a Net Loss of Rs. 103.33 million, primarily
due to impact related to the above transaction. The Company is in the process of taking necessary steps for surrendering
its NBFC ICC licence in line with RBI directives.

JOINT SECTOR

Your Company holds 36.70% of the paid up equity capital of Bengal Peerless Housing Development Company Limited,
a joint venture with West Bengal Housing Board. The Company is engaged mainly in developing residential projects
in West Bengal, with the objective of providing housing for all sections of society. The Company achieved a turnover
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of Rs. 904.52 million and Profit After Tax of Rs. 26.43 million during the year under review, compared to Rs. 6,085.50
million and Profit After Tax of Rs. 436.67 million respectively in the previous financial year. This was primarily due
to the accounting treatment on completion, conveyance and handover of the respective flats to the buyers in the previous
financial year.

ANNUAL RETURN

The Annual Return in Form MGT - 7 for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025, pursuant to provisions of
section 92(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, will be available on the Company’s website www.peerless.co.in.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

The provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, pertaining to activities relating to loans given and investments
made are not applicable to the Company since the Company is an NBFC-ICC whose principal business is related
to investment activities. Your Company has not given any guarantee or provided security in connection with any
loans. However, an inter-corporate loan of Rs. 150 crore was given to a subsidiary at an interest rate as per prevalent
market rate.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All transactions with related parties have been entered into on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of
business and are in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. As a matter of abundant
caution and good governance, all such related party arrangements and transactions are reviewed by the Audit Committee
and thereafter approved by the Board of Directors. The disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required under
Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is not applicable. A statement of all Related Party
Transactions is presented by the Chief Financial Officer before the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors as
and when meetings are held, specifying the nature, value and terms and conditions of the transactions.

Details of the transactions with Related Parties under Ind AS 24 are provided in the accompanying financial statements.
COMPLIANCE WITH RESERVE BANK OF INDIA REGULATIONS

During the financial year 2024-25, no amount was disbursed to the Certificate Holders and the current outstanding
deposit liability is Rs. 4,000/-. However, the same has been transferred to the [EPF Authority in due time.

As advised by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI), the Company was maintaining an Escrow Account with the United
Bank of India (now merged with Punjab National Bank) (PNB). The Company has been disbursing maturity payments
to Certificate Holders, as and when claims were submitted to the Company. It has also been transferring amounts
to IEPF against matured deposits lying unclaimed for more than seven years from the respective dates of maturity.
The total amount transferred to IEPF between April 2019 till date is Rs.15,475.14 million.

During the year under review, no amount was due for transfer to IEPF, being the unclaimed / unpaid matured deposits
lying outstanding for seven years and more.

The Company has complied with Sections 45 1A, 45 IB and 45 IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Master
Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 and
other applicable regulations. The Company has also been submitting periodic returns and audited statements regularly.

AUDITORS’ OBSERVATIONS

Observations made in Para 2 under ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ of the Auditors in the Auditors’ Report with regard
to non-transfer of interest earned on the escrow account to the Investor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF) have
been explained in Note 52 of the Financial Statement. The Company has contested the IEPF demand before the
Hon’ble High Court, Calcutta and the matter is sub judice.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In terms of the Scale Based Regulations issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI), the Corporate Governance report
is attached. (marked Annexure ‘A’)

10
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT

A Secretarial Audit Report dated 15th May, 2025 conducted as per section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 by
Mr. Mukesh Chaturvedi, Practising Company Secretary appointed by the Board for the financial year ended 31st March,
2025 is attached to this Report (marked Annexure ‘B’). Although the Secretarial Audit is not mandatory for the
Company, the company has undertaken it voluntarily as a measure of good Corporate Governance. The Secretarial
Audit Report is unqualified.

MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company that have occurred
between 31st March, 2025 and 26th July, 2025, the date of this Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO

The Company is not engaged in any activity which requires substantial consumption of energy or technology and,
accordingly, no particulars are furnished.

There were no foreign exchange earnings during the FY 2024-25. The foreign exchange outgo during the FY 2024-
25 was Rs. 48.81million (previous year: Rs. 34.06 million).

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATES

No company became, or ceased to be a subsidiary, joint venture or associate of your Company during the financial
year 2024-25 except that Peerless Hospitex Hospital and Research Center Limited acquired Ayursundra Hospitals
(Guwahati) Pvt Ltd (AHPL) through the NCLT process vide Order dated 20th December, 2024.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act 2013 (Act), a Consolidated Financial Statement
of the Company, containing salient features of the financial statements of its subsidiaries and joint ventures in the
prescribed form no. AOC 1, has been attached to the financial statement. Financial Statements of the subsidiary
companies are kept for inspection for members at the registered office of the Company. The Company shall provide,
free of cost, a copy of the financial statements of the subsidiary companies to members on request.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Risk management encompasses the uncertainty in which a business entity operates and the process of its identification,
acceptance and mitigation is a key component to the growth of any organization. It is a structured approach used
to identify, assess, manage, and monitor risks that may affect the Company’s ability to achieve objectives. It helps
ensure that risks are properly addressed and opportunities are maximized. Your Company has identified processes which
complement other governance / compliance initiatives in an effort to achieve the above.

Risk Management traverses the entire chain of hierarchy from top to bottom and the Company strikes a judicious
and practical balance between risk & return while assessing significant risks, especially in the investment function. Proper
risk management system provides a systematic method for managing risks, supports in effective decision-making thereby
protecting the assets, reputation, and stakeholders.

A Treasury Risk Management Committee is in place, comprising members of the senior management team and the
Board. Risk management systems (especially related to the investment activity) are reviewed regularly to reflect changes
in market conditions and company activities, so that risks relating to the business of the Company are mitigated to
the extent possible.

Risk audits are being initiated across the company and its subsidiaries to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate risks,
so that decision making is aimed at achieving risk adjusted results.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Company has a defined organizational structure and authority matrix, documented standard operating procedures
(SOPs) (for various functions / activities) to ensure reliability of financial reporting and compliance with policies,

11



9"..,_.#
THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

procedures, laws and regulations. All of the above are reviewed regularly to keep these in line with prevalent requirements.

The Audit Committee annually approves the Internal Audit plan, which focusses on reviewing internal controls and
risks across functions.

The Internal Audit Plan lays emphasis on a thorough examination of compliance in respect of internal controls as
specified in the SOPs of the Company. The Audit reports for every quarter are placed at the Audit Committee comprising
summaries of significant audit observations and follow-up remedial actions.

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed reports submitted by the Internal Audit Department, which included
all significant audit observations and follow-up action taken. The Audit Committee also met the company’s Statutory
Auditors to ascertain their views on the financial statements, including the reliability of financial reporting, compliance
with accounting policies and procedures, and the adequacy of the internal controls followed by the company.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The management believes that adequate financial controls exist in relation to the company’s Financial Statements,
ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of its business commensurate with the nature and size of its business operations,
to reflect a fair and accurate reflection and timely preparation of accounting transactions, adherence to company
policies, safeguarding of assets and provide reasonable assurance to all stakeholders that the financial statements are
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

The Company has laid down necessary control systems in place for demonstrating audit trails in its transactions which
are being strengthened to make them more robust. The controls are designed effectively and tested periodically. The
Board is of the opinion that the internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively to ensure compliance
with internal control requirements and regulatory compliance. The internal audit team periodically conducts audits across
the organization, which include review of operating effectiveness of internal controls.

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
a) Declarations received from Independent Directors

Mr. Soumendra Mohan Basu (DIN: 01125409), Mr. Sumit Bose (DIN: 03340616) and Mr. Dipankar Chatterji
(DIN:00031256) Independent Directors, have submitted declarations that they meet the ‘criteria of independence’
as provided in section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

b) Retirement by rotation

In accordance with the provisions of the Act read with Article 110 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Partha Sarathi Bhattacharyya, Director (DIN: 00329479) and Mr. Supriyo Sinha, Director (DIN: 07666744)
will retire by rotation at the ensuing 92nd Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment.

c) Changes in composition of Board and Key Managerial Personnel during the FY 2024-25.

—  Mr. Deepak Kumar Mukerjee (DIN: 00046690) was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company
for a period of five (5) years effective from 12th September, 2014 to 11th September, 2019 and subsequently
for the second and last term of five consecutive years, effective from 12th September, 2019 to 11th September,
2024, in compliance with Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee at its meeting held on 7th
May, 2024, the Board of Directors, at the meeting held on 31st May, 2024, had approved re-designation
of Mr. Deepak Kumar Mukerjee as Non-Executive Non-Independent Director of the Company with effect from
12th September, 2024.

—  Mr. Asoke Kumar Mukhuty (DIN: 00173745) was reappointed as Wholetime Director, designated as Director-
Finance & Chief Financial Officer with effect from 13th December, 2021, for a period of 3 years upto 12th
December, 2024.
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Based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee at its meeting held on 7th
May, 2024, the Board of Directors, at the meeting held on 31st May, 2024, approved re-appointment of
Mr. Asoke Kumar Mukhuty as Wholetime Director, designated as Director- Corporate and Chief Financial
Officer for a period of two (2) years with effect from 13th December, 2024. Approval of the shareholders
vide special resolution for the re-appointment and remuneration payable to Mr. Asoke Kumar Mukhuty was
obtained at the 91st Annual General Meeting of the Company.

— Ms. Udita Dutta (Membership No. A39589) resumed office as the Company Secretary on 1st August, 2024
upon completion of her maternity leave. Thereupon Ms. Bhawna Gupta (Membership No. A46502), Deputy
Company Secretary who was designated as the Company Secretary with effect from 1st February, 2024 was
released from her duties as the Company Secretary.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS

During the Financial Year 2024-25, eight meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company were held on 31.05.2024,
10.06.2024, 31.07.2024, 28.10.2024, 13.11.2024, 18.12.2024, 06.02.2025 and 13.03.2025.

Details of attendance of the Directors in Board Meetings for FY 2024-25 are as under:

SI. No. Name Status No. of Meetings
Held Attended

1. Mr. Partha Sarathi Bhattacharyya Chairman 8 8
2. Mr. Jayanta Roy Managing Director 8 8
3. Mr. Deepak Kumar Mukerjee Non-Executive Director 8 8
4, Mr. Dipankar Chatterji Independent Director 8 7
5. Mr. Soumendra Mohan Basu Independent Director 8 8
6. Mr. Sumit Bose Independent Director 8 8
7. Mr. Asoke Kumar Mukhuty Director-Corporate & Chief

Financial Officer 8 8
8. Mr. Supriyo Sinha Director- Business Transformation

& Corporate Strategy 8 8
0. Dr. Sujit Karpurkayastha Non-Executive Director 8 6

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

In order to give focused attention to the business of the Company, the Board delegates different aspects of business
and governance to designated Committees of the Board set up for the purpose.

At present there are seven Committees of the Board as under:

Audit Committee

IT Strategy Committee

e  Project Finance Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Stakeholders Relationship Committee
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Treasury Risk Management Committee

The Terms of Reference and composition of these Committees are given below:

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in conformity with the requirements of Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 concerning, inter alia, appointment, remuneration of auditors, examination of financial
statements and Auditors’ Reports, approval or any subsequent modification of transactions with related parties,
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scrutiny of inter corporate loans and investments, evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management
systems. All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board.

Composition :

The Audit Committee comprises three Non-Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Dipankar Chatterji, Independent
Director as Chairman, Mr. Partha Sarathi Bhattacharyya, Chairman of the Board and Mr. Soumendra Mohan
Basu, Independent Director as members and Mr. Jayanta Roy, Managing Director, Mr. Asoke Kumar Mukhuty,
Director — Corporate & CFO, Mr. Supriyo Sinha, Director — Business Transformation & Corporate Strategy and
Mr. Arnab Kumar Basu, Executive Vice President (Operations) are permanent invitees to the meetings of the Audit
Committee. The Committee invites other Senior Executives to the meetings of the Committee as and when required.

The Company has also put in place a vigil mechanism procedure for Detection and Prevention of Fraud as an
additional internal control measure. The Vigil Mechanism Policy of the Company is available on the Company’s
website: www.peerless.co.in.

The Committee held five meetings during the year.
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, your Board has constituted a Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. The terms of reference of this Committee, in conformity with the requirements of Section
178 of the Companies Act, 2013, include identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors, senior
management appointments and recommendations for their removal, evaluation of Directors’ performance,
formulating criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and contribution. The Terms also mandate
recommending to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
other employees.

Composition:

The Committee consists of three Non-Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Soumendra Mohan Basu, Independent
Director, as Chairman, Mr. Partha Sarathi Bhattacharyya, Chairman of the Board and Mr. Sumit Bose,
Independent Director, as members. Mr. Jayanta Roy, Managing Director, is a permanent invitee to the meetings
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy :

The Company has put in place a Nomination & Remuneration Policy, formulated by the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board, for appointment of directors and key managerial personnel
and for fixing their remuneration, including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director, and other matters as specified u/s 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Nomination
& Remuneration Policy of the Company is available on the Company’s website: www.peerless.co.in.

The key features of the policy are given below:
Objectives

e Setting criteria and attributes of persons to become Directors (Executive and Non-Executive) and for
appointments to Senior Management and Key Managerial positions.

¢ Determining remuneration which is reasonable and sufficient, based on the Company’s size, financial position,
trends and practices on remuneration prevailing in peer companies and in the industry as a whole.

e Evaluation of the performance of Directors.

* To provide rewards linked directly to their efforts, performance, dedication and achievement relating to the
Company’s operations.

* To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial persons,
commensurate with the requirements of the Company.
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The

Applicability

The Policy is applicable to:

e Directors (both Executive and Non-Executive)
* Key Managerial Personnel

* Senior Management Personnel

“Senior Management” for the purpose of this Policy means personnel of the Company who are members of its
core management team (excluding Board of Directors) comprising all members of management one level below
the Executive Directors, and including the functional heads.

Committee held three meetings during the year.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, your Board has constituted a Stakeholders
Relationship Committee to resolve investor grievances.

Composition:

The Committee has one Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. Deepak Kumar Mukerjee (Non-Executive Director)
as Chairman, and two Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Jayanta Roy, Managing Director, and Mr. Asoke Kumar
Mukhuty, Director — Corporate &CFO, as members.

The Committee held one meeting during the year.

4. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, your Board has constituted a Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee to formulate Corporate Social Responsibility Policy and to recommend to the Board
the amount of expenditure to be incurred for the purpose.

Composition:

The Committee consists of two Non-Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Deepak Kumar Mukerjee (Non-Executive
Director) as Chairman, Mr. Soumendra Mohan Basu, Independent Director and two Executive Directors, namely
Mr. Jayanta Roy, Managing Director and Mr. Asoke Kumar Mukhuty, Director-Corporate & CFO, as members.

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy and Expenditure

A Corporate Social Responsibility Policy has been developed and implemented by the Company. The Policy is
also reviewed by the Committee when required, subject to the approval of the Board.

Your Company’s mission for social participation through CSR activities is not restricted to the mandatory obligation
of 2% of Average Net Profits of the 3 preceding financial years. Your Company aspires to scale up its CSR activities
phase wise as the Centennial year 2032 approaches.

The CSR activities as per the Policy formulated are in conformity with those specified in Schedule VII to the
Companies Act, 2013.

During the financial year 2024-25, out of our CSR expenditure target of Rs. 2,86,11,303/- being 2% of the
average net profits of the preceding three financial years, the Company sanctioned and spent a sum of
Rs. 4,68,55,111/- (that is, Rs. 1,79,46,808/- in excess) and disbursed the entire amount for CSR activities.

Administrative Overheads for CSR activities have been absorbed by the Company and are not included in the
total amount spent on CSR activities during the FY 2024-25.

The Annual Report on CSR activities undertaken by the Company during the financial year 2024-25 is attached
to this Report (marked Annexure ‘C’).
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The Committee held two meetings during the year.
5. IT STRATEGY COMMITTEE

In compliance with the directions of the Reserve Bank of India, the Board has constituted an ‘IT STRATEGY
COMMITTEE’ consisting of Mr. Soumendra Mohan Basu, Independent Director, as Chairman, Mr. Dipankar
Chatterji, Independent Director, Mr. Supriyo Sinha, Director — Business Transformation & Corporate Strategy,
and one Senior Executive of the Company, Mr. Arnab Kumar Basu, Executive Vice President (Operations), as
Member and Mr. Sandip Kumar Ghosh, Deputy General Manager — Systems as a Permanent Invitee of the
Committee. The Committee’s roles and responsibilities are well defined in the terms of reference of the Committee.

The Committee held three meetings during the year.
6. TREASURY RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Your Board has constituted this Committee by merging the erstwhile Investment Committee & Risk Management
Committee of the Company.

Composition:

The Committee has one Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. Partha Sarathi Bhattacharyya as Chairman, and
three Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Jayanta Roy, Managing Director, Mr. Supriyo Sinha, Director — Business
Transformation & Corporate Strategy and Mr. Asoke Kumar Mukhuty, Director — Corporate & CFO, as members
and Mr. Arnab Kumar Basu, Executive Vice President (Operations) and the Company Secretary as the Permanent
Invitee of the Committee.

The Committee held seven meetings during the year.
7. PROJECT FINANCE COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Project Finance Committee includes Project Evaluation, Strategic Alignment, Risk
Management, Capital Structure Planning, Resource Allocation, Budget Approval, Performance Monitoring,
Compliance Oversight, Stakeholder Communication & Post-Implementation Review of the Company.

Composition:

The Committee has two Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Dipankar Chatterji, Independent Director as
Chairman, Mr. Partha Sarathi Bhattacharyya, and one Executive Director, namely, Mr. Asoke Kumar Mukhuty,
Director — Corporate & CFO, as members. Mr. Arnab Kumar Basu, Executive Vice President (Operations), Mr.
S Swaminathan, Deputy CFO, Mr. Abhishek Tantia, Head-Treasury, Mr. Sourav Bandopadhyay, Head — Real
Estate and Mr. Debashish Sen are the Permanent Invitees of the Committee.

No meeting of the Committee was held during the year.
STATUTORY AUDITORS

In accordance with the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 4 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 framed thereunder and Guidelines dated 27th April, 2021 issued by the Reserve
Bank of India, the Regulatory Authority of the Company, M/s Lodha & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration No 301051E/E300284), were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for first term of three (3)
consecutive years at the 91st Annual General Meeting held on 31st July, 2024 to hold office from the conclusion
of the 91st Annual General Meeting up to the conclusion of the ensuing 94th Annual General Meeting i.e. from FY
2024-25 to FY 2026-27.

STATEMENT INDICATING THE MANNER IN WHICH FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION HAS BEEN
MADE BY THE BOARD OF ITS OWN PERFORMANCE, ITS DIRECTORS, AND THAT OF ITS
COMMITTEES

Evaluation of the individual Director including the Independent Directors and the Chairman of the Board are conducted.
Moreover, evaluation is made by the Board of its own performance as well as of the statutory Committees. The Board
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has adopted a questionnaire as approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in compliance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for evaluation purposes. The evaluation process is completed through an online
portal developed by the Company. The individual Directors participate in the evaluation process and give their feedback
to enable a considered view to be taken.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
The applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. Secretarial Standards 1 and 2 were complied with.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Particulars of employees pursuant to Rule 5(2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014, are set out in the statement attached to this Report. (marked Annexure ‘D’).

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has put in place a Sexual Harassment Policy in compliance with the Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. An Internal Committee has also been set up to redress
complaints. All employees are covered under this Policy.

The following details in connection with the year under review are disclosed:

* No. of complaints filed during the year- NIL

* No. of complaints disposed off during the year- Not applicable

* No. of complaints pending as on end of the financial year- Not applicable
MATERNITY BENEFIT

The Company complies with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, as amended. All eligible female
employees are provided with maternity leave and benefits as per the statutory norms. Additionally, the Company strives
to promote a conducive work environment through flexible work arrangements and support systems for new mothers
returning to work.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

The Company was previously purely into investment activities without any customer interface and also did not carry
out any other NBFC activity.

As a measure of expansion and diversification, the Company is now engaging in Non-NBFC activities. The Company
is having existing land banks and is in the process of monetising it through development of its land and properties.
In the process, the Company intends to access external finance in the form of loan or such other credit facilities.
Such facilities, if availed will be used for the purpose of development of its land and properties and such other activities
ancilliary to its investment activity. Necessary application has been made to the Reserve Bank of India for transition
from Base Layer to the Middle layer.

However, the Company will continue its investment activities.
DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act 2013, your Directors confirm that:

a) inthe preparation of the Annual Accounts for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper explanations relating to material departures;

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies as are reasonable and prudent and applied them consistently
to make judgments and estimates so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as
at 31st March, 2025 and of the profit of the Company for that year;

c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
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accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) the Directors had devised proper systems for compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and ensured
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

The Company had transferred a sum of Rs. 29,24,100/- during the year to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund towards unclaimed Final Dividend 2016-17, which remained unclaimed/unpaid in the respective Unpaid Dividend
Accounts for seven years.

Other Disclosures

The Managing Director and the Whole time Directors of the Company are eligible to receive commission as part of
their remuneration from your Company and the subsidiary companies where they are appointed as Non-Executive
Directors and were receiving sitting fees for attendance at meetings of the Boards and their Committees. However,
with effect from 1st April, 2023, the Executive Directors of your Company do not receive remuneration by way of
sitting fees from your Company and the subsidiary companies where they are appointed as Non-Executive Directors.

Your Directors further state the following in respect of the year under review:
1. The Company does not have any deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013.
2. The Company did not issue equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

3. The Company did not issue any shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any
scheme.

4. No significant or material order was passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going concern
status of the Company’s operations in future.

5. No case of fraud has been reported by the Auditors under Sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

6. Maintenance of cost records as per Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.
Acknowledgment
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Place : Kolkata
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For and on behalf of the Board

“Peerless Bhavan” Partha Sarathi Bhattacharyya
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Kolkata-700 069 (DIN: 00329479)
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Annexure - A

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A) The corporate governance report is being annexed as a part of the Annual Report of the Company in compliance
with the Scale Based Regulations issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

1) Composition of the Board

since Number of No. of Remuneration No. of
Capacity (i.e. DIN Board . shares
SI. Name Executive/ Meetings other held in
No. of Director Non Director sal 1 and
. - . alary an P . .
Director Executive/ Held |Attended | ships other Sitting Fee | Commission ?onverhble
Chairman/ compen- mstnmems
Promoter sation held in
nominee/ the NBFC
Independent)
1. | Mr. Partha Sarathi | 25.10.2021 Chairman | 00329479 8 8 14 92,04,000 9,70,000 | 30,00,000 N.A.
Bhattacharyya
2. | Mr. Jayanta 14.07.2006| Managing | 00022191 8 8 6 2,55,30,423 Nil 5,00,00,000 N.A.
Roy Director
3. | Mr. Deepak Kumar| 12.09.2005| Non-Executive | 00046690 8 8 3 NA 9,40,000| 23,00,000 N.A.
Mukerjee Director*
4. | Mr. Soumendra 13.08.2018| Independent | 01125409 8 8 5 NA 11,30,000{ 23,00,000 N.A.
Mohan Basu Director
5. | Mr. Dipankar 11.02.2017| Independent | 00031256 8 7 7 NA 8,95,000 | 23,00,000 N.A.
Chatterji Director
6. | Mr. Sumit 21.10.2022| Independent | 03340616 8 8 11 NA 5,65,000 | 23,00,000 N.A.
Bose Director
7. | Mr. Asoke Kumar | 13.12.2018 Director- 00173745 8 8 5 1,28,11,313 Nil 70,00,000 N.A.
Mukhuty Corporate
& CFO**
8. | Mr. Supriyo 01.06.2022 Director- 07666744 8 8 5 3,10,21,056 Nil 1,40,00,000 N.A.
Sinha Business
Transformation
& Corporate
Strategy
9. | Dr. Sujit 10.02.2023 | Non-Executive| 03161994 8 6 1 NA 4,50,000| 15,00,000 N.A.
Karpurkayastha Director
*  With effect from 12.09.2024
** With effect from 13.12.2024
Details of change in composition of the Board during the current and previous financial year.
S1. No. Name of Director Capacity (i.e., Executive/ Nature of change Effective date
Non-Executive/Chairman/ (resignation,
Promoter/nominee/Independent) appointment)
1. Mr. Deepak Kumar Non-Executive, Non- Change in 12.09.2024
Mukerjee Independent Director Designation*
2. Mr. Asoke Kumar Director-Corporate & Chief Change in 13.12.2024
Mukhuty Financial Officer Designation®*
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Re-designated from Independent Director to Non-Executive Non-Independent Director of the Company with effect
from 12th September, 2024.

Re-designated from Director- Finance & Chief Financial Officer to Director- Corporate and Chief Financial Officer
with effect from 13th December, 2024.

2) Committees of the Board and their composition
1. Audit Committee
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee
4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
5. [T Strategy Committee
6. Treasury Risk Management Committee
7. Project Finance Committee
1. AUDIT COMMITTEE
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in conformity with the requirements of Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 concerning, inter alia, appointment, remuneration of auditors, examination of financial
statements and Auditors’ Report, approval or any subsequent modification of transactions with related parties,
scrutiny of inter corporate loans and investments, evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management
systems, Review of Business Strategy of the Company, review of Annual and Medium Term Business of PGFI,
Strategic review of the goals, business plans, reviewing with the management, performance of Statutory and Internal
Auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems, reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the Internal
Auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a
material nature and reporting the matter to the Board, discussion with Statutory Auditors before the audit
commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain the areas of concern,
if any, approval of appointment of CFO after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of
the candidate and performance of PGFI's Subsidiaries at appropriate intervals and others.
The relevant details of the Committee are as follows:
SIL. Name of Director Member of Capacity Number of Meetings No. of
No. Committee (i.e., Executive/ of the Committee shares held
since Non-Executive / Chairman/ in the
Promoter / nominee/ Held | Attended NBFC
Independent)
1 Mr. Deepak Kumar Mukerjee 18.08.2006 Chairman* 5 2 N.A.
2 Mr. Dipankar Chatterji 13.02.2024 Chairman™* 5 5 N.A.
3. | Mr. Partha Sarathi Bhattacharyya | 21.10.2022| Non-Executive Director 5 5 N.A.
4. | Mr. Soumendra Mohan Basu 11.05.2021| Independent Director 5 5 N.A.

* Ceased to be the Chairman & Member with effect from end of business hours on 11.09.2024.
** Chairman of the Committee from 12.09.2024.
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2.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, your Board has constituted a Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. The terms of reference of this Committee, in conformity with the requirements of Section
178 of the Companies Act, 2013, include identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors, recommend
to the Board appointment and removal of a Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel (SMP). senior
management appointments and recommendations for their removal, evaluation of Directors’ performance, review
the performance assessment process of the Executive Directors and any other SMP, as may be thought fit, consider
the commission to be paid to the Executive & Non-Executive Directors of the Company, consider the requirement
for revision of the structure of sitting fees paid to the Directors, consider the continuation of the terms for appointment
of Independent Directors and also continuation as a Non-Executive Director after expiry of term as Independent
Director, consider reconstitution of the Board Committees of the Company, formulating criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and contribution, consider the revision of the terms of Agreement of any Executive
Director including the Managing Director. The Terms also mandate recommending to the Board a policy relating
to the remuneration for Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

The relevant details of the Committee are as follows:

SI.
No.

Name of Director

Member of
Committee
since

Capacity
(i.e., Executive/
Non-Executive / Chairman /

Number of Meetings
of the Committee

No. of
shares held
in the

Promoter / nominee/ Held Attended NBFC

Independent)

Mr. Deepak Kumar Mukerjee 24.06.2014 Chairman* N.A.

Mr. Soumendra Mohan Basu 11.05.2021 Chairman®*

Mr. Partha Sarathi Bhattacharyya | 21.10.2022| Non-Executive Director N.A.

1
2
3.
4

3 2
3 3 N.A.
3 3
3 1

Mr. Sumit Bose 12.09.2024 | Independent Director®** N.A.

sk

Ceased to be the Chairman & Member with effect from end of business hours on 11.09.2024.

**  Chairman of the Committee with effect from 12.09.2024.

sk

Inducted as a Member of the Committee with effect from 12.09.2024.

3. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
The terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee includes redressal of shareholders’ and investors’
grievances/complaints, redressal of the grievances of Deposit holders, resolve the complaints related to transfer/
transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate
certificates, general meetings etc. & review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing
the quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices
by the shareholders of the Company.
The relevant details of the Committee are as follows:
S1. Name of Director Member of . Capacity. Number of Meetings No. of
No. Committee (i.e., E)fecutlve./ of the Committee shares held
since Non-Executive/Chairman/ in the
Promoter/nominee/ Held | Attended | NBFC
Independent)
1. | Mr. Deepak Kumar Mukerjee 24.06.2014 Chairman 1 1 N.A.
2. | Mr. Jayanta Roy 21.10.2022 Managing Director 1 1 N.A.
3. | Mr. Asoke Kumar Mukhuty 12.09.2024 | Director — Corporate 1 1 N.A.
& CFO*

* Re-designated as Director- Corporate and Chief Financial Officer from 13th December, 2024.
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4. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE
In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was
constituted to formulate Corporate Social Responsibility Policy and to approve the amount of expenditure to be
incurred for the purpose, monitor administrative overheads in pursuance of CSR activities or projects or programs,
review and recommend CSR projects or programmes to the Board. The CSR Committee monitors the CSR Policy
of the Company from time to time and shall institute a transparent monitoring mechanism of the CSR projects
or programmes or activities undertaken by the Company.
The relevant details of the Committee are as follows:
SIL. Name of Director Member of Capacity Number of Meetings No. of
No. Committee (i.e., Executive / of the Committee shares held
since Non-Executive / Chairman/ in the
Promoter / nominee / Held Attended NBFC
Independent)
1. | Mr. Deepak Kumar Mukerjee 24.03.2014 Chairman 3 3 N.A.
2. | Mr. Jayanta Roy 21.10.2022 Managing Director 3 3 N.A.
3. | Mr. Asoke Kumar Mukhuty 21.10.2022 Director — Corporate
& CFO* 3 3 N.A.
4 | Mr. Soumendra Mohan Basu** 12.09.2024 Independent Director 3 2 N.A.

&

Re-designated as Director- Corporate and Chief Financial Officer from 13th December, 2024.

** Inducted as Member of the Committee with effect from 12th September, 2024.

5

. IT STRATEGY COMMITTEE

In compliance with the directions of the Reserve Bank of India, the IT Strategy Committee was constituted. The
‘Roles and Responsibilities’ of the IT Strategqy Committee are to review and approve Group IT Strategy document,
Group IT Policy documents, risk assessment and mitigation document of the overall IT Infrastructure for PGFI and
Group companies, ensuring that IT investments represent a balance of risks and benefits and that budgets are
acceptable basis reports and review the method to determine the IT resources needed to achieve strategic goals,
approve the IT audit plan and take note of major issues emanating from IT audits and the resolution plan, study
and advise on the exception-based audit observation and measures to address the Exceptional Gaps identified from
the IT Framework Gap Assessment exercise and Information System audit, review the risks related to Cyber Security
/ Information Security and ensure appropriate procedures are placed to mitigate these risks in lines with regulatory
requirements, Corporate Strategies, Board policies and any other matter related to IT Governance and to review
the Business Continuity Plan (BCP) / Disaster Recovery (DR) Plan of the group entities and recommend measures
for its improvement.

The relevant details of the Committee are as follows:

Sl Name of Director Member of Capacity Number of Meetings No. of

No. Committee (i.e., Executive / of the Committee shares held
since Non-Executive / Chairman / in the

Promoter nominee / Held Attended NBFC
Independent)

1. | Mr. Soumendra Mohan Basu 16.09.2022 Chairman 2 2 N.A.

2. | Mr. Dipankar Chatterji 06.03.2018| Independent Director 2 2 N.A.

3. | Mr. Supriyo Sinha 16.09.2022 Director — Business 2 2 N.A.
Transformation &
Corporate Strategy
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In addition to the above, Mr. Arnab Kumar Basu, Executive Vice President (Operations) who is a Senior Executive
of the Company, is also a member of the Committee since 01.04.2024 and has attended all the meetings of the said
Committee held during the year.

6. TREASURY RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Committee was constituted by merging the erstwhile Investment Committee & Risk Management Committee
of the Company. The Committee’s role is to oversee all treasury risk management functions and policies and to
proactively guide the Company in treasury operations within an acceptable risk-return framework in compliance with
the PGFI Investment Policy guidelines as approved by the Board.

The relevant details of the Committee are as follows:

Capacit :
SI. N f Direct Member of . pacity Number of Meetings No. of
No. ame of Tector Committee (i.e., erc“t“’?/ of the Committee | shares held
since Non-Executive/ Chairman / in the
Promoter / nominee / Held | Attended | NBFC
Independent)
1. | Mr. Partha Sarathi Bhattacharyya | 21.10.2022 Chairman 7 7 N.A.
2. | Mr. Jayanta Roy 21.10.2022 Managing Director 7 7 N.A.
3. | Mr. Asoke Kumar Mukhuty 01.04.2023 | Direcor — Corporate
& CFO* 7 7 N.A.
4. | Mr. Supriyo Sinha 21.10.2022 Director — Business
Transformation &
Corporate Strategy 7 7 N.A.

* Re-designated as Director- Corporate and Chief Financial Officer from 13th December, 2024.

7. PROJECT FINANCE COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Project Finance Committee includes Project Evaluation, Strategic Alignment, Risk
Management, Capital Structure Planning, Resource Allocation, Budget Approval, Performance Monitoring,
Compliance Oversight, Stakeholder Communication & Post-Implementation Review of the Company.

The relevant details of the Committee are as follows:

S1. : Member of Capacity Number of Meetings No. of
No. Name of Director Committee (i.e., Executive / of the Committee shares held
since Non-Executive/Chairman / in the
Promoter nominee / Held Attended NBFC
Independent)
1. | Mr. Dipankar Chatterji 12.09.2024 Chairman 0 0 N.A.
2. | Mr. Partha Sarathi Bhattacharyya | 12.09.2024 | Non-Executive Director 0 0 N.A.
3. | Mr. Asoke Kumar Mukhuty 12.09.2024 | Director — Corporate 0 0 N.A.
& CFO*

* Re-designated as Director- Corporate and Chief Financial Officer from 13th December, 2024.
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3)

General Body Meetings

During the year under review, a General Body meeting was convened, the particulars of which are detailed below:

SL

Type of Meeting
(Annual / Extra - Ordinary)

Date and
Place

Special resolutions
passed

Annual General Meeting

31.07.2024
Kolkata

1. To re-appoint Mr. Asoke Kumar Mukhuty

(DIN: 00173745) as Wholetime Director designated as
Director — Corporate & Chief Financial Officer.

2. To consider and approve re-designation of Mr. Deepak
Kumar Mukerjee (DIN: 00046690) from Independent
Director to Non-Executive Non-Independent Director.

3. Alteration of the Company’s Articles of Association.

B)

C)

Details of non-compliance with requirements of Companies Act, 2013

The Company has made no default in compliance with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013, including with
respect to compliance with Indian Accounting and Secretarial Standards.

Details of penalties and strictures

No penalties or stricture were imposed on the Company by the Reserve Bank or any other statutory authority.

Breach of Covenant

There are no instances of breach of covenant of loan or debt securities, since the Company has not availed any

loan or issued any debt securities.

Divergence in Asset Classification and Provisioning

The disclosure regarding divergence in Asset classification and provisioning is not applicable.

Place : Kolkata
Dated : 26th July, 2025

Registered Office :

“Peerless Bhavan”
3, Esplanade East
Kolkata-700 069

For and on behalf of the Board

Partha Sarathi Bhattacharyya
Chairman

(DIN: 00329479)

24



9"..,_!
THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Annexure - B
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

M/s. The Peerless General Finance & Investment Company Limited
Peerless Bhavan,

3, Esplanade East,

Kolkata — 700 069

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by M/s The Peerless General Finance & Investment Company Limited (hereinafter called
the company) during the financial Year ended 31st March 2025. The Secretarial Audit was conducted on test check
basis, in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31.03.2025 generally complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent,
in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

[ further report that Compliance with applicable laws is the responsibility of the Company and my report constitutes
an independent opinion. My report is neither an assurance for future viability of the company nor a confirmation of
efficient management by the Company.

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
M/s The Peerless General Finance & Investment Company Limited (“the Company”) having CIN
U64990WB1932PLC007490 for the financial year ended on 31.03.2025 according to the provisions of the following
Laws especially applicable to the Company:

() The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there-under;
(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there-under;
(ii) The Reserve Bank of India Laws relating to Non-Banking Financial Companies/ Residuary Non Banking Company

(iv) The Other laws, as informed and certified by the management of the Company which are specifically applicable
to the Company based on their sector/industry are:

a) West Bengal Shop and Establishment Act,1963
b) The Employees Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act,1952

[ have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute
of Company Secretaries of India.
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On the basis of Audit as referred above, to the best of my knowledge, understanding and belief, | am of the view
that during the period under review, the Company has, save and except the observations of the Statutory Auditors
of the Company in their report for the period under review and save and except as mentioned below, complied with
the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above:

(i) The Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority vide their letter dated 24.06.2019 has demanded Interest
on the amount lying in Escrow Account as per instructions of RBI from the date of keeping the amount till the
date of its transfer to IEPF.

The Company had filed petition against the aforesaid demand of IEPF in the Hon’ble High Court at Calcutta.

The Hon’ble High Court at Calcutta (Single Bench) by its Order dated 10th July, 2019 was pleased to stay the
operations of the said demand of IEPF regarding interest on the unclaimed amount transferred to IEPF. Of late,
the Company has lost its case before Single Bench of the Hon’ble High Court at Calcutta and filed appeal before
the Division Bench of the Hon’ble High Court at Calcutta. After hearing on 31.01.2024 the Hon’ble Division
Bench was pleased to stay the operation of the Judgement and Order dated 26.06.2023 passed by the Hon’ble
Single bench of Hon’ble High Court till further order. The matter is pending.

I further report that

(@) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that
took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

(b) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

(c) Majority decision is carried through and recorded as part of the Minutes of the Meeting of the Board of Directors.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure - | and forms an integral part
of the report.

Name of Company Secretary in practice:

Mukesh Chaturvedi

FCS No.11063

CP. No.: 3390

Place :Kolkata Peer-Review Certificate No.:939/2020
Date :15.05.2025 UDIN -F011063G000350875
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To,

‘Annexure I’

(To the Secretarial Audit Report of M/s The Peerless General Finance & Investment Company

Limited for the Financial Year ended 31.03.2025)

The Members,

M/s. The Peerless General Finance & Investment Company Limited
Peerless Bhavan,

3, Esplanade East,

Kolkata — 700 069

My Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended 31/03/2025 of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is
to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

I have followed the audit practices and processes as were, to the best of my understanding, appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done
on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices,
[ followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

I have not verified the correctness, appropriateness or adequacy of financial records, Book of Accounts and
decisions taken in board and in committees of the Company, during the period under review. However, | have
verified as to whether or not the board process and approvals in various committees have been compiled with
or not, during the period under review.

Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards in the
responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis to assess
the compliance of secretarial duties and board process.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Name of Company Secretary in practice:

Mukesh Chaturvedi
FCS No.11063
CP. No.: 3390

Place :Kolkata Peer-Review Certificate No.:939/2020
Date :15.05.2025 UDIN - F011063G000350875
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ANNEXURE - C

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company :

The essence of Peerless’ Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy is based on compassion for the underprivileged
sections of our community at large. It is designed to help them improve their skills and capabilities in a sustainable
way so that they are able to enjoy a better quality of life. The directives contained in this Policy in regard to
CSR initiatives are in line with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, and are in conformity with the guiding
principles on selection, implementation and monitoring of initiatives undertaken strategically aiming to aligning
more SDGs, as outlined in the Act.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl. | Name of Director Designation / Nature of No. of meetings No. of meetings
No. Directorship of CSR of CSR
Committee held Committee
during the year attended during
the year
01.| Deepak Kumar Mukerjee Chairman of the Committee
/ Non-Executive Director 3 3
02.| Jayanta Roy Member / Managing Director 3 3
03.| Asoke Kumar Mukhuty Member / Director-Corporate
& CFO 3 3
04.| Soumendra Mohan Basu Member/Independent Director 3 1

3. Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved by the
board are disclosed on the website of the company._www.peerless.co.in

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance
of sub-rule (3) of the rule 8, if applicable. Not Applicable

5.
a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135. Rs. 143,05,65,153.00
b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5)
of section 135. Rs. 2,86,11,303.00
c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects for programmes or activities of
the previous financial years. NIL
d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any. NIL
e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [ (b) + (c) — (d) ]. Rs.2,86,11,303.00
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a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than

Ongoing Projects). Rs. 4,65,58,111.00
b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads NIL
c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable NIL

d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [ (a) + (b) + (c) 1.

Rs. 4,65,58,111.00

e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year :

Total Amount
Spent for the
Financial Year
(in Rs.)

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) — Not Applicable

Total Amount transferred to Unspent
CSR Account as per sub-section (6)
of section 135.

135.

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule
VII as per second proviso to sub-section (5) of section

Amount (in Rs.)

Date of Transfer

Name of the Fund

Amount (Rs.)

Date of Transfer

Rs. 4,65,58,111.00

f) Excess amount for set-off, if any

SI. Particular Amount (in Rs.)
No.
(1) (2) (3)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5)

of section 135 2,86,11,303.00
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 4,65,58,111.00
(iif) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year| (ii) — (i) ] 1,79,46,808.00
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the

previous Financial Years, if any NIL
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii) — (iv)] 1,79,46,808.00

7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years :

1 2 3 4 5 7 8
Sl. | Preceding | Amount transferred to Balance Amount spent in | Amount transferred in a Fund as Amount Deficiency, if
No. Financial Unspent CSR Amount in the Financial specified under Schedule VII as | remaining to be any
Year(s) Account under sub- Unspent CSR Year per second proviso to sub-section spent in
section (6) of the Account under (in Rs.) (5) of section 135, if any succeeding
section 135 (in Rs.) sub-section (6) Financial Years
of section 135 (in Rs.)
(in Rs) Amount Date of
(in Rs.) Transfer
01. | 2021-22 NIL NIL 1,71,74,000/- NIL NA NIL NA
02. | 2022-23 NIL NIL 1,77,70,000/- NIL NA NIL NA
03. | 2023-24 NIL NIL 2,83,05,818/- NIL NA NIL NA
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8.  Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial
Year :

O Yes @® No
If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created / acquired

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the
Financial Year :

Sl Short particulars of the property Pincode of the Date of Amount of CSR Details of entity / Authority / beneficiary of
No. or asset(s) property or creation amount spent the registered owner
asset(s)

[including complete address and
location of the property]

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)
CSR Name Registered
Registration address
Number, if
applicable

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal Office / Municipal
Corporation / Gram Panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the immovable property as well as boundaries)

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per sub-section
(5) of section 135.

Not Applicable
Sd/- Sd/-
Jayanta Roy Deepak Kumar Mukerjee
Managing Director Chairman of CSR Committee
(DIN: 00022191) (DIN: 00046690)
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ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Annexure - D

Information as per Sub-Rule (2) of Rule 5 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and forming part of the Directors' Report for the Financial year ended

31st March, 2025

Name Age Designation Gross Qualifications | Experience Date of Last
(Years) Remuneration (Years) Commencement Employment/
(Rs.) of Employment Post Held
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
A. Top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn
1. Roy Jayanta 48 Managing Director 75530423 M.Com, MBA 28 01.10.2021 Peerless Financial
Products Distribution
Limited, Managing
Director & CEO
2. Sinha Supriyo 48 Director- Business 45021056 Graduate from 23 01.06.2022 Head-Strategy, Axis
Transformation & Havard Business Bank Ltd.
Corporate School, MBA (IIM,
Strategy Calcutta) and, B.
Tech. (IIT
Kharagpur).
. M/s. Roy & Sen
3. Mukhuty Asoke Kumar 76 Director - Corporate 19811313 B.Sc. FCA. 46 24.03.1980
e . ’ (Chartered
& Chief Financial
Off Accountants), Sr.
icer Audit Assistant
. ) CA 27 Invenio Business
4. Basu Arnab 50 Execut.lve Vice 10078768 02.01.2023 Solutions Private
President - . .
Operati Limited, SVP-Finance
perations & Admin
5. Abhishek Tantia a4 Vice President & 8000000 | B.Com (Hons), CA, 18 12.04.2024 Peerless Financial
Head Treasury MBA - Finance Services Ltd.- CEO
6. De Subhasis 5 Vice President - 7608600 B.Com, ACA 28 16.06.2017 Pricewaterhouse
Group Taxation Coopers Put. Ltd.,
Associate Director
7. Sourav Bandyopadhyay 48 Vice President & 7370000 BE (Civil), M.Sc 24 01.05.2025 Bengal Peerless
Head - Real Estate (Engg.), MBA, Fellow Housing Development
Institute of Engineers Company Limited,
(India), Chartered Deputy - CEO
Engineer (IEI)
. Sr. Vice President & .
8. Santanam Swaminathan 55 Deputy CEO 7315840 B.Com, ACMA, 31 21.05.2018 Essel Finance AMC
eputy ACS, MBA Limited (formerly
(Finance) Peerless Funds
Management Co.
Ltd.), Chief Financial
Officer
9. Sarkar Manas Kumar 56 Senior General 6976920 B.E (Civil) 4 01.09.2022 Bengal Peerless
Manager -Head Housing Development
Projects Company Limited,
GM-Projects
10. Ghosh Debasis 68 Vice President- 6752160 B.Com, FCMA % 03.04.2017 | Deloitte Haskins and
Indirect Tax & Group Sells LLP,
Risk Officer Director
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B. Employed throughout the financial year and in receipt of remuneration aggregating Rs. 1,02,00,000/- or
more per annum.

Name Age Designation Gross Qualifications | Experience Date of Last
(Years) Remuneration (Years) |Commencement Employment/
(Rs.) of Employment Post Held
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
1. Roy Jayanta 48 | Managing Director 75530423 M.Com, MBA 28 01.10.2021 Peerless Financial
Products Distribution
Limited, Managing
Director & CEO
2. Sinha Supriyo 48 Director- Business 45021056 Graduate from 23 01.06.2022 | Head-Strategy, Axis
Transformation & Havard Business Bank Litd.
Corporate School, MBA (IIM,
Strategy Calcutta) and, B.
Tech. (IIT
Kharagpur).
3. Mukhuty Asoke Kumar 76  |Director - Corporate 19811313 B.Sc, FCA. 46 24.03.1980 M/sclgoy & Sen
& Chief Financial A (Chartere
Officer ccogntan?s), Sr.
Audit Assistant

C. Employed for a part of the financial year and in respect of remuneration aggregating Rs.8,50,000/- or more per month.

Name Age Designation Gross Qualifications | Experience Date of Last
(Years) Remuneration (Years) |Commencement Employment/
(Rs.) of Employment Post Held
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Note : 1.  Gross remuneration comprises salary and allowances, Company's contribution to provident, superannuation and
gratuity funds, monetary value of perquisites. With respect to the Directors, such remuneration also includes
commission.

All appointments are contractual and subject to the rules and regulations of the Company for the time being in force.

3. None of the above employees is a relative of any Director of the Company.

Place : Kolkata
Dated : 26th July, 2025

Registered Office :

For and on behalf of the Board

“PEERLESS BHAVAN” ParthaSarathi Bhattacharyya
3, Esplanade East (DIN : 00329479)
Kolkata-700 069 Chairman
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements
QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the Standalone Financial Statements of THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE AND
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), which comprises the Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit & Loss (including the Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the Standalone Financial
Statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred
to as “the Standalone Financial Statement”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for effects
of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid Standalone Financial
Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant rules issued thereunder
from time to time(hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards notified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time, (hereinafter referred to as “the Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit including
other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

Refer note no. 52 of the Standalone Financial Statements which states that following the Directions received from Reserve
Bank of India (hereinafter referred to as “the RBI”), the Company has been transferring the unclaimed deposits to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) since the financial year 2018-19 as and when these became due, in
terms of the provisions of the Act. The additional demand for the interest earned by the Company on these unclaimed
deposits over the years has been contested by the Company before the Division Bench of Hon’ble High Court of Calcutta.
The matter being sub-judice pending the decision of the High Court, reliance has been placed by us on the legal advice
obtained by the Company with respect to the said matter and other matters connected therewith, and the impact in
this respect on the Profit for the year and Other Equity and compliance/ impact with/ on legal and other requirements
cannot be ascertained and accordingly the comments on the adjustments/ compliances cannot be made by us.

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(hereinafter referred to as “the SAs”) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the “Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (hereinafter referred to as “the ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have considered the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the “Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements” section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance
of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial
Statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide

the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements.

SI. No.

Key Audit Matters

Auditors’ Response

1.

Impairment of Investment in Subsidiaries

As at March 31, 2025, the Company held
investment with a carrying amount of
Rs. 1,031.64 million in two subsidiaries and
has recognized an impairment of Rs. 566.69
million. These investments are carried at cost
lessimpairment in the Company’ s Standal one
Financial Statements. Consequent to
accumulation of losses incurred by these
subsidiaries, the Company’s management
had tested these investments for impairment
in accordance with Ind AS 36 by comparing
its recoverable amount with it carrying
amount asat March 31, 2025. Therecoverable
amount of the investment in the subsidiary
companies is assessed based on future
discounted cash flows of the subsidiary
companies.

Duringthecurrent year, impairment allowance
on one of the subsidiaries amounting to Rs.
121.91 million has been reversed based on
improvement in the operations.

We considered thisasakey audit matter dueto
significant judgement involved in estimating
future cash flows of the subsidiary and in
determining the discount rate to be used.
Changesininputsand assumptionscouldimpact
the results of the impairment assessment.

Our audit procedures based on which we arrived at

the conclusion regarding reasonableness of the

impairment being carried on investment in
subsidiaries:

e Obtained an understanding from the
management, assessed and tested the design
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
key controls over the impairment assessment.

e Evauated the Company’s process regarding
impairment assessment, as applicable.

e« Evauated the cash flow forecasts (with
underlying economic growth rate) for broad
consistency placing the reliance on the figures
submitted by the management to us and our
understanding of the internal and external
factors including the long-term strategic
interests in the underlying business prospects.

e Assessed the adequacy and appropriateness
of the disclosures in the Standalone Financial
Statements.

Based on the above procedures performed, we did
not identify any significant exceptions in the
management’ s assessment inrelation to the carrying
value of unquoted instruments.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’

REPORT THEREON

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements, Consolidated

Financial Statements and our Auditors’ Reports thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available, and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report with respect to the above.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation and presentation of these Standalone Financial Statements in terms of the requirements of the Act
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income),
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India
including the Indian Accounting Standards notified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the ability of the
Company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Company.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls;

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial
Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;
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* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements made by management;

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the Standalone
Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

OTHER MATTER

The audit of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 was conducted and reported
by the predecessor auditor as per the Act and had expressed modified opinion vide their audit report dated June 10,
2024. Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements is not modified in respect of this matter.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a Statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Further to our comments in the annexure referred to in the paragraph above, as required by Section 143(3) of the
Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) Proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books, except for the matters stated in 3(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014;

c¢) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;
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In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
notified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended from time to time;

The matter described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, may not have an
adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed
as a Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated
in the paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 3(vi) below on reporting
under rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial
Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B” to this report. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of internal financial control with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) from time to time, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

Pending litigations having material impact on the financial position of the Company have been disclosed in
the Standalone Financial Statements as required in terms of Ind AS and provisions of the Act- refer note 51
of the Standalone Financial Statements.

The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

Except to the extent mentioned in Basis of Qualified Opinion relating to sub-judice and disputed matter of transfer
of amounts demanded by the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) as mentioned in note 52 of the
Standalone Financial Statements, there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred,
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief as disclosed in note no.
56.9. to the Standalone Financial Statements, no funds (which are material either individually or in aggregate)
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief as disclosed in note no.
56.9 to the Standalone Financial Statements, no funds (which are material either individually or in aggregate)
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
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c. Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time,
as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The final dividend paid by the Company during the year, in respect of the same declared for the previous
year and the interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year is in accordance with Section
123 of the Act to Act to the extent it applies to payment of dividend.

Further, as stated in note no. 27 to the Standalone Financial Statements, the Board of Directors of the Company
has proposed a final dividend for the year during the Board Meeting which is subject to the approval of the
members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend proposed is in accordance with the provisions
of section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks and in accordance with the requirements of the
Implementation Guide on Reporting on Audit Trail under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, we report that the Company has used an accounting software “Tally” for maintaining its books
of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility at the transaction level. Based on
our examination nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the audit trail feature has
not been operated throughout the year or being tampered with in respect to the accounting software. The
Company is using SAP for the Human Resource related activities for the financial year ended March 31, 2025
which has the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software system. Furthermore, the Company maintains
the records for property, plant and equipment and investments manually and hence audit trail feature is not
applicable to those records.

However, such trail at database level being not available as such cannot be commented upon by us.

Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature (where
available) being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.

4. With respect to the reporting under section 197(16) of the Act to be included in the Auditors’ Report, in our opinion
and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration (including sitting fees and
commission) paid by the Company to its Directors during the current financial year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act and is not in excess of the limit laid down therein.

For Lodha & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 301051E / E300284

Indranil Chaudhuri

Partner
Place: Kolkata Membership No. 058940
Date: June 26, 2025 UDIN: 25058940BMMIRA1951
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
to the members The Peerless General Finance and Investment Company Limited of even date)

i.  In respect of the Company’s property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

a.

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situations of its property, plant and equipment;

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of property, plant and equipment which,
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets. Property,
plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the prevailing periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its property, plant and
equipment.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the title deeds of all immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is
lessee and lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in Notes 14 to 16 on
Investment Property, Property, Plant and Equipment and Right of Use Assets respectively, to Standalone
Financial Statements, are held in the name of the Company except for the following:

Description | Gross Carrying | Held in the Whether Period held - Reason for
of Property | Value (Amount name of Promoter, indicate range, not being
Rs. in Millions) director or where held in
their relative appropriate name of
or employee Company
Leasehold 26.46 The Lease Not 33 years The Lease
Property has expired Applicable has not been
on October renewed as
13, 2024 on the balance
sheet date

The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) and
intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company;

Accordingto the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management, no proceedings
have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at the March 31, 2025, for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder, as amended from time to time. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(i)(e) of the order is
not applicable to the Company.

ii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the books of account
of the Company:

a.

The inventories of the Company have been physically verified by the management during the year at reasonable
intervals and in our opinion coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate
havingregard to the size of the Company and nature of its inventory. No discrepancies were noticed on verification
between physical stocks and the book records.
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iii.

Vi.

Vii.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits by any banks or financial
institutions at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has made investments in subsidiaries and also in other instruments as permitted
by Reserve Bank of India (hereinafter referred to as “the RBI”). The Company has granted a loan to one of
its subsidiary companies and invested in its debentures. Other than this, the Company has not provided any
guarantee or security or granted advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.

a. The Company is a NBFC whose principal business includes granting loans and accordingly reporting under
clauses (iii)(a) and (iii)(e) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures conducted
by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions of the loans given and investments made by
the Company during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

c. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and interest has been stipulated and the receipts
of principal and interests are regular wherever due.

d. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of loans granted.

e. Based onour verification of records of the Company and information and explanation given to us, the Company
has not granted any loans or advance in nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying
any terms of repayment and therefore clause (iii)(f) of the Paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given loan
to any director in accordance with the provisions of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company
has not given any loans or guarantees. The Company is a non-banking financial company, due to which its
investments are exempted under Section 186(11)(b). The Company has not made investments through more than
two layers of investment companies in accordance with the provisions of Section 186(1) of the Act. Accordingly,
the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act, as applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the books and records
of the Company, during the year, the Company has neither accepted any deposits or amount deemed to be
deposits from public covered under Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed
thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Government has not specified
maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 with regard to the activities of
the Company. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the books of account:

a. Duringtheyear, the Company has generally been regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including goods and service tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues, as
applicable to it. There are no undisputed amounts in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, cess and any other material statutory dues, in arrears
as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b. Reference is invited to note 52 of the Standalone Financial Statements (relating to a sub-judice and disputed
matter of non-transfer of amount demanded by IEPF), the details other than the aforesaid note of statutory
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Viii.

Xi.

dues referred to in clause (vii)(a) above, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as
follows:

Name of the Nature of Dues Amount Period to which Forum where
Statute (Rs. in the amount dispute is
Millions) relates pending

Income Tax Act, Income Tax 1.77 A. Y. 2017-18 CIT (Appeals)
1961

Income Tax Act, Income Tax 6.11 A. Y. 2022-23 CIT (Appeals)
1961

Employees’ State Employees’ State 24473 Various Years Employees State
Insurance Insurance Insurance Court

In our opinion and on the basis of information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management,
we have neither come across nor have been informed of transactions which were previously not recorded in the
books of account and that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 and accordingly reporting under paragraph 3 (viii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and on the basis of information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the books of account of the Company:

a.

The Company did not have any borrowings from any lender outstanding as at the beginning of the year
nor it availed any borrowings during the year and accordingly reporting under paragraph 3(ix)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company;

The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lenders;

During the year, no term loan has been availed by the Company and accordingly, reporting under paragraph
3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable;

During the year Company has not availed any funds on short term basis and accordingly reporting under
paragraph 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable;

The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligation
of its Subsidiary or Joint Venture. The Company does not have any associate companies; and

The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause (ix)(f) of paragraph
3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the books of account
of the Company:

a.

b.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year and hence, reporting under paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable;

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures
(fully, partially, or optionally) during the year and accordingly, the reporting under paragraph 3(x)(b) of the
Order is not applicable.

a. During the course of our examination of books and records of the Company carried out in accordance with

generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanation given to
us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by the Company or on the Company noticed or reported
during the year, nor have been informed of any such cases by the management.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the books
of accounts, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act, has been filed in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended from time to time)
with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report. Accordingly, reporting under
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Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

clause xi(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

c. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the books of
account of the company, no whistle blower complaints have been received during the year by the company.
Accordingly reporting under paragraph xi (c) of the order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company
and accordingly the Nidhi Rules, 2014 is not applicable to it. Hence, the reporting under paragraph 3(xii) of
the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with provisions of sections 177 and 188 of
the Actwhere applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

a. The Company has appointed external firms for conducting the internal audit of the Company. In our opinion
and according to the information and explanations given to us the company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b. Wehave considered the internal audit reports, issued to the Company during the year and till date, in determining
the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures in accordance with the guidance provided in SA 610
“Using the Work of Internal Auditors”.

According to the information and explanations given to us and as represented to us by the management and
based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with them. Hence, reporting under paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the books and records
of the Company:

a. The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and
necessary registration has been obtained by the Company;

b. Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not conducted any non-banking financial activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from
the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. The Company has not conducted
any housing finance activities during the year;

c. The Company is not a Core Investment Company (hereinafter referred to as “CIC”) as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Directions), 2016, as amended from time to time, issued by the Reserve Bank of
India and hence, reporting under paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable; and

d. Based on the representation received from the management, there is no core investment company within
the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly,
reporting under paragraph 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

ii. Based on the examination of the books of accounts we report that the Company has not incurred cash losses

in the current financial year covered by our audit and in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of statutory auditors during the year and hence, reporting under paragraph 3(xviii)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations provided to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
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future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the books and records
of the Company there are no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on either ongoing
projects or other than ongoing projects as stated in section 135 of the Act and accordingly, reporting under paragraph
3(xx) (a) & (b) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

xxi. The reporting under clause (xxi) of Paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone
Financial Statements.

For Lodha & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 301051E / E300284

Indranil Chaudhuri

Partner
Place: Kolkata Membership No. 058940
Date: June 26, 2025 UDIN: 25058940BMMIRA1951
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT on the Standalone

Financial Statement of The Peerless General Finance and Investment Company Limited

(Referred to in point (f) of paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements under Clause
(I) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements of The Peerless
General Finance and Investment Company Limited (“the Company”) as at March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our
audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO
THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal Financial Controls
based on the Internal Financial Control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of Internal Control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (hereinafter referred to as “the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (hereinafter referred to as “the ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal Financial Controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by
ICAI and the Standards on Auditing as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internal Financial
Controls with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls
with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of Internal Financial
Controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of Internal Financial
Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testingand evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s Internal Financial Controls system with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

A company's Internal Financial Control with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the Standalone
Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures
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that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect
on the Standalone Financial Statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Because of the inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the Internal Financial Controls with
reference to the Standalone Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the Internal Financial
Control with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in
all material respects, an adequate Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements
and such Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements were operating effectively
as at March 31, 2025, based on the Internal Financial Control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

For Lodha & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 301051E / E300284

Indranil Chaudhuri

Partner

Place: Kolkata Membership No. 058940
Date: June 26, 2025 UDIN: 25058940BMMIRA1951
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THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET ASATMARCH 31,2025

(All amounts in ¥Million, unless otherwise stated)

Asat As at
Particulars Notes March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
(1) Financial Assets
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 227.14 114.52
(b) Bank Balances other than (a) above 6 259.02 309.25
(c) Receivables 7
Other Receivables 25.48 108.62
(d) Loans 8 1,503.05 6.44
(e) Investments 9 18,612.85 20,202.16
(f) Other Financial Assets 10 24.97 43.01
Sub Total 20,652.51 20,784.00
(2) Non-Financial assets
(a) Inventories 11 890.09 481.92
(b) Current Tax Assets (Net) 12 1,373.07 1,373.07
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 13 175.93 -
(d) Investment Property 14 106.74 196.65
(e) Property, Plant and Equipment 15 187.87 114.52
(f) Right of Use Asset 16 10.96 23.88
(g) Other Intangible Assets 17 9.91 5.67
(h) Other Non-Financial Assets 18 391.77 338.17
(i) Assets Held for Sale 19 83.07 0.16
Sub Total _8.229.41 _2,534.04
TOTAL ASSETS 23,881.92 23,318.04
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(1) Financial Liabilities
(a) Payables 20
(I) Trade Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 8.82 0.84
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises 47.02 27.12
(II) Other Payables
(i) Total Outstanding Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 0.21
(ii) Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises
and Small Enterprises 97.30 128.72
(b) Deposits 21 0.00 0.00
(c) Other Financial Liabilities 22 79.45 72.57
Sub Total _232.80 _229.25
(2) Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 23 1646.02 1,800.51
(b) Provisions 24 55.22 25.28
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 13 - 31.90
(d) Other Non-Financial Liabilities 25 28.29 29.32
Sub Total 1,729.53 1,887.01
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,962.33 2,116.26
(3) Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 26 331.56 331.56
(b) Other Equity 27 21,588.03 120,870.22
TOTALEQUITY 21,919.59 21,201.78
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 23,881.92 23,318.04
Summary of material accounting policies 1-4
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements. (Note 1 to 62)
As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Lodha & Co. LLP The Peerless General Finance & Investment Company Limited
Chartered Accountants Jayanta Roy Dipankar Chatterji
ICAIFirmRegistrationNo.301051E/E300284 Managing Director Independent Director
) ) DIN: 00022191 DIN: 00031256
Indranil Chaudhuri
Partner Asoke Kumar Mukhuty Udita Dutta
Membership No. 058940 Director-Corporate & Company Secretary
Place: Kolkata Chief Financial Officer Membership No. A39589
Date: June 26,2025 DIN:00173745
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THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFITAND LOSS

FORTHEYEARENDEDMARCH31,2025 (All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars Notes March31,2025 March 31, 2024
(I) Revenue from operations
(i) Interest Income 28 729.90 788.96
(ii) Dividend Income 29 184.14 199.79
(iii) Rental Income 30 98.98 107.64
(iv) Net Gain on Fair Value Changes 31 642.90 2,088.35
(v) Revenue from Sale of Constructed Properties 32 - 2.13
Total Revenue from Operations 1,655.92 3,186.87
(II) Other income 33 726.89 259.78
(IIl) Total income (I+1I) 2,382.81 3,446.65
(IV) Expenses
(i) Finance Costs 34 0.98 4.68
(ii) Net loss on de-recognition of financial instruments 35 - 269.02
under amortised cost category
(iii) Impairment of Financial Instruments 36 (111.76) (202.30)
(iv) Cost of Construction And Development 37 408.17 20.17
(v) Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, 38 (408.17) (18.36)
and Construction Work-in-Progress
(vi) Employee Benefit Expenses 39 347.88 311.34
(vii) Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment Expenses 40 31.03 20.78
(viii) Other Expenses 41 828.68 59497
Total Expenses 1,096.81 1,000.30
(V) Profit Before Tax (III - IV) _1,286.00 _2,446.35
(VI) Tax Expenses
Current Tax 42 327.00 250.00
Tax Expense of Earlier Years 42 (207.19) (155.52)
Deferred Tax 42 (209.57) 114.51
Total Tax Expenses _ (89.76) _208.99
(VII) Profit After Tax (V - VI) 1,375.76 2,237.36
(VIII) Other Comprehensive Income
(A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 42
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans 6.91 (9.09)
Income Tax relating to above items (1.74) 2.29
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year, Net of Tax 5.17 (6.80)
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (VII+VIII) m ﬂ

Earnings per equity share of par value of ¥ 100
(March 31, 2024 % 100) each (in %)

Basic (%) 47 414.94 674.80
Diluted (%) 414.94 674.80
Summary of material accounting policies 1-4

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements. (Note 1 to 62)

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

For Lodha & Co. LLP The Peerless General Finance & Investment Company Limited

Chartered Accountants Jayanta Roy Dipankar Chatterji

ICAIFirmRegistrationNo.301051E/E300284 Managing Director Independent Director
DIN: 00022191 DIN: 00031256

Indranil Chaudhuri

Partner Asoke Kumar Mukhuty Udita Dutta

Membership No. 058940 Director-Corporate & Company Secretary

Place: Kolkata Chief Financial Officer Membership No. A39589

Date: June 26,2025 DIN:00173745
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THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March31,2025 March 31, 2024
A. Cash flows from operating activities
Profit Before Tax 1,286.00 2,446.35
Adjustments to Reconcile Profit Before Tax to Net Cash Generated
By Operating Activities
Depreciation and Amortisation 31.03 20.78
Profit on Sale of Assets Held for Sale (430.51) (63.41)
Interest income (729.90) (934.57)
Dividend income (184.14) (199.79)
Net (Gain) on Fair Value Changes (642.90) (2,088.35)
Net loss on de-recognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category - 269.02
Finance Costs 0.98 4.68
Impairment of Financial Instruments (111.76) (202.30)
Provision No Longer Required Written Back (13.00) (21.64)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes, Dividend and Interest (794.20) (769.23)
Movements in working capital:
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (408.17) (18.36)
(Increase)/Decrease in Loan & Other Receivables (1,423.61) (65.73)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial & Non-Financial Assets 27.05 212.62
(Decrease)/Increase in Provisions & Other Payables 30.10 64.71
(Decrease)/Increase in Deposits - (0.01)
(Decrease)/Increase in Other Financial & Non-Financial Liabilities 42.18 (98.97)
Cash From Operating Activities before Dividend and Interest (2,526.65) (674.97)
Interest Received 684.02 907.24
Dividend Received 184.14 199.79
Cash from Operating Activities (1,658.49) 432.06
Income Taxes (Net) (274.30) (96.56)
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (1,932.79) 335.50
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (Including Capital Work-in-Progress) (175.51) (15.04)
Proceeds from Assets Held for Sale 471.23 74.11
Proceeds from Sale of Other Investments 26,440.53 41,861.66
Purchase of Other Investments (24,002.65) (41,091.33)
Proceeds from/ (Investment in) Deposits and Escrow Accounts (22.48) (248.16)
Interest Received - 28.17
Net Cash Generated from Investing Activities 2,711.12 609.41
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finance Costs (0.98) (4.68)
Equity Dividend Paid (including interim dividend) (663.12) (911.79)
Repayment of Lease Liability (1.60) (10.01)
Net Cash (used in) Financing Activities (665.70) (926.48)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 112.62 18.43
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Year 114.52 96.09
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 227.14 114.52
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THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
(Continued)

F (All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)
ootnotes:

i) COMPONENT OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March31,2025 March 31, 2024
Cash on Hand 0.11 0.40
Balance With Banks
In Current Accounts 20.15 41.99
In Auto Sweep Deposits 36.74 72.11
In Fixed Deposit with original maturity of less than three months 170.14 -
Stamps in Hand - 0.02
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents [Refer Note 5] 227.14 114.52

ii) The above standalone Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in IND AS 7 "Statement of
Cash Flows".

iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents do not include any amount which is not available to the Company for its future use.

iv) Changes in Company's liabilities arising from financing activities:

As at As at
Particulars 31stMarch2024 Cash Flows Non Cash Flows 31stMarch2025
Lease Liabilities 47.24 (1.60) (35.60) 10.04
Total 47.24 (1.60) (35.60) 10.04

As at As at
Particulars 31stMarch2023 Cash Flows Non Cash Flows 31stMarch2024
Lease Liabilities 41.95 (10.01) 15.30 47.24
Total 41.95 (10.01) 15.30 47.24

v) The Company has paid ¥ 46.56 (Previous Year ¥ 28.31) in cash on account of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure
during the year ended 31st March, 2025.

Summary of material accounting policies 1-4
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements. (Note 1 to 62)

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

For Lodha & Co. LLP The Peerless General Finance & Investment Company Limited

Chartered Accountants Jayanta Roy Dipankar Chatterji

ICAIFirmRegistrationNo.301051E/E300284 Managing Director Independent Director
DIN: 00022191 DIN: 00031256

Indranil Chaudhuri

Partner Asoke Kumar Mukhuty Udita Dutta

Membership No. 058940 Director-Corporate & Company Secretary

Place: Kolkata Chief Financial Officer Membership No. A39589

Date: June 26,2025 DIN:00173745
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THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements (Continued)

Note 1: Corporate Information

The Peerless General Finance & Investment Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Company’), the flagship
company of the Peerless Group, is a company limited by shares, incorporated on October 25, 1932. The Company
is domiciled in India and has its registered office at “Peerless Bhawan” 3, Esplanade East, Kolkata-700069, West Bengal,
India. The Company is mainly engaged in investing in diversified portfolio across equity, debt, government securities
both directly or through portfolio and wealth management schemes. The Company is registered with Reserve Bank of
India as Non-Banking Financial Company — Investment and Credit Company (NBFC-ICC) vide Registration no.
B.05.07111 dated March 31, 2023. The Company has applied to the Reserve Bank of India for conversion of its category
from Type 1 - ND - NBFC - ICC License to Type 2 - ND - NBFC - ICC License on May 15, 2025, which is pending
under consideration.

Note 2. Basis of Preparation

2.1.

2.2,

23.

Statement of Compliance

These standalone financial statements comprising of balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, Statement of Profit
and Loss, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended have been prepared
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Act’) read with relevant rules of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) (together hereinafter referred to as the “Ind AS”) along with other
relevant provisions of the Act, the Master Direction — Reserve bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company
— Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 as amended from time to time and other applicable RBI circulars/
notifications and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on going concern assumption. The Management is
of the view that the Company shall be able to continue its business for the near future and no material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the going concern assumption. In making this assessment, the
Management has considered a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, including future
projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

The accounting policies have been consistently applied, except in cases where a newly issued Ind AS is initially
adopted or when a revision to an existing Ind AS requires a change in the accounting policy previously in use.

The Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 were approved by the Company’s
Board of Directors and authorized for issue on June 26, 2025 for consideration and adoption by the shareholders
in its Annual General Meeting.

Presentation of Standalone Financial Statements

The Company prepares and presents its Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and
Loss and the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity as per the format prescribed by Division Il of Schedule
Ill to the Act. The Standalone Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements
of Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows'.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the functional currency of the
Company, in denomination of million with rounding off to two decimals as permitted by Schedule III to the
Act except where otherwise indicated.

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis, except for the
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:
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THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements (Continued)

24.

2.5.

* certain financial assets and liabilities, including derivative instruments if any, that are measured at fair value;
* assets held for sale measured at fair value or carrying value whichever is lower;

* defined benefit plan assets measured based on the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management of the
Company to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities
and disclosures relating to the contingent liabilities as at the date of the standalone financial statements and
the reported amount of income and expenses for the reporting period. The application of accounting policies
that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions
in the standalone financial statements have been disclosed as applicable in the respective notes to accounts.

Accounting estimates can change from period to period. Future results could differ from these estimates.
Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of changes in circumstances
surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the standalone financial statements in the period
in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the standalone financial
statements.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer liability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair
value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would
use the asset in its highest and best use.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. Fair values are categorized under different levels (Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3) in a fair value hierarchy
based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes
a finance team headed by Chief Financial Officer, that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant
fair value measurements, who regularly review significant unobservable inputs, valuation adjustments and fair
value hierarchy under which the valuation should be classified.
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Notes to the Ind AS financial statements (Continued)

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy
as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value so as to maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the
use of unobservable inputs.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the change occurred.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

Note 3. Summary of Material Accounting Policies Information

3.1.

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital Work-in-Progress, Intangible Assets, Investment Property,
Right of Use Assets and Depreciation

3.1.1. Property, Plant and Equipment and Capital Work-in-progress

a. Freehold land is stated at cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing
part of the property plant and equipment. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.
All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. The
present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost
of the respective asset.

b. Capital work in progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any.

c. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at the end of each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

d. Gains or Loss arising from derecognition of a property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized..

3.1.2. Investment Property

a. Investment Property is a property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both
and are measured initially at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, an investment property is measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

b. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of investment property are reviewed at the end
of each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

c. Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed off or when they are permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from such disposal. The difference between
the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of asset is recognized in statement of profit and loss in the
period of derecognition.
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Notes to the Ind AS financial statements (Continued)

3.1.3. Other Intangible Assets

a.

Other Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates
less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing
costs and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.
Expenses on software support and maintenance are charged to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
during the year in which such costs are incurred.

The amortization period and the amortization method for other intangible assets with a finite useful life are
reviewed at each reporting date.

Gains or Loss arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Standalone Statement
of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

3.1.4.Right of Use Assets (ROU Assets)

a.

The Company recognizes right-of-use asset at the commencement date of the respective lease. Upon initial
recognition, cost comprises of the initial lease liability, initial direct costs incurred when entering into the leases,
an estimate of the cost of dismantle and removal of the underlying assets. Prepaid lease payments (including
the difference between nominal amount of the deposit and the fair value) are also included in the initial
carrying amount of the ROU Asset. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment loss, if any.

The ROU assets are presented as a separate line in the balance sheet. The residual values, useful lives and
methods of depreciation of ROU Asset are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of ROU Assets.
The related payments are recognized as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers
those payments occurs and are included in the line Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.1.5. Depreciation

a.

Depreciation is computed using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives as specified in Schedule II to
the Act as follows:

* Furniture & Fixtures and Office Appliances (excluding Computers) — SLM Basis
¢ All Other property, plant and equipment — WDV Basis.

On investment properties with a definite life (Buildings) depreciation is provided which is computed using
the rates arrived at based on the useful lives as specified in Schedule 1I of the Companies Act, 2013 for
the purpose of Building on WDV basis.

Intangible Assets have been amortised on straight line basis over a period of 3 years.

Leasehold premises are amortized/ depreciated over the period of the lease. Leasehold improvements are
amortized/ depreciated over the period of the lease or useful life of respective assets whichever is less.

3.2. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date where there is any indication that a non-financial asset may
be impaired due to events or changes in circumstances. If any such indicators exists, the Company estimates
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3.3.

3.4.

the recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets or cash generating units’
(CGU) fair value less cost of disposal, and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and risks specific to assets.

In determining fair value, less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are validated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.
The Company bases its impairment calculations on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated.

If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists,
the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the revised recoverable amount, subject to
maximum of the depreciated historical cost.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency
using spot rates on the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into the relevant functional currency at exchange rates at the reporting date. Exchange differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

The date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to be used on initial recognition
of the related asset or liability, expense or income, is when the Company has received or paid advance consideration
in foreign currency.

Revenue Recognition

In accordance with Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” revenue is recognized upon transfer
of control of promised products or services to customers for a the consideration that the Company expects to
receive in exchange for those products or services.

The Company has applied the guidance as per Ind AS 115, ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’, by applying
revenue recognition criteria for each distinct performance obligations. For allocating the transaction price, the
Company has measured the revenue in respect of each performance obligation of a contract at its relative selling
price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately is the best evidence of its selling price.
The transaction price of goods sold is net of variable consideration on account of discounts, Goods and Service
Tax (GST) and such other taxes collected on behalf of third party, not being economic benefits flowing to the
Company.

The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its Statement of Profit and Loss.
Performance obligation

Revenue from sale of flats is recognised when the customer obtains control of the same. Revenue from fixed
price contracts, where the performance obligations are satisfied at a point in time and where there is no uncertainty
as to measurement or collectability of consideration, is recognized when the customer obtains the control.
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3.5.

3.5.1.

Contract balances

Revenue in excess of billing is classified as contract asset i.e. unbilled revenue while billing in excess of revenue
is classified as contract liability i.e. deferred revenue. Contract assets in the nature of unbilled receivables are
identified as financial assets when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required,
as per contractual terms. Unbilled revenues are classified as non-financial asset if the contractual right to
consideration is dependent on completion of contractual milestones.

Interest income

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate method for all financial instruments measured at
amortised cost and financial instrument measured at FVOCI. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises interest
income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected
life of the financial instrument.

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk, the
adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the balance
sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income. The adjustment is subsequently amortised through Interest
income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividend income

Dividends are recognized in statement of profit and loss only when the right to receive payment is established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount
of dividend can be measured reliably.

Revenue from Real Estate Projects

Revenue is recognised at a Point in Time with respect to sale of real estate units, including land, plots, apartments,
commercial units, as and when the control passes on to the customer which coincides with handing over of
the possession to the customer.

Rental and Maintenance Income

Revenue in respect of rental and maintenance services is recognised over a period of time on accrual basis in
accordance with the terms of the respective contract as and when the company satisfies the performance obligation
by delivering the promised goods and services as per the contractual agreed terms.

Income Tax

The tax expenses for the period comprises of current tax and deferred income tax. Tax is recognized in the
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in the other
comprehensive income or equity, in which case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or
equity.

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.
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Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities, and the Company intends either to settle on net basis or to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.5.2. Deferred Tax

3.6.

3.7.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax items in corelation to the underlying transaction relating to Other Comprehensive Income and Equity
are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income and Equity respectively.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Assets Held for Sale

The Company classifies Assets as Held for Sale if their carrying amounts shall be recovered principally through
a sale rather than through continuing use. Sale transactions shall include exchanges of non-current assets for
other non-current assets when the exchange has commercial substance.

Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair value less costs
to sell. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately in the balance sheet.

Property, plant and equipment once classified as held for sale are not depreciated. All other assets in the financial
statements are at amounts for continuing operations, unless otherwise mentioned.

Financial Instruments - Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity. The Company recognizes a financial asset or a liability in its balance sheet
only when the entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial Assets
a. Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets measured at amortized cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss as appropriate. All financial assets
are recognized initially at fair value and in all such cases, other than, in the case of financial assets recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
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are added thereto. Investments in Subsidiaries and Associate are carried at cost as per Ind AS 27 - Separate
Financial Statements. Trade or Other Receivables that do not contain a significant financing component (as
defined in Ind AS 115) are recorded at transaction price.

Subsequent Measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets of the Company are classified in three categories:
- Debt instruments measured at amortized cost

- Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCT’)

- Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

The classification depends on the contractual terms of the cash flows of the financial assets, the Company’s
business model for managing financial assets and in case of equity instruments, the intention of the Company
is relevant whether strategic or non-strategic. The said classification methodology is detailed below:

Debt instruments measured at amortized cost

Debt instruments are measured at amortized cost if the asset is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. These financials assets are measured at amortized cost by using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method, less impairment, if any. The Company recognizes the interest income in the statement
of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Debt instruments at fair value through OCI

Debt instruments are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, if the asset is held within
a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The Company measures debt
instruments included within the FVOCI category at each reporting date at fair value with such changes being
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The Company recognises interest income on these assets
in statement of profit and loss.

Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss include assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held
for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments. Debt instruments at fair value through
profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair value recognized in the
statement of profit and loss. Interest and Dividend incomes are recorded in statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognized i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet when:
- The contractual rights to the cash flow from the financial asset expire; or

- The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
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through’ arrangement, and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Impairment of Financial Assets - Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

The Company uses ECL model, for evaluating impairment of financial assets other than those measured
at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL).

Expected Credit Losses (ECL) are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

i. The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or

ii. Full lifetime expected credit losses (LTECL) (expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the life of the financial instrument)

Both LTECLs and 12 months ECLs are calculated on collective basis.
The Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as described below:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12 months ECL.
Stage 1 loans include those loans where there is no significant credit risk observed and also includes facilities
where the credit risk has been improved, and the loan has been reclassified from stage 2 or stage 3.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records
an allowance for the lifetime ECL. Stage 2 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved,
and the loan has been reclassified from stage 3.

Stage 3: Loans considered credit impaired are the loans which are past due for more than 90 days. The
Company records an allowance for lifetime ECL.

Calculations of ECL
The mechanics of ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

PD Probability of Default (“PD”) is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A
default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously
derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

EAD Exposure at Default (“EAD”) is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account
expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest.

LGD Loss Given Default (“LGD”) is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at
a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender
would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage
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of the EAD.

The Company calculates PD, EAD and LGD to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of loans and
discounted at an approximation to the EIR. At every reporting date, the above calculated PDs, EAD and
LGDs are reviewed and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:

Stage 1: The 12 months ECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result
from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.
The Company calculates the 12 months ECL allowance based on the expectation of a default occurring
in the 12 months following the reporting date. These expected 12-months default probabilities are applied
to a forecast EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD and discounted by an approximation to the original
EIR.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records
an allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those explained above, but PDs and LGDs are
estimated over the lifetime of the instrument. The expected cash shortfalls are discounted by an approximation
to the original EIR.

Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired, the Company recognises the lifetime expected credit losses
for these loans. The method is similar to that for stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

3.7.1.Financial Liabities

a.

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at amortized cost or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially
at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

Subsequent Measurement

The Company measures all financial liabilities at amortized cost except for financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Amortized
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. Financial liabilities held for trading are measured at fair value through profit
or loss.

Derecognition

Financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.7.2. Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet only
where the Company has legally enforceable right to set off the amount and Company intends, either to settle
them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously as permitted by Ind AS.
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3.8.

Leases

3.8.1. Company as a Lessee

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even
if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

The Company recognizes right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which
the Company is a lessee, except for a short term lease of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
For short term lease and low-value asset arrangements, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating
expense on straight-line basis over the lease term.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
arrangement. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are measured according to such options when it is reasonably
certain that the Company will exercise these options.

The right-of-use asset are recognized at the inception of the lease arrangement at the amount of the initial
measurement of lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date of
lease arrangement reduced by any lease incentives received, added by initial direct costs incurred and an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the Company in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying
asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straight-line method from
the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. Estimated useful life
of right-of-use assets is determined on the basis of useful life of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets
are tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that their carrying value may not be recoverable.
Impairment loss, if any is recognized in the statement of profit and loss account.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost, at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease arrangement or, if not readily determinable,
at the incremental borrowing rate in the country of domicile of such leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with
corresponding adjustments to right-of-use assets to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications.

3.8.2. Company as a Lessor

3.9.

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as finance or operating lease. If the terms of the lease
arrangement transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, such lease arrangement
is classified as finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

In case of sub-lease, the Company recognizes investment in sub-lease separately in the financial statements. The
sub-lease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from such lease
arrangement. For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease
arrangement.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to
a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.
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3.10.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company
or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability
that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent
liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

Retirement and Other Employee Benefits

3.10.1.Short-term Employee Benefits

Liabilities for employee benefits, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are the amounts expected
to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Short-term employee benefits are recognized in the Standalone Statement
of Profit and Loss in the period in which the related service is rendered.

3.10.2. Long-term Employee Benefits

Compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which
employee renders the related services are recognized as undiscounted liability at the balance sheet date. The
expected cost of compensated absences, which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end
of the period in which employee renders related services are recognized at the present value based on actuarial
valuation performed by an independent actuary at each balance sheet date using projected unit credit method.

3.10.3.Retirement Benefits

a. Defined Contribution Plan

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund and superannuation fund are defined contribution schemes.
The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company
recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the
related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date
exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after
deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution paid exceeds the contribution due to services
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

b. Defined Benefit Plan

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, under which the Company makes contributions
to a fund administered and managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India (‘LIC’) to fund the gratuity
liability. Under this scheme, the obligation to pay gratuity remains with the Company and LIC administers
the scheme.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit
method. Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the balance
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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3.11.

3.12.

3.13.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figure used in determination of basic
earnings per share to consider the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Inventories
a. Cost of Construction and Development

Cost of Construction and Development includes cost of land, liaisoning costs, development costs, overheads,
material and construction costs and expenditure incurred during the construction period to the extent such
expenditure is related to construction or is incidental thereto.

b. Project-in-Progress

The inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Project-in-progress is valued at cost if the
completed unsold flats/ units are expected to be sold at or above cost otherwise at lower of cost or net realisable
value. Cost includes cost of construction and development and other indirect expenditure incurred during the
construction period to the extent the expenditure is related to construction or is incidental thereto.

c. Stock of Flats and Office Space

Inventories (flat for sale/ space for sale) are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined
on first in first out basis and comprise all cost of purchase, construction, duties, taxes and all other costs
incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location and condition.

Cash and cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and short term investments with an original maturity of three
months or less.

Note 4: Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

4.1.

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods.

The key assumptions and estimate at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are described below. These assumptions and estimates are based
on available parameters as on the date of preparation of financial statements. These assumptions and estimates,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company.

Business Model Assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business model
test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed
together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant
evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that
affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are
compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
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4.2.

43.

44.

4.5.

4.6.

comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal
and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring
is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial
assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business
model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

Operating Lease

The Company has entered into commercial property leases for its offices. The Company evaluates if an
arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease requires
significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term and the applicable
discount rate. The Company has lease contracts which include extension and termination options, and this requires
exercise of judgement by the Company in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise
the option to renew or terminate the lease. The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing
rate specific to the lease period.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value, less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal
calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar
assets or observable market prices, less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value-in-use calculation
is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the projections for the next five years and do not
include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that
will enhance the assets’ performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount
rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation
purposes.

Fair value of Investment Property

As per the Ind AS, the Company is required to disclose the fair value of the investment property. Accordingly,
the Company has conducted valuation to assess the fair values of investment property as at March 31, 2025
and March 31, 2024. The investment property was valued by reference to market-based evidence, using
comparable prices adjusted for specific market factors such as nature, location and condition of the investment
property. The key assumptions used to determine fair value of the investment property are provided in note 10.1.

Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net changes in the deferred tax asset or liability during
the year. Significant judgements are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including amount
expected to be paid/ recovered for uncertain tax positions, including disclosures thereof.

Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using various valuation techniques. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree
of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity
risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value
of financial instruments.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 4: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED)
4.7. Defined Benefit Plans

4.8.

4.9.

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and
mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed annually.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular,
the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment
losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors,
changes in which can result in different levels of allowances. It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review
its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary.

Contingent Liabilities and Provisions

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow
of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated.
The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability requires the application of judgement to existing facts
and circumstances, which can be subject to change. The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed
regularly and revised to take account of changing facts and circumstances.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

As at Asat
March 31,2025  March 31,2024
Note 5: Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 0.11 0.40
Balance with Banks
In Current Accounts 20.15 41.99
In Auto Sweep Deposits* 36.74 72.11
In Fixed Deposit with original maturity of less than three months 170.14 -
Stamps in Hand - 0.02

227.14 114.52

*Autosweep deposit account have been considered as cash and cash equivalents irrespective of the maturity date as they
are readily available for prematurity without any charges.

As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Note 6: Bank Balances other than Cash and cash equivalents

Balance with Banks
Earmarked Balance with Bank

In Unpaid Dividend Accounts 41.34 6.62
Fixed Deposit Account* 166.61 255.07
Escrow Account (Refer Note 21.2 and 52) 51.07 47.56

259.02 309.25

* Fixed deposits of Rs. 1.05 (Previous Year Rs. 1.03) which have been kept as margin money for Bank Guarantee availed
from Bank.

Note 7: Receivables As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Other Receivables
From Parties Other Than Related Parties
Secured, Considered Good 4.06 -
Unsecured, Considered Good 144 103.59
Unsecured, Significant Increase in Credit Risk 18.42 -
Less: Impairment Allowance (5.68) -
Unsecured, Considered Credit Impaired 0.44 1.97
Less: Impairment Allowance (0.44) (1.97)
From Related Parties
Unsecured, Considered Good 7.24 5.03
25.48 108.62

25.48 108.62

i) No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with
any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms (including LLPs) or private companies
respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

ii) Other receivables are non-interest bearing.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

iii) Rental income amounting to ¥ 0.19 (Previous Year: Nil) and Service charges amounting to ¥ 0.51 (Previous Year:
Nil) has not been recognised due uncertainty in receipt thereof and amount accrued till the previous year has been
provided for in this year.

7.1 Ageing Schedule for other Receivables

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment as on 31st March 2025

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Lessthan | 6months 1-2year | 2-3year | Morethan Total
6 months -1 year 3 years
(i) Undisputed Other Receivables—Considered Good 9.15 0.95 0.25 2.39 12.74
(i) Undisputed Other Receivables—Which have
Significant Increase in Credit Risk 0.41 0.55 0.47 0.12 0.27 1.82
(i) Undisputed Other Receivables - Credit Impaired 0.43 0.01 0.44
(iv) Disputed Other Receivables—Which have
Significant Increase in Credit Risk 16.60 16.60
(v) Disputed Other Receivables - Credit Impaired
Gross Other Receivables 9.56 1.93 0.72 2.51 16.88 31.60
Less: Impairment Allowance (6.12)
Net Other Receivables 25.48
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment as on 31st March 2024
Particulars Lessthan | 6months 1-2year | 2-3year | Morethan Total
6 months -1 year 3years
(i) Undisputed Other Receivables—Considered Good 85.98 0.88 3.09 0.02 0.18 90.14
(i) Undisputed Other Receivables—Which have
Significant Increase in Credit Risk
(i) Undisputed Other Receivables - Credit Impaired 0.04 0.03 0.56 0.71 1.34
(iv) Disputed Other Receivables—Considered Good 18.47 18.47
(v) Disputed Other Receivables—Which have
Significant Increase in Credit Risk
(vi) Disputed Other Receivables - Credit Impaired 0.64 0.64
Gross Other Receivables 86.02 0.88 3.12 0.58 20.00 110.59
Less: Impairment Allowance (1.97)
Net Other Receivables 108.62
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(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Note 8: Loans

As at Asat
Particulars March 31,2025  March 31,2024
(Measured at Amortised Cost)
Loan to Employees 0.29 0.80
Loan to Related Party 1,500.00 -
Loan to Others 6.87 7.07
Total Gross 1,507.16 7.87
Less:Impairment Loss Allowance (4.11) (1.43)
Total Net 1,503.05 6.44
Security Details
Secured by Tangible Assets* 7.09 7.67
Unsecured 1,500.07 0.20
Total Gross 1,507.16 7.87
Less: Impairment Loss Allowance (4.11) (1.43)
Total Net 1,503.05 6.44
Loans in India & Outside India
Loans in India
Other than Public Sector 1,507.16 7.87
Total Gross (1) 1,507.16 7.87
Less: Impairment Loss Allowance (2) (4.11) (1.43)
Total Net - Loans in India - (1+2) 1,503.05 6.44

*  Secured against properties taken on rent and house building of employees.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

9.3 : The Company has entered into a Share Purchase Agreement (Agreement) for sale of its wholly owned subsidiary,
Peerless Financial Products Distribution Limited (PFPDL) to M/s. Darsh Advisory Put Limited at a consideration
of ¥ 220. The Agreement, being subject to necessary approvals from statutory and regulatory authorities, have not
been given effect thereto in these financial statements as the required approvals are awaited as on date.

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Note 10: Other Financial Assets

Accrued Interest on Loan to Employees 0.95 0.87
Advance to Employees and Others 0.09 0.27
Margin money in Demat Account 17.64 13.20
Gratuity Fund with LIC 5.55 497
Investment in Sublease - 21.54
Unbilled Revenue (contract assets)* 042 2.16
Derivative Assets 0.32 -

24.97 43.01

* The amount outstanding for the current year represents unbilled amount for the month of March 2025.

As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Note 11: Inventories
(Valued at Lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value)

Project Work in Progress 472.83 -
Add: Addition during the Year* 408.17 472.83
(Refer Note 37)
Net Project Work in Progress 881.00 472.83
Stock of Flats & Office Space 9.09 9.09
(Constructed Properties)

890.09 481.92

*  Cost of land amounting to ¥ 430.29 was transferred from Investment Properties to Inventories upon execution of
operative agreements/ arrangements with key vendor entities in the previous year.

As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Note 12: Current Tax Assets (Net)

Current Tax Assets 1,373.07 1,373.07
1,373.07 1,373.07
As at Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Note 13: Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax Assets 240.16 135.49
Less: Deferred Tax Liabilities (64.23) (167.39)
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 175.93 (31.90)

74



* .

9"..,_.:3
THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

Components of Deferred Tax (Liabilities) / Assets as at 31st March, 2025 are given below:

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Through Other
As at Through Profit Comprehensive As at
Particulars March, 312024 andLoss Income March, 312025
Deferred Tax Liability
Right of Use Assets, Assets Held for (5.84) 26.98 - 21.14
Sale and Lease Liability
Timing difference with respect to 58.07 (14.98) - 43.09
Property, Plant and Equipment,
and Intangible Assets
52.23 12.00 - 64.23
Deferred Tax Assets
Fair Valuation of Investments (109.32) 176.16 - 66.84
Loans and Receivables 21.29 (18.72) - 2.57
Voluntary Retirement Scheme 20.77 (20.77) - -
Carry Forward of Losses 79.18 72.55 - 151.73
Provision for Compensated 6.36 9.28 (1.74) 13.90
Absences and Gratuity
Employee related Liabilities 2.05 3.07 - 512
20.33 221.57 (1.74) 240.16
Net Deferred Tax Asset (31.90) 209.57 (1.74) 175.93
Components of Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/ Assets as at 31st March, 2024 are given below:
Through Through Other
As at Profit Comprehensive As at
Particulars March, 31 2023 and Loss Income March, 31 2024
Deferred Tax Liability
Timing difference with respect to Property, 40.69 17.38 - 58.07
Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
Fair Valuation of Investments (5.32) 114.64 - 109.32
35.37 132.02 - 167.39
Deferred Tax Assets
Loans and Receivables 1.53 19.76 - 21.29
Voluntary Retirement Scheme 20.77 - - 20.77
Right of Use Assets, Assets Held
for Sale and Lease Liability 471 1.13 - 584
Carry Forward of Losses 79.18 - - 79.18
Provision for Compensated Absences and Gratuity 9.00 (4.93) 2.29 6.36
Employee related Liabilities 0.50 1.55 - 2.05
115.69 17.51 2.29 135.49
Net Deferred Tax Asset 80.32 (114.51) 2.29 (31.90)
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Note 13: Deferred Tax (Continued) As at Asat
Details of Unrecognized Tax Losses with Expiry Dates March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Carry Forward of Business Loss (Unrecognized)
AY 2028-29 314.60 -
Carry Forward of Long Term Capital Loss (Unrecognized)
AY 2024-25 - 265.20
AY 2025-26 - 0.30
AY 2026-27 808.49 1,604.00
AY 2027-28 23.72 23.72
AY 2028-29 1,723.53 1,723.53
2,555.74 3,616.75
Note 14 : Investment Property
Description Land Buildings Total
Gross Block
As at March 31, 2023 466.15 223.62 689.77
Add: Additions during the year - - -
Less: Transfer to Inventories (430.29) - (430.29)
Less: Deletion during the year - (8.17) (8.17)
As at March 31, 2024 35.86 215.45 251.31
Add: Additions during the year 1.37 - 1.37
Add: Transferred from Property, Plant and Equipment - 18.29 18.29
Less: Transfer to Asset held for Sale - (141.95) (141.95)
Less: Deletion during the year (0.06) - (0.06)
As at March 31, 2025 37.17 91.79 128.96
Depreciation
As at March 31, 2023 - 47.02 47.02
Add: Depreciation for the year - 8.45 8.45
Less: Depreciation on deletion - (0.81) (0.81)
As at March 31, 2024 - 54.66 54.66
Add: Depreciation for the year - 6.39 6.39
Less: Transfer to Asset held for Sale - (39.08) (39.08)
As at March 31, 2025 - 21.97 21.97
Impairment
As at March 31, 2024 - - -
Add: Impairment for the year - 0.25 0.25
As at March 31, 2025 - 0.25 0.25
Net Block
As at March 31, 2025 37.17 69.57 106.74

As at March 31, 2024 35.86 160.79 196.65

The Company confirms that the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

*  Duringthe year the company has reclassified properties from Properties, Plant and Equipment to Investment Property
as there was an end of Owner Occupation.
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(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Note 14.1 : Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss for Investment Property

As at Asat
March 31,2025 March 31,2024

RentalIncome 30.24 32.42
Direct Operating Expense 8.59 941

Contractual Obligations

The Company has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property. However, the
responsibility for its repairs, maintenance or enhancements is with the Company. Refer Note 51.2 for capital commitment
towards investment property.

Fair Value
The fair valuation of investment properties as at March 31, 2025 is % 6,649.79 (Previous Year % 5,098.35).

The Fair valuation for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is based on valuation by registered valuers as
defined under rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valuer and Valuation) Rules, 2017.

Pledge Details
Investment property is not pledged.
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THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

(All amounts in . Million, unless otherwise stated)
As at Asat
March, 31 2025 March 31,2024
Note 18: Other Non-Financial Assets

Advance for Supply of Goods and Services 298.76 267.84
Prepaid Expenses 30.11 35.64
Capital Advance
-to Related Party 15.62 26.27
-to Other Parties 40.00 -
Security Deposits 7.09 8.15
Advance against Right to Property™ 33.90 33.90
Less:Impairment Loss Allowance (33.90) (33.90)
Balances with Government Authorities 0.19 0.27
391.77 338.17

* Advance against Right to Property amounting to ¥ 33.90 (net of amount recovered ¥ 12.00) is recoverable
against the non-transfer of the 9 flats by the developer M/S Ganguly Group. The Company has made an impairment
allowance on the same based on ECL policy in this respect.

As at Asat
March, 31 2025 March 31,2024

Note 19: Assets Held for Sale*

OpeningBalance 0.16 -
Add: Transferred from Property Plant and Equipment 3.51 0.16
Add: Transferred from Investment Property 104.06 -
Less: Sold during the year (24.66) -
Closing Balance 83.07 0.16

*  The Company has classified certain buildings as Assets held for Sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 "Non-Current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations". These assets are measured at the lower of carrying value and
fair value less cost to sell.

As at Asat
March, 31 2025  March 31,2024
Note 20: Payables

A. TRADE PAYABLES

Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises™ 8.82 0.84
Dues of Creditors Other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 47.02 27.12
55.84 27.96
B. OTHER PAYABLES
Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises™ 0.21 -
Dues of Creditors Other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 97.30 128.72
97.51 128.72
Details of Other Payable
Commission to Executive Directors 71.00 103.00
Commission to Non- Executive Directors 13.70 18.00
Liability for Capital Goods 9.51 -
Reimbursement Payable 3.30 7.72
97.51 128.72

*  Refer Note No. 53 for disclosures pertaining to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE. 20.1 Ageing Schedule of Trade Payables

As at March 31, 2025 (All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)
Outstanding for the following periods from the Due Date of Payment
Particulars Not Due | Lessthan | 1-2 year |2-3 year | More than Total
1year 3 years

(i) Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 0.68 8.14 - - - 8.82

(ii) Others 14.75 32.27 - - - 47.02
(iii) Disputed Dues - Micro Enterprises

and Small Enterprises - - - - - -

(iv) Disputed Dues - Others - - - - - -

Total 15.43 40.41 - - - 55.84

As at March 31, 2024
Outstanding for the following periods from the Due Date of Payment
Particulars Not Due | Lessthan | 1-2 year |2-3 year | More than Total
1year 3 years

(i) Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 0.84 - - - - 0.84

(ii) Others 24.51 - 0.42 0.26 1.93 27.12
(iii) Disputed Dues - Micro Enterprises

and Small Enterprises - - - - - -

(iv) Disputed Dues - Others - - - - - -

Total 25.35 - 0.42 0.26 1.93 27.96

NOTE. 20.2 Ageing schedule of other payables

As at March 31, 2025
Outstanding for the following periods from the Due Date of Payment
Particulars Not Due | Lessthan | 1-2 year |2-3 year | More than Total
1year 3 years

(i) Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises - 0.21 - - - 0.21
(ii) Others 84.73 10.06 - 2.27 0.24 97.30

(iii) Disputed Dues - Micro Enterprises
and Small Enterprises - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 84.73 10.27 - 2.27 0.24 97.51

81



9),_5
THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

As at March 31, 2024

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Outstanding for the following periods from the Due Date of Payment

articulars Not Due | Lessthan | 1-2 year |2-3 year | More than Total
1year 3 years
(i) Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises - - - - - -
(ii) Others 121.00 1.09 2.27 - 4.36 128.72
(iii) Disputed Dues - Micro Enterprises
and Small Enterprises - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 121.00 1.09 2.27 - 4.36 | 128.72
As at Asat
March, 31 2025  March 31,2024
Note 21: Deposits
Deposit from Public - at Amortised Cost* 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00

* The amount is below the rounding off norms.

21.1 The Company has transferred an amount of ¥ Nil (Previous Year: ¥ 0.01 ) to the Investors' Education and Protection
Fund (IEPF) Authority and repaid % Nil (Previous year ¥ Nil ) to its depositors. The amount transferred represents the
total amount of matured deposits (including interest accrued thereon till respective dates of maturity), which were lying

unclaimed for a period of 7 years or more from their respective dates of maturity. [Refer Note No. 52].

21.2 The book value & accrued interest of Investments Linked with Escrow Account (including Escrow Bank Account)
amounts to ¥ 51.07 as at March 31, 2025 (Previous Year ¥ 47.56) against outstanding Liability towards Depositors
of ¥ 0.004 as at March 31, 2025 (Previous Year % 0.004).

Note 22: Other financial Liabilities
Security Deposits

Unpaid Dividends

Lease Liability

[Ref Note - 54]

Employee Benefit Payable

Note 23: Current tax liabilities

Provision for Tax

March, 31

As at
2025

7.71

41.35

10.04

20.35

79.45

As at

Asat

March 31, 2024

5.52
6.62
47.24

13.19

72.57

Asat

March, 31 2025

1,646.02
1,646.02

March 31, 2024

1,800.51
1,800.51
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

As at
March, 31 2025

Note 24: Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits -

Leave Encashment 31.90
Provision for Lease Rent™ 23.32

55.22

Asat
March 31, 2024

25.28

25.28

*  Lease for Tower-I at 12, Jawaharlal Nehru Road, Kolkata — 700069, granted by the State Government of West
Bengal in favour of the Company, which in turn has been given on sub-lease to the Peerless Hotels Ltd. vide agreement
dated July 20, 1992, has expired on October 13, 2024. Necessary application for the renewal of lease has been
made by the Company with the Department of Tourism, Government of West Bengal vide letter dated August 23,
2024, and the same is pending for execution. As stated by the management, the application for renewal of lease
is under active consideration and renewal thereof is awaited as on this date. Pending this and finalisation of the
terms and condition thereof, a provision of ¥ 23.32 towards the incremental lease rentals as estimated by the
management applying it's own judgement for possible enhancement thereof considering the prevailing market trend,
etc., following the prudent principle of accounting, has been made in these accounts. Further, adjustments arising
in this respect, including those recoverable from Peerless Hotels Limited, will be given effect to on determination

of the amount on execution of the agreement.

As at
March, 31 2025
Note 25: Other Non-Financial Liabilities

Advance Received Against Sale of Property 0.82
Income Received in Advance (from related party) -
Statutory Liabilities 2747
Deferred Rent -
28.29

As at

March, 31 2025
NOTE 26 : Share Capital
Authorised Capital
35,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 100/- each 350.00
(Previous Year: ¥ 100/- each)

350.00

Issued, Subscribed & Called up Capital
33,15,584 Equity shares of ¥ 100/- each fully paid up 331.56
(Previous Year: ¥ 100/- each)

331.56

Asat
March 31, 2024

11.10
1.71
14.71
1.80

29.32

Asat
March 31, 2024

350.00
350.00

331.56

331.56
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

a) Movement of Share Capital:

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars No. of Shares Rs. in Million No. of Shares Rs. in Million
No. of Shares outstanding as at beginning of year 33,15,584 331.56 33,15,584 331.56
Shares issued during the year — — — —
No. of Shares outstanding as at end of year 33,15,5684 331.56 33,15,584 331.56

b) Rights, Preferences & Restrictions attached to Shares:

Equity Shares - The Company has issued only one class of equity shares having face value of ¥100 per share. Each
shareholder is eligible for dividend right and one vote per share held. The Dividend, if any, proposed by Board of Directors
is subject to approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting except in case of interim dividend. In the
event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets after
distribution of all preferencial amount of the Company in the same proportion as the capital paid up on the equity shares
held by them bears to the total paid up equity share capital of the Company.

c¢) The Company does not have a holding or an ultimate holding company.
d) Disclosure with respect to Shareholding in excess of 5%:
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

No. of % of No. of % of % Changes

Name of the Shareholder Shares Shareholding Shares Shareholding

Mrs. Shikha Roy 7,50,048 22.62% 7,50,048 22.62% -
Mr. Jayanta Roy 3,24,640 9.79% 3,24,640 9.79% -
Shikha Holdings Private Limited 6,57,482 19.83% 6,30,192 19.01% 0.82%
Bichitra Holdings Private Limited 3,30,955 9.98% 3,29,169 9.93% 0.05%
Poddar Projects Limited 2,18,240 6.58% 2,18,240 6.58% -
Mr. R. L. Gaggar 1,79,200 5.40% 1,79,200 5.40% -
Mr. Tuhin Kanti Ghosh 2,25,920 6.81% 2,25,920 6.81% -
Total 26,86,485 81.01% 26,57,409 80.15% 0.87%

e) The Company has not allotted any shares pursuant to the contract(s) without payment being received in cash for the
period of five years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date. Further, the Company has neither issued any bonus
shares nor has done any buyback during the aforesaid period.

f) The Company has neither issued nor has any outstanding securities convertible into equity/ preference shares.
g There are no calls unpaid by Directors and Officers of the Company.

h) The Company has not forfeited any equity shares during the year.

i) For details in relation to Capital Management of the Company, refer Note 46.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

j) Disclosure with respect to shareholding of promoters:
As at March 31, 2025

Name of the Shareholder

Mrs. Shikha Roy

Mr. Jayanta Roy

Mrs. Shikha Roy & Mrs. Debasree Roy
Mrs. Debasree Roy

Mrs. Debasree Roy & Mrs. Shikha Roy
Mr. Tushar Kanti Roy

Shikha Holdings Private Limited
Bichitra Holdings Private Limited
Kaizen Hotels & Resorts Limited

Total

Note 27: Other Equity

Capital Reserve

Capital Redemption Reserve
Special Reserve

General Reserve

Retained Earnings

As at March 31, 2024

No. of % of No. of % of % Changes
Shares Shareholding Shares Shareholding

7,50,048 22.62% 7,50,048 22.62% -
3,24,640 9.79% 3,24,640 9.79% -
3,019 0.09% 3,019 0.09% -
1,08,256 3.27% 1,08,256 3.27% -
34,304 1.03% 34,304 1.03% -
256 0.01% 256 0.01% -
6,57,482 19.83% 6,30,192 19.01% 0.82%
3,30,955 9.98% 3,29,169 9.93% 0.05%
60,000 1.81% 60,000 1.81% -
22,68,960 68.43% 22,39,884 67.56% 0.87%
As at Asat

* For reconciliation of balances refer to Statement of Changes in Equity.

Equity Dividend

Final Dividend for March 31, 2024 - ¥ 100 per share
Interim Dividend for March 31, 2025 - % 100 per share
Final Dividend for March 31, 2023 - ¥ 175 per share
Interim Dividend for March 31, 2024 - % 100 per share

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2025

331.56
331.56

0.18 0.18

0.02 0.02
6,783.16 6,508.01
7,051.15 6,951.15
7,753.52 7,410.86
21,588.03 20,870.22
As at Asat

March 31, 2024

580.23
331.56

The Company at its Board meeting held on June 26, 2025 has declared final dividend for F.Y.2024-25 of ¥ 100 per
share, which will be paid post approval of shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. The expected amount of outflow

on account of same is ¥ 331.56 million.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 27.1 : Nature and purpose of reserve

Capital Reserve

Capital reserve represents profit recognised in erstwhile years on reissue of forfeited shares.
Capital Redemption Reserve

The Company has recognised Capital Redemption Reserve on redemption of Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference
Shares from its Retained Earnings. The amount in Capital Redemption Reserve is equal to nominal amount of the
said Preference Shares redeemed. The amount is available for utilisation for issue of bonus shares to its members and
otherwise as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Special Reserve

Every year the Company transfers a sum of not less than twenty per cent of the net profit of that year as disclosed
in the Statement of Profit and Loss to its Special Reserve pursuant to Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India

Act, 1934.

General Reserve

General Reserve has been created by appropriating profits from Retained Earnings. The amount s to be utilised in accordance

with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any appropriation, as applicable. Retained
earnings include re-measurement loss/(gain) on defined benefit plan (net of taxes) that will not be reclassified to the

Statement of Profit and Loss.

Note 28: Interest Income
On Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost

Interest on Loans 38.75 6.31
Interest income on Investments 654.43 773.33
Interest on Bank Deposits 26.30 594

On Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss
Interest income on Investments 10.42 3.38
729.90 788.96
Year ended Yearended

Note 29: Dividend Income
On Financial Assets Measured at:

Year ended
March 31, 2025

March 31, 2025

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Yearended
March 31, 2024

March 31, 2024

Fair Value through Profit or Loss 56.45 47.07
Cost 127.69 152.72
184.14 199.79
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Note 30: Rental Income

Rent* 46.50 72.04
Income from Sublease 16.39 2.29
Service Fees™ 36.09 33.31

98.98 107.64

* Refer Note 7(iii).

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Note 31: Net gain / (loss) on fair value changes

On Financial Assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Fair Value changes:

— Realised 1,121.84 1,422.60
— Unrealised * (478.94) 665.75
642.90 2,088.35

* Includes reversal of unrealised gain/(loss) incurred till previous year.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Note 32: Revenue from sale of constructed properties
Sale of Residential/ Commercial Units - 2.13

- 2.13

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Note 33: Other Income

Interest on Income Tax refund 265.95 145.20
Profit on Sale of Right in Property (Net) 571 2481
Profit on Sale of Asset Held for Sale (Net) 424 .80 63.41
Provisions/Liabilities no longer required written back 13.00 21.64
Miscellaneous Income 17.43 472

726.89 259.78
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 34: Finance Cost
Other Interest Expenses

Note 35: Net loss on Derecognition of Financial
Instruments under amortised cost category
Debt Securities (Bonds)

Note 36: Impairment of Financial Instruments
On Investments
Impairment allowance created during the year
Less: Reversal of opening impairment allowance

Net Impairment allowance
On Loans [Refer Note 57 (s)]

Impairment allowance created during the year
Less: Reversal of opening impairment allowance

Net Impairment allowance
On Other Receivables

Impairment allowance created during the year
Less: Reversal of opening impairment allowance

Net Impairment allowance

Amount of bad debt written off

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

0.98 4.68
0.98 4.68
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

- 269.02
- 269.02

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

- 80.90

(121.91) (284.65)
(121.91) (203.75)
3.98 -
(1.30) (0.78)
2.68 (0.78)
492 0.04
(0.78) (5.21)
4.14 (5.17)
3.33 7.40
(111.76) (202.30)

Note: In earlier years, the Company had carried out impairment testing against the investments in certain subsidiary
companies and ¥ 688.59 was provided in the Financial Statements. During the year, considering the improvement in
the operation of one of the subsidiaries, fair valuation has been undertaken by an independent valuer and impairment
of ¥ 121.91 provided thereagainst, being no longer required, has been reversed during the year. Based on the review,
the remaining amount of provision for impairment as made in earlier years, being valid for the year ended March 31,

2025 has been continued.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 37: Cost of Construction and Development

Contracting Costs

Liasoning and Approval Costs
Design and Consultancy Fees
Other Ancilliary Costs

NOTE 38: Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods,
and Construction Work-in-progress

(A) Projects in Progress

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Add: Cost of Land Transferred from Property, Plant and Equipments
Less: Inventories at the end of the year

Total (A)

(B) Stock of flats and Office Space
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Less: Inventories at the end of the year

Total (B)
Total (A+B)

Note 39: Employee Benefit Expenses™

Salaries and Wages
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
Staff Welfare Expense

* Includes remuneration and commission paid to directors.

Note 40: Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment

Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets

Investment Property

Right to Use Asset

Year ended

March 31, 2025

80.72
317.60
9.85

408.15

Year ended

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended

March 31, 2024

3.43
15.44
1.30

20.17

Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

472.83

(881.00)

(408.17)

9.09

(9.09)

(408.17)

Year ended

March 31, 2025

29597
24.95
26.96

347.88

Year ended

22.37
430.29
(472.83)

(20.17)

10.90
(9.09)

1.81
(18.36)

Year ended

March 31, 2024

268.48
19.39
23.47

311.34

Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

18.64
4.82
6.64
0.93

31.03

9.92
1.36
8.45
1.05

20.78
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Note 41: Other Expense

Rent, Taxes And Energy Costs (Refer Note no. 41.1) 97.56 63.88
Repairs and Maintenance 38.50 38.30
Communication Costs 3.12 2.82
Printing and Stationery 5.53 4.88
Advertisement and Publicity 3243 20.56
Director’s Fee, Allowances and Expenses 18.65 22.06
Auditor’s Fees and Expenses (Refer Note no. 43) 495 553
Legal & Professional Charges 390.30 253.83
Management Fee 15.30 12.13
Insurance 2.00 191
Security & Manpower / Contract Cost 33.40 31.04
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 46.56 28.31
Charities and Donation 60.35 46.55
Travelling and Conveyance 27.77 22.61
Software Licence Fees 6.42 5.73
Loss on Buyback of Equity Shares of Subsidiary Company - 10.11
Loss on Derecognition of Fixed Assets (Net) 0.46 -
Other Expenditure (Refer Note no. 41.2) 45.38 24.72

828.68 594.97

41.1 The Company has taken certain office premises under cancellable Operating Lease Agreements which generally
range between 11 months to 3 years and are usually renewable by mutual agreements. The Company has availed the
benefit of short term lease exemption under Ind AS 116 and charged off the lease payments to the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

41.2 Other Expenditure is primarily on account of Printing and Stationery, Postage and Telegram, Telephone Charges,
expenses related to Investment activities and sale of property, membership and other fees, organisation expenses, etc.

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Note 42: Current Taxes

The major components of income tax
expense for the respective year ended
i) Statement of Profit & Loss

Current Tax 327.00 250.00
Deferred Tax (209.57) 11451
Tax Expense of Earlier year (Refer Note 50) (207.19) (155.52)

(89.76) 208.99

ii) Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Deferred tax related to items recognized
in OCI during the year
Actuarial (loss) Gain on Gratuity Fund (1.74) 2.29

Income tax (credit) / charge to OCI (1.74) 2.29
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit for the respective years

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Accounting Profit/(Loss) before Income Tax 1,286.23 2,446.35

Enacted Tax Rates in India 25.17% 25.17%

Computed Expected Tax Expenses 323.66 615.70
Tax Effect

On Exempted Income (51.46) (70.25)

On Income at Special Rates (97.65) (72.70)

On Non-Deductible Expenses for Tax Purpose 0.04 (37.20)

Reversal of Tax Expense of Earlier Year (207.19) (155.52)

Others (57.16) (71.04)

At the Effective Income Tax Rate (89.76) 208.99

Income Tax Expense Reported in Statement of Profit and Loss (89.76) 208.99

Year ended Year ended

Note 43: Auditors Remuneration [net of GST]

(i) As Auditor 4.20 4.20
(ii) As Tax Auditor 0.75 0.73
(iii) For Other Certifications - 0.60
4.95 5.53

Year ended Year ended

Note 44: Corporate Social Responsibility

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2024

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 26.67 27.78
b) Amount spent during the year 46.56 28.31
c) Shortfall / (excess) spent during the year (19.89) (0.53)
d) Nature of CSR activities
(i) Construction / acquisition of any assets - -
(i) On purposes other than (i) above
Promoting Education, including Special Education 6.56 28.31
and Employment Enhancing Vocation Skills
Promoting Health Care including Preventive Health Care 40.00 -

There is no shortfall in the CSR amount required to be spent by the Company as per section 135(5) of the Act.
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Note 45: Fair value

The management has assessed that fair value of financial instruments approximates their carrying amounts largely due
to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2025 is as follows:-

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Fair Value Amortised Cost Total
through Profit cost
or Loss
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents - 227.14 - 227.74
Bank Balances other than above - 259.02 - 259.02
Other Receivables - 25.48 - 25.48
Loans - 1,503.05 - 1,503.05
Investments 9,318.62 7,623.27 1,670.96 18,612.85
Other Financial Assets 5.87 19.10 - 2497
Financial Liabilities
Payables - 153.35 - 153.35
Deposits - 0.00 - 0.00
Other Financial Liabilities - 79.45 - 79.45
The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:-
Particulars Fair Value Amortised Cost Total
through Profit cost
or Loss

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents - 114.52 - 114.52
Bank Balances other than above - 309.25 - 309.25
Other Receivables - 108.62 - 108.62
Loans - 6.44 - 6.44
Investments 9,007.49 9,645.62 1,549.05 20,202.16
Other Financial Assets 497 38.04 - 43.01
Financial Liabilities
Payables - 156.68 - 156.68
Deposits - 0.00 - 0.00
Other Financial Liabilities - 72.57 - 72.57
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NOTE 45: FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

Fair value of other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, other
financial assets, trade and other payables, and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to

the short-term maturities of these instruments.

Fair value hierarchy : (All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)
Fair value measurement using
Particulars Date of Total Quoted prices | Significant | Significant
valuation in active observable | unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial Assets
Assets Measured at Fair Value:
Investments in [Note 9]
Equity Instruments Mar 31, 2025 | 2,351.97 2,351.97 - -
Mutual Funds Mar 31, 2025 | 3,992.33 3,992.33 - -
Investment through Wealth / Portfolio
Management Services Mar 31, 2025 | 1,963.04 1,765.61 197.43 -
Gold ETF Mar 31, 2025 656.71 656.71 - -
Market Lined Debentures Mar 31, 2025 250.00 - 250.00 -
Investment in Alternate Investment Funds Mar 31, 2025 104.57 - 104.57 -
Assets for which fair values are disclosed:
Investment Property [Note 12] Mar 31, 2025 | 6,649.79 - - 6,649.79

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

Fair value measurement using

Particulars Date of Total Quoted prices | Significant | Significant
valuation in active observable | unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Financial Assets

Assets Measured at Fair Value:

Investments in [Note 9]

Equity Instruments Mar 31, 2024 | 1,967.58 1,967.58 - -

Mutual Funds Mar 31, 2024 | 5,251.65 5,251.64 - -

Investment through Wealth / Portfolio

Management Services Mar 31, 2024 | 1,371.83 1,187.57 184.26 -

Gold ETF Mar 31, 2024 363.90 363.90 - -

Investment in Alternate Investment Funds Mar 31, 2024 52.53 - 52.53 -

Assets for which fair values are disclosed:

Investment Property [Note 12] Mar 31, 2024 | 5,098.35 - - 5098.35

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair values:
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or
most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of whether that
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique. “Mutual Fund Units are measured based on their published
net asset value (NAV)”, taking into account redemption and/or other restrictions. Equity instruments are in listed entities are initially
recognised at transaction price and re-measured and valued on a case-by-case at price quoted as per stock exchanges and classified
as Level 1.

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the periods for March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.
Note 46: Capital Management

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business which includes issued
equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to equity holders of the Company. The RBI
requires a Non- Banking Financial Companies- Investment and Credit Companies (NBFC-ICC) to maintain a minimum
capital to risk weighted assets ratio (“CRAR”) consisting of Tier I and Tier II capital of 15% of aggregate risk weighted
assets of which Tier I capital has to be minimum of 10%. Further, the total of Tier II capital cannot exceed 100%
of Tier I capital at any point of time. The capital management process of the Company ensures to maintain a healthy
CRAR at all the times.

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that the Company complies with externally
imposed capital requirements and maintains healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise
shareholders' value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue capital
securities. No changes have been made to the objective and processes from the previous years. However, they are under
constant review by the Board of Directors.

(in ¥ Million except ratios)

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Regulatory Capital
Tier I Capital 18,142.39 19,014.83
Tier Il Capital 4.00 1.00
Total Capital Funds 18,146.39 19,015.83
Risk Weighted Assets 18,967.63 19,613.92
Tier I Capital Ratio 95.65% 96.95%
Tier I Capital Ratio 0.02% 0.01%
Total Capital Ratio 95.67% 96.96%

Regulatory capital consists of Tier 1 capital, which comprises share capital, share premium, retained earnings including
currentyear profitless accrued dividends. Certain adjustments are made to Ind AS-based results and reserves, as prescribed
by the Reserve Bank of India. The other component of regulatory capital is Tier 2 Capital, which is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is meeting the capital adequacy requirements of Reserve Bank of India (RBI).
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Note 47: Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders of Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares, if any that
would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. The Company has
no dilutive potential equity shares outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date.

(in ¥ Million except EPS)

Year ended Yearended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (A) 1,375.76 2,237.36
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic EPS - (B) 33,15,584 33,15,584
Basic & Diluted Earnings per Equity Share (in Rupees) % 414.94 674.80

(face value of ¥100/- per share) (A) / (B)
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Note 48: Related Party Disclosure
a) Names of Related Parties and description of relationship :

Relationship
1. Subsidiaries

2. JointVenture
3. Step down Subsidiary

4. KeyManagement Personnel

5. Independent Directors

6. Non Executive Directors

7. Relatives of Key
Management Personnel
(KMP) & Non - Executive
Directors

8. Common Control
Enterprises (includes

Enterprise over which
KMP has control)

Names of related parties

Peerless Financial Products Distribution Limited
Peerless Hospitex Hospital & Research Center Limited
Peerless Securities Limited

Peerless Hotels Limited

Peerless Financial Services Limited

Bengal Peerless Housing Development Company Limited
Ayursundra Hospitals (Guwahati) Private Limited.

Mr. Jayanta Roy, Managing Director

Mr. A. K. Mukhuty — Whole Time Director & Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Supriyo Sinha, Wholetime Director

Mrs. Udita Dutta, Company Secretary (Appointed with effect from September 01,
2022) and stepped down as Company Secretary from close of business hours on
January 31, 2024 and thereafter resumed as Company Secretary from 1st August,
2024

Mrs. Bhawna Gupta, Company Secretary (from February 01, 2024 up to July
31,2024)

Mr. Deepak Kumar Mukerjee (up to September 11, 2024)
Mr. Dipankar Chatterji (from July 31, 2023)

Mr. Soumendra Mohan Basu

Mr. Sumit Bose

Mr. Partha Sarathi Bhattacharyya, Non- Executive Chairman
Mr. Dipankar Chatterji (up to July 30, 2023)

Dr. Sujit Karpurkayastha

Mr. Deepak Kumar Mukerjee (from September 12, 2024)

Mrs. Shikha Roy - Relative of Managing Director
Mrs. Debasree Roy - Relative of Managing Director

Kaizen Leisure & Holidays Limited

Kaizen Hotels & Resorts Limited

Bichitra Holdings Private Limited

Shikha Holdings Private Limited

B. K. Roy Foundation

Peerless Golden Jubilee Charitable Trust (from April 01, 2024)

Peerless Superannuation Scheme (from April 01, 2024)

The Peerless General Finance & Investment Co. Ltd. Group Gratuity Fund
(from April 01, 2024)

Peerless Sports Club (from April 01, 2024)
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Note 48: Related Party disclosure

c) Disclosure in respect of material related party transactions during the year:

Particulars

1 Acquisition of assets
Bengal Peerless Housing Development Limited
Peerless Financial Services Limited
Peerless Securities Limited
2 Contribution to Fund
Peerless Superannuation Scheme
3 CSR an Donation Expenses
B KRoy Foundation
Peerless Golden Jubilee Charitable Trust
4 Dividend paid
Bichitra Holdings Private Limited
Kaizen Hotels And Resorts Limited
Shikha Holdings Private Limited
Mrs. Shikha Roy
Mrs. Debasree Roy
Mr. Jayanta Roy
5 Dividend Received
Bengal Peerless Housing Development Limited
Peerless Hospitex Hospitals And Research Centre Limited
Peerless Hotels Limited
6 Expenses
Bengal Peerless Housing Development Limited
Peerless Hospitex Hospitals And Research Centre Limited
Peerless Hotels Limited
Peerless Securities Limited
Peerless Financial Products Distributions Limited
B KRoy Foundation
Peerless Sports Club
Kaizen Leisure And Holidays Limited
7 Interest on Debenture
Peerless Financial Products Distributions Limited
Peerless Hospitex Hospitals And Research Centre Limited
Peerless Financial Services Limited
8 Interest on Loan
Peerless Hospitex Hospitals And Research Centre Limited
9 Investment/ (Disinvestment) in Debenture
Peerless Financial Products Distributions Limited
Peerless Hospitex Hospitals And Research Centre Limited
Peerless Financial Services Limited
10 Investment/ (Disinvestment) in Share Capital
Peerless Securities Limited
11 Inter-Corporate Deposit Given/ (Refund Received)
Peerless Hospitex Hospitals And Research Centre Limited
Peerless Hospitex Hospitals And Research Centre Limited
12 Rental income
Bengal Peerless Housing Development Limited
Peerless Financial Products Distributions Limited
Peerless Financial Services Limited

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Relationship

JointVenture
Subsidiary
Subsidiary

Common Control Enterprise

Common Control Enterprise
Common Control Enterprise

Common Control Enterprise
Common Control Enterprise
Common Control Enterprise

Year ended
March 31, 2025

0.08
7.87

1047

9.10
0.92

66.19
12.00
131.50

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel 150.61
Relative of Key Managerial Personnel ~ 28.51

Managing Director

JointVenture
Subsidiary
Subsidiary

JointVenture

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Common Control Enterprise
Common Control Enterprise
Common Control Enterprise

Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary

Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary

Subsidiary
Subsidiary

JointVenture
Subsidiary
Subsidiary

64.928

7888
37.37
11.44

1.25
0.06
1.90
22.90
0.03

6.00
494

1.00
146.58
36.33

(30.00)
750.00

1,500.00

122
7.05
1.05

Year ended
March 31, 2024

0.10

8.85

90.11
16.50
173.30
207.09
39.20
89.28

117.39
30.75
4.58

0.05
1.95
14.18
0.09
0.30

15.60
2.41
73.17
13.01
4.26
1,250.00
(250.00)
39.36

500.00
(500.00)

4.88
7.33
3.22
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Note 48: Related Party disclosure (Continued)

c) Disclosure in respect of material related party transactions during the year:

14

16

17

19

2

Peerless Hospitex Hospitals And Research Centre Limited
Peerless Hotels Limited
Peerless Securities Limited
B KRoy Foundation
Kaizen Hotels And Resorts Limited
Peerless Golden Jubilee Charitable Trust
Peerless Sports Club
Security Deposit Refund
Bengal Peerless Housing Development Limited
Service Fees and Other Income
Bengal Peerless Housing Development Limited
Peerless Hospitex Hospitals And Research Centre Limited
Peerless Financial Products Distributions Limited
Peerless Hotels Limited
Peerless Securities Limited
Peerless Financial Services Limited
B KRoy Foundation
Kaizen Hotels And Resorts Limited
Peerless Golden Jubilee Charitable Trust
Peerless Sports Club
Advance Recovered
Bengal Peerless Housing Development Limited
Received from Gratuity Fund
The Peerless General Finance & Investment Co. Ltd.
Group Gratuity Fund
Legal & Professional Expenses
Mr. Partha Sarathi Bhattacharyya
Directors' Sitting Fees
Mr. Partha Sarathi Bhattacharyya
Mr. Sujit Karpurkayastha
Mr. Deepak Kumar Mukerjee
Mr. Soumendra Mohan Basu
Mr. Dipankar Chatterji
Mr. Sumit Bose
Directors' Commission
Mr. Partha Sarathi Bhattacharyya
Mr. Jayanta Roy
* Mr. Asoke Kumar Mukhuty
Mr. Supriyo Sinha

Mr. Sujit Karpurkayastha
Mr. Deepak Kumar Mukerjee
Mr. Soumendra Mohan Basu
Mr. Dipankar Chatterji
Mr. Sumit Bose
Directors' Remuneration
Mr. Jayanta Roy

* Mr. Asoke Kumar Mukhuty
Mr. Supriyo Sinha

Mrs. Udita Dutta
Ms. Bhawna Gupta

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Common Control Enterprise
Common Control Enterprise
Common Control Enterprise
Common Control Enterprise

Joint Venture

JointVenture

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Common Control Enterprise
Common Control Enterprise
Common Control Enterprise
Common Control Enterprise

Joint Venture

Common Control Enterprise

Chairman

Chairman
Non-Executive Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

Chairman
Managing Director
Director- Corporate & CFO

* Director- Business Transformation
& Corporate Strategy
Non-Executive Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

Managing Director

* Director- Corporate & CFO
Director- Business Transformation
& Corporate Strategy
Company Secretary
Company Secretary

5.19
16.79
7.03
1.90
1.68
0.11
0.22

051

0.75
411
1.01

26.53

1.49
0.40
0.42
0.41
0.89
0.00

12.20

2.74

9.20

0.97
0.45
0.94
1.13
0.90
0.57

3.00
50.00
7.00

14.00
1.50
2.30
2.30
2.30
2.30

89.82
28.43

4493
0.78
0.29

5.94
21.37
7.39

1.56

0.47
1.50
0.72
24.24
1.79
0.54
0.42
0.10

67.91

9.68

0.81
0.45
0.93
0.89
0.53
0.45

4.00
67.00
18.00

18.00
2.00
3.00
3.00
3.00
3.00

20.90
10.68

23.19
1.31
0.46
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 49: Employee Benefits :

i) Defined Contribution Plans:

The Company contributed following amounts to defined contributions plans:

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Yearended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Employer’s Contribution to Provident Fund 8.40 8.37
Employer’s Contribution to Pension Fund 2.60 0.96
Employer’s Contribution to Superannuation Fund 1047 8.02
Employer's Contribution to Gratuity Fund 3.48 2.04
Total 24.95 19.39

ii) Defined Benefit Plans:

Obligation inrespect of employee’s gratuity fund scheme managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India is determined
based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving
rise to additional unit of employee benefit entittement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation:

a) The amounts recognised in Balance Sheet are as follows:

Particulars Year ended Yearended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Amount to be recognised in Balance Sheet

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 5947 55.69

Less: Fair Value of Plan Assets (65.02) (60.66)

Amount to be recognised as liability or (asset) (5.55) (4.97)

b) The amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows:

Particulars Year ended Yearended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Current Service Cost 3.83 2.70

Past Service cost

NetInterest (income)/expenses (0.35) (0.66)

Net periodic benefit cost recognised in the Statement of - -
Profit & Loss (Employee benefit expenses - Note 39) 3.48 2.04
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

c) The amounts recognised in the statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

d)

e)

Particulars

Opening Amount Recognised in OCI Outside Profit And Loss Account

Due to Change In Financial Assumptions
Due to Experience Adjustments

Return on Plan Assets Excluding Amounts Included in Interest Income

Adjustment to Recognize the Effect of Asset Ceiling

Total Remeasurements Cost/ (Credit ) For The Year Recognised In OCI

Less: Accumulated balances transferred to retained earnings

Closing balances remeasurement (gain)/loss recognised OCI

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended

March 31, 2025

(4.35)
0.97
(3.53)

(6.91)

6.91

Yearended
March 31, 2024

4.89
5.71
0.09
(1.60)

9.09
(9.09)

The changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation representing reconciliation of opening and

closing balances thereof are as follows:

Particulars

Balance of the Present Value of

Defined Benefit Obligation as at the beginning of the year
Interest Expenses

Current Service Cost

Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss Due to Change in Financial Assumptions
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss Due to Change in Experience Adjustments
Benefits Paid

Liabilities Assumed/ (Settled)

Present value of obligation as at the end of the year

Net interest (Income) /expenses

Particulars

Interest ( Income) / Expense — Obligation
Interest (Income) / Expense — Plan assets

Net Interest (Income) / Expense for the year

Year ended
March 31, 2025

55.69
3.22
3.83

(4.35)
0.97

(2.74)
2.85

59.47

Year ended
March 31, 2025

3.22
(3.57)

(0.35)

Yearended
March 31, 2024

50.00
2.73
2.70
4.89
5.72

(10.35)

55.69

Yearended
March 31, 2024

2.73
(3.50)

(0.77)
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

f) Changes in the fairvalue of plan assets representing reconciliation of opening and closing balances thereof

are as follows: (All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars Year ended Yearended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Fair Value of Plan Assets at beginning of the year 60.66 60.55
InterestIncome 3.57 3.50
Return on Plan Assets (excl. interest income) 3.53 (0.09)
Contribution by Employer - 7.05
Benefits Paid (2.74) (10.35)
Fair value of plan assets at end of the year 65.02 60.66

Plan assets are administered by LIC and 100% of the plan assets are invested in lower risk assets, primarily in debt
securities.

g) Principal actuarial assumptions used in accounting for the gratuity plan are set out as below:

1 Discountrate: 6.72% [Previous Year: 7.18%]

2 Salary growth rate : 8.00% [Previous Year: 10.00%]

3 Weighted average duration to the payment of the cash flows- 4.54 Years [Previous Year: 4.63 Years]

4 The estimates of future salary increase considered in actuarial valuation take into account inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The Company evaluates these assumptions annually based on its long-term plans of growth and industry standards. The
discountrates are based on current market yields on government bonds consistent with the currency and estimated term
of the post employment benefits obligations. Plan assets are administered by the LIC and invested in lower risk assets,
primarily debt securities. The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on the expected average long term rate of
return on investments of the fund during the terms of the obligation.

h) Sensitivity analysis

Particulars Sensitivity Year ended Yearended
level March 31, 2025 March31,2024

Discount rate (Financial Assumption) -0.50% 60.85 57.01
0.50% 58.15 54.43

Salary escalation rate (Financial Assumption) -0.50% 58.16 54.45
0.50% 60.83 56.97

Note 50 : Income Taxes

The Company/ Income Tax Department have gone into appeals for certain years and the assessments are pending for
adjudication atvarious stages. The Department has adjusted certain income tax demands against the refunds for various
years. The Company has got certain orders in its favour, however appeal effect orders are yet to be received from the
Department.

The Company has made sufficient provision in the books in respect of pending income tax assessments on the basis of
accounting policies and on the basis of legal opinions from the professionals received by the management and as such
no further adjustment in respect is considered necessary. Therefore, liabilities for interest, penalty etc., if any, are not
determined and accounted for in the accounts.

Liabilities for taxation, interest , penalty etc .on account of adjustment made/ to be made on/ revival, settlements etc.
or otherwise are provided/ made on reviewal thereof or otherwise as and when these are finally ascertained.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 51: Contingent Liability and Capital Commitment

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Contingent Liability
a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
(to the extent ascertained from the available records)

i) ESI Matters (subjudice) 244.73 244.73
ii) Other Matters (including those pending before consumer forums) 2.07 2.07
b) Demand from IEPF (refer note 52) — Amount not determinable — —
c¢) BankGuarantee 0.54 0.54

Note: The amounts shown above represent the best possible estimates based on the available information. The
uncertainities and timing of the cash flows are dependent on the outcome of different legal processes which have
not been invoked by the Company or the claimants, as the case may be. The Company does not expect any
reimbursement in respect of the above contingent liabilities.

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Commitment -

a) Capital Commitment
- Investment Property (not provided for, net of advances) 2.29 431
- Other Capital Items 100.00 104.31
b) Other Commitment 2,877.15 3,003.06
2,979.44 3,111.68

Note 52: Other Regulatory Matter

a)

(b)

The Company was legally advised that the provisions of section 205C of the Companies Act, 1956 (Section 125 of
the Companies Act, 2013) in respect of subscription amounts collected from the Certificate-holders are not applicable
to it and accordingly, the Company had filed a writ petition before the Hon’ble High Court of Calcutta.

In accordance with the directions received from Reserve Bank of India vide letter dated 31st October 2014, read with
letter dated 03rd February 2015, the Company was required to open an Escrow Account and investments to the extent
of Liability towards Depositors as at 31st December 2014 needed to be linked to such escrow account so that any
proceeds thereof including coupon payment received are credited only to Escrow Account. The Company has complied
with the directive of Reserve Bank of India immediately and has utilised the balance in the Escrow account in the
manner directed by Reserve Bank of India.

In reply to an application made by the Company for conversion of NBFC category, the Reserve Bank of India (RBI)
had directed the Company in 2018-19 to initiate transfer of unclaimed deposits lying outstanding for 7 years or more
from the respective dates of maturity to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF), pursuant to Section 125
of the Companies Act, 2013. As a matter of prudence and after obtaining relevant legal advice, the Board of Directors
of the Company, on March 11, 2019, resolved to transfer the amount lying in the Escrow Account to the IEPF,
representing unclaimed deposits lying outstanding for 7 years or more. Accordingly, the Company made an application
inthe writ petition pending before the Hon’ble High Court of Calcutta for transfer of unclaimed deposits lying outstanding
for 7 years or more to IEPF.
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The Company has transferred an amount of ¥ Nil (Previous year ¥ 0.01 million) to the IEPF Authority during the
year. This amount transferred represents the total amount of matured deposits (including interest accrued thereon
till respective dates of maturity), which were lying unclaimed for a period of 7 years or more from their respective
dates of maturity. [Refer Note No. 19.1].

The Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) Authority vide its letter dated June 24, 2019 has directed the
Company for depositing with IEPF, the interest earned by the Company on Escrow Account to the tune of Rs. 5,049
million. In addition to this, the IEPF Authority has sought certain additional details/information from the Company
i.e. interest received by the Company on its matured deposits before opening of its escrow account and other details
related to matured deposits. The Company has contested this directive of IEPF w.r.t above letter dated June 24, 2019
before the Hon’ble High Court at Calcutta in FY 2019-20 by way of amendment to the writ petition filed earlier.

The Single Bench of the Hon'ble Calcutta High Court had delivered ajudgement on June 26, 2023 (the Order) against
which Company has obtained a stay on the operation of the Order consequent to an appeal filed before the Division
Bench of the Hon'ble Calcutta High Court which is pending for final disposal as on this date. As advised legally, the
Company had transferred all the amounts to IEPF as required in terms of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013
in compliance of the directions received from RBI and therefore any further claim as dealt with in (d) above requiring
any provision or adjustment in the accounts as such is legally not tenable against the Company.

Note 53: Disclosure in relation to micro enterprises and small enterprises

ii)

iii)

iv)

Disclosure of Payables (Trade and other) under financial liabilities is based on the information available with the
Company regarding the status of the suppliers as defined under the “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006” (the Act). There is no overdue amount outstanding as at the Balance sheet date. Relevant
disclosures as required under the Act are as follows:

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
The principal amount remaining unpaid to suppliers as at the end of 9.03 0.84

accountingyear

The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to suppliers as at the end - -
of accounting year

The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16, - -
of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,

along with the amount of payment made to the suppliers beyond the

appointed day during the year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 0.05 -
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed

day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 0.05 -
the accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the - -
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above

are actually paid to the small enterprises, for the purpose of disallow

ance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small

and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
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Note 54: Leases
A. Asalessee

Operating Lease

i) The changes in the carrying values of right-of-use asset are given in Note 15.

ii) Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease labilities and the movement during the year ended March 31, 2025

and March 31, 2024:

Particulars

As at beginning of the year

Adjustment on adoption of Ind AS 116 'Leases'
Addition during the year
Interest on Lease Liability
Reduction due to Modification/cancellation of leases
Repayments

As at end of the year (refer note 22)

As at
March 31, 2025

47.24

0.38
0.90
(36.88)
(1.60)

10.04

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Asat
March 31, 2024

41.95

10.80
4.50

(10.01)
47.24

iii) Thefollowingamounts are recognized in the statement of Profitand Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March

31, 2024:

Particulars

Depreciation Expenses on Right-Of-Use Asset
Interest on Lease Liability

Expense Relating to Short-Term Leases
(Included In Other Expenses as Rent)

As at
March 31, 2025

0.93
0.90

32.01

33.84

Asat
March 31, 2024

1.05
4.50
5.29
10.84

iv) The Company had total cash outflows for leases of ¥ 1.60 (Previous Year - % 10.01 [including interest])

v) The Company has entered into various contracts for leasing of different properties for business purposes. Right of Use
Asset has not been created on the leases with lease term lower than 12 months or if the lease rentals are of low value

nature.

Finance Lease (Sublease)

The Company has entered into a finance sublease arrangement with Peerless Hotels Limited, a subsidiary, for a portion
of itsright-of-use asset. As per Ind AS 116, since the sublease transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership,

it is classified as a finance lease.

(i) Finance Income Recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss

Particulars
Finance Income on Net Investment in Lease

Total Income from Sublease

As at
March 31, 2025

1.60

1.60

Asat
March 31, 2024

3.20
3.20
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(ii) Maturity Analysis of Lease Payments (Undiscounted Basis)

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

As at Asat
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within One year 15.82 17.92
After one year but not more than 5 years 28.68 44 .50
More than 5 years - -
Total Lease Receivables 44.50 62.42

(iii) Additional Disclosure

The Company has earned variable lease ¥ 5.87 (previous year ¥ 1.92 ) based on revenue from operations of the
lessee. The other lease payments are receipts and do not include variable lease payments based on an index or
rate.

As aLessor
Operating Lease

The Company has given office premises under operating lease. The income from operating lease recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss are ¥16.39 (Previous year: ¥ 2.29). Agreements provide for cancellation by either party
or contain clause for escalation and renewal of agreements. The non-cancellable operating lease agreement assessed
by the Company is for various periods.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases on undiscounted basis as at reporting date
are as follows:

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases on undiscounted basis as at reporting date
are as follows:

As at Asat

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within One year 12.72 2.72
After one year but not more than 5 years 27.30 11.17
More than 5 years - 84.40
40.02 98.29

Note 55: Segmental Disclosures

As required under Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the
Company’s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business
segments. Management has determined the operating segments based on the information reviewed by the CODM for
the purpose of allocating and assessing performance. The Company has identified two business segments viz, Investment
and Credit Activity and Real Estate Activites presented the same in the Financial Statements. Revenue and Expenses
have been identified to a segment on the basis of relationship to operating activities of the segment. There are no inter
segment revenues during the year. Segment Assets and segment Liabilities represent Assets and Liabilities of respective
segment.
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The disclosure as per Ind AS 108 is as below:

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Investment Real Estate Total Investment | Real Estate Total
Particulars and Credit Activities and Credit Activities
Company Activity items

Revenue from Operations 1,556.94 98.98 1,655.92 3,077.10 109.77 3,186.87
Segment Results 617.46 510.48 1,127.94 2,192.96 187.73 2,380.69
Unallocable Income - - 265.95 145.20
Unallocable Expenditure - - (107.89) (79.54)
Total Profit before Tax 617.69 510.48 1,286.00 2,192.96 187.73 2,446.35
Less: Tax Expenses

Current Tax 327.00 250.00
Tax Expense of Earlier Years (207.19) (155.52)
Deferred Tax (209.57) 114.51
Total Profit after Tax 1,375.76 2,237.36
Segment Assets 20,883.22 1,449.70 22,332.92 21,168.46 776.51 21,944.97
Unallocable Asset 1,549.00 1,373.07
Total Assets 23,881.92 23,318.04
Segment Liabilities 273.45 42.86 316.31 264.15 19.71 283.86
Unallocable Liabilities 1,646.02 2,058.58
Total Liabilities 1,962.33 2,342.44

Note: Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities have been accounted for based on amounts allocated to the extent allocable and as considered

reasonable by the management.

Note 56: Additional Regulatory Requirements

56.1 Disclosure of Ratios

Particulars Numerator Denominator As at As at Variance
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 (in%)
Capital to risk- Total Capital Risk Weighted 95.67% 95.67% (1.32)
weighted assets Funds Assets
Ratio (CRAR)
Tier | CRAR Net Owned Risk Weighted 95.65% 95.65% (1.34)
Funds Assets
Tier I CRAR* Provision on Risk Weighted 0.02% 0.01% 313.63
standard assets Assets
Liquidity High Quality Net Cash Flow 5663% 5285% 7.17
Coverage Ratio liquid asset Amount
Amount

The variance in the Tier [l CRAR is primarily attributed to the increase in the provision of standard assets.
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56.2

56.3

56.4

56.5

56.6

56.7

56.8

56.9

Relationship with Struck off Companies

The Company has not entered into any transaction with the struck off companies during the year ended March 31,
2025 and March 31, 2024.

Registration of Charges or Satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)
There is no Charge or satisfaction thereof yet to be registered with ROC beyond the Statutory period.
Compliance with number of layers of companies

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with
Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 for the financial years ended March 31, 2025 and March
31, 2024.

Undisclosed Income

There are no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed asincome
duringthe year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

Wilful Defaulter

The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender, as the
Company had no borrowings during the financial year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

Benami Property

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

Ultimate Beneficiary

a) The Company has not advanced or loaned any funds, nor made any investments (whether from borrowed
funds, share premium, or any other sources) to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether formal or informal, that such Intermediaries shall, in turn,
lend or invest in parties identified by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”). Additionally, the
Company has not received any funds from any parties (“Funding Party”) with the understanding that such funds
will be used, directly or indirectly, to lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or to provide any guarantee, security, or similar assurance on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) No funds (which are material either individually or in aggregate) have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure

The Company does not have any unhedged foreign currency exposure.

56.10 Crypto currency or Virtual currency

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual currency during the financial year ended
March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.
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NOTE 57: Disclosures Pursuant to Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-banking Financial Company-
scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023, Circular No. RBI/DoR/2023-24/106 DoR.fin.rec.No0.45/03.10.119/

2023-24 and other Circulars Issued by RBI

Disclosure in accordance with RBI Master Direction :
a) Capital Risk Adequacy Ratio

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

March 31,2025

Particulars As at Asat

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
i) CRAR (%) 95.67% 95.95%
ii) CRAR - Tier I Capital (%) 95.65% 95.95%
iii) CRAR - Tier II Capital (%) 0.02% 0.01%
iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-II capital — —
v) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments — —

b) Investments

Particulars As at Asat

March 31, 2024

1. Value of Investments

i)  Gross Value of Investments

a) InIndia

b) OutsideIndia
ii) Provisionsfor Depreciation

a) InIndia

b) OutsideIndia
iii) Net Value of Investments

a) InIndia

b) OutsideIndia
. Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments.

Openingbalance

Add: Provisions made during the year
Less: Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year (Note No. 36)

Closingbalance

19,179.54

566.69

18,612.85

688.60

(121.91)
566.69

20,890.76

688.60

20,202.16

892.35
80.90
(284.65)

688.60
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Disclosure in accordance with RBI Master Direction :

c) Asset Liability Management Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Deposits™ Investments (having Advance #
stated Maturity Period) ™
As at Asat As at Asat

March 31,2025 March31,2024 March31,2025 March31,2024
1 day to 30/31 days (one month) - 246.68 114.52 0.02 0.01
Over one month to 2 months - 337.00 - 0.04 0.01
Over 2 months to 3 months - 41.11 - 1,500.05 0.01
Over 3 months to 6 months - 30.35 2.82 0.11 0.04
Over 6 months to 1 year - 893.79 1,703.22 0.25 0.07
Over 1 year & up to 3 years - 690.78 2,584.06 0.95 0.29
Over 3 year & up to 5 years - 500.00 400.00 0.86 0.29
Over 5 years - 5,277.37 4.807.23 4.60 6.35
Total - 8,017.08 9,611.85 1,506.88 7.07

*  The Deposit Liability of ¥ 0.00 (Prev. Year ¥ 0.00) has already matured and is remaining unclaimed as at March
31, 2025. Thus, maturity pattern relating to deposits is not disclosed herein above.

Investment in Subsidiary and Joint Venture are not considered for this disclosure. Units of Liquid Schemes of Mutual
Funds, Equity Shares, Market Linked Debentures and investment through Porfolio and Wealth Management Services
are not included above, since there is no set maturity pattern for the same. Balance in Escrow Account has not
been considered above.

# Does not include Staff Loans & Advances and Advances towards expenses.
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Disclosure in accordance with RBI Master Direction :

d) Exposure To Real Estate Sector — Lending towards Commercial /Residential Mortgages & Investment in

Mortgage Backed Securities

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

As at
Particulars March 31, 2025

I) Direct exposure
a) Residential Mortgages -

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or
willbe occupied by the borrower or that is rented. Exposure would also
include non-fund based (NFB) limits. 0.22

b) Commercial Real Estate -

Lendingsecured by mortgages on commercial real estate (office buildings,
retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, multifamily residential
buildings, multi tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse
space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction,
etc.). Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits. 6.87

c) Investments in Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS) and
other securitized exposures -

i. Residential -
ii. Commercial Real Estate -

II) Indirect Exposure

Fundbased and non-fund-based exposures on National Housing Bank

and Housing Finance Companies. -

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 7.09

Asat
March 31, 2024

0.59

6.87

7.46
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Disclosure in accordance with RBI Master Direction :

e) Exposure to Capital Market

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

(i)

(ii)

Directinvestment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures
and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not
exclusively invested in corporate debt;

Advances against shares/bonds/debentures or other securities or on clean
basis to individuals for investment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs),
convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented
mutual funds;

(iii) Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or

convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as
primary security;

(iv) Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral

w)

security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of
equity oriented mutual fundsi.e. where the primary security other than shares
/ convertible bonds/ convertible debentures/ units of equity oriented mutual
funds does not fully cover the advances;

Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on
behalf of stockbrokers and market makers;

(vi) Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds /

debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter's
contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising
resources;

(vii) Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues;

(viii) All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered)

Total Exposure to Capital Market

f) Provisions and Contingencies

8,466.22

17.64

8,282.05

13.20

8,483.86

8,295.25

As at
March 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

Break up of various provisions shown under the
head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account

Provisions for Depreciation on Investment
Provision towards NPA (Net)
Provision made towards Income Tax

Other Provisions

(121.91) (284.65)
6.82 (5.95)
327.00 250.00
23.32 -
235.23 (40.60)
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

Disclosure in accordance with RBI Master Direction :

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

g) Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPA’s
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
i) Concentration of Deposits (for deposits taking NBFCs)
Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors™ - -
Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest depositors to Total Deposits of the NBFC 100% 100%
* The amount is below the rounding off norms.
ii) Concentration of Advances (Top 20 Borrowers)
Gross Advances 1,507.16 7.87
Provision towards advances (4.11) (1.43)
Net Advances 1,503.05 6.44
Percentage of advances of twenty largest borrowers to Total Exposure # 100% 100%
# Advances excludes Advances & Loans to Staff and Receivables.
iii) Concentration of Exposures
Total Exposures to twenty largest borrowers/Customers 1,503.05 6.44
Percentage of Exposure to twenty largest borrowers/Customers to
Total Exposure of the NBFC on borrowers/Customers 100% 100%
iv) Concentration of NPAs - [Top 4 NPAs based on Net Advances]*
Gross Advances 0.11 0.43
Provision towards Advances (0.11) (0.43)
Net Advances # - -
*  Stage 3 Loans and Advances has been considered as NPA for the purpose of this disclosure.
# Advances excludes Advance & Loans to Staff and Receivables.
h) Sector-wise NPAs
Sector As at Asat

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Agriculture & allied activities

MSME -
Corporate borrowers -
Services -
Unsecured personal loans #
Auto loans -

Other personal loans -

# Excludes Advance & Loans to Staff, Receivables and other advances.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

Disclosure in accordance with RBI Master Direction :

i) Movement in NPAs (All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 0% 0%

ii) Movement of NPAs (Gross)#

(@) Openingbalance# 0.43 121

(b) Additions duringthe year - -

(c) Reductionsduringtheyear (0.32) (0.78)

(d) Closingbalance # 0.11 0.43

iii) Movement of Net NPAs #
(@) Openingbalance - -
(b) Additions duringthe year - -
(c) Reductionsduringtheyear - -
(d) Closingbalance — —

iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs

(a) Openingbalance# 0.43 1.21
(b) Additions duringthe year - -
(c) Reductionsduringthe year (0.32) (0.78)
(d) Closing balance # 0.11 0.43

# Excludes Advance, Receivables and other advances.

j)  Customer Complaints

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March31,2024

No. of Complaints as at beginning of year - -
No. of Complaints received during the year 306 224
No. of Complaints redressed during the year 306 224
No. of Complaints as at end of year - -

The complaints considered above are in nature of enquires related to process of redemption/reclaiming from [EPF and
updation of records.

k) Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs Inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Amount Amount Amount Amount
outstanding overdue outstanding overdue

(a) Debentures : Secured * - - _ _

: Unsecured - - - _
b) Deferred credits - - _ _
¢) Term loans - - _ _
d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing - - - -
e) Commercial paper - - - _
f) Deposits* 0.00 - 0.00 -
g) Other loans (Specify nature) - - - -

~ e~ e~~~

* The amount is below rounding off norms.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

Disclosure in accordance with RBI Master Direction :

1) Break-up of loans and advances including bills receivables™

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended Fortheyear ended
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
(a) Secured 7.09 7.67
(b) Unsecured 1,500.07 0.20
m) Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and other assets
counting towards AFC activities - Not applicable
n) Break-up of investments:
Particulars As at As at

Currentinvestments :

March 31,2025

March 31, 2024

1. Quoted:
(i) Shares:
(a) Equity

(b) Preference

(c) Equity Investment through Wealth and Portfolio

Management Services
(i) Debenturesandbonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Governmentsecurities
(v) Others (please specify)
2. Unquoted:
(i) Shares:
(a) Equity
(b) Preference
(i) Debenturesandbonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds

(a) Mutual Fund

(b) Investment through Wealth and Protfolio Management Services

(iv) Governmentsecurities
(v) Others (please specify)
(a) Fixed Deposits

(b) Investment through Wealth and Portfolio Management Schemes

Long Term investments :
1. Quoted:
(i) Shares:
(a) Equity
(b) Preference
ii) Debenturesand bonds
iii) Units of mutual funds

iv) Governmentsecurities

(
(
(
(v) Others (Gold ETF)

1,500.39

1,138.59

140.69

3,851.64
625.43

199.02

851.58
1,970.35

1,013.60
656.71

1,730.33

824.96

5,251.65
362.61

184.26

237.25
1,971.35

3,743.39
363.90
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(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

2. Unquoted :
(i) Shares :

(a) Equity * 1,490.96 1,369.05

(b) Preference 180.00 180.00

ii) Debenturesandbonds 4,082.00 3,411.55

iii) Units of mutual funds - -
iv) Governmentsecurities - -
v) Others (please specify)

(
(
(
( _ _

(a) Fixed Deposits with NBFC 557.32 519.33

(b) Market Linked Debenture (MLD) 250.00 -
(c) Investment in Alternate Investment Funds 104.57 52.53
Total Investments 18,612.85 20,202.16

* Net of Provision

o) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (1) and (m) above :

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Secured  Unsecured Total Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries - 1,500.00 1,500.00 - - -
(b) Companies in Same Group - - - - - _
(c) Otherrelated parties - - - — _ _

2. Other than related Parties 7.09 0.07 7.16 7.67 0.20 7.87
7.09 1,500.07 1,507.16 7.67 0.20 7.87

p) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both
quoted and unquoted ):

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
MarketValue/  BookValue MarketValue/ BookValue

Breakup or fair (Net of Breakup or fair (Net of

value or NAV Provisions) value or NAV Provisions)

1. Related Parties

(a) Subsidiaries- Equity Shares 2,116.26 1,484.33 3,602.72 1,362.42
(b) Subsidiaries- Preference Shares 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00
(c) Subsidiaries- Debentures 2,500.00 2,500.00 1,780.00 1,780.00
(d) Companies in Same Group 7.21 6.63 654.71 6.63
(e) Other related Parties - - - -
2. Other than Related Parties@ 14,441.89 14,441.89 16,873.11 16,873.11
Total 19,245.36 18,612.85 23,090.54 20,202.16

@ Investment in Equity and Mutual Funds are already fair valued through Profit & Loss. For balance investments
carried at amortised cost, the book value has been taken as equivalent to market value.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

q) Otherinformation:

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

As at

r)

s)

(i) Grossnon-performingassets
(@) Related parties
(b) Other than related parties

(ii) Netnon-performingassets
(a) Related parties
(b) Other than related parties

(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

0.11

0.43

Disclosure as per Circular No. DoR.No.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20 dated April 17,2020 issued by the
Reserve Bank of India on "Covid-19 regulatory package - Asset classification and provisioning" - Not

Applicable to the Company.

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms

As at March 31, 2025

Asset Gro§s Loss Net Provision  Difference
Asset Classification as per Classification Carrying  Allowance Carrying  required between
RBI Norms as per Ind amount (Provision Amount as per Ind AS
AS 109 as per as required IRACP 109 and
Ind AS as per Ind norms IRACP
109 AS 109) norms
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 1,507.05 4.00 1,503.05 3.77 0.23
Sub-total 1,507.05 4.00 1,503.05 3.77 0.23
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 - - - - -
Doubtful upto 1 year Stage 3 - - - - -
1 to 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
More than 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
Sub-total for Doubtful - - - - -
Loss Stage 3 0.11 0.11 - 0.11 -
Sub-total for NPA 0.11 0.11 - 0.11 -
Total Stagel 1,507.05 4.00 1,503.05 3.77 0.23
Stage 2 - - - - -
Stage 3 0.11 0.11 - 0.11 -
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

As at March 31, 2024
Asset Gross Loss Net Provision  Difference
Asset Classification as per Classification =~ Carrying  Allowance Carrying  required between
RBI Norms as per Ind amount (Provision Amount as per Ind AS
AS 109 as per as required IRACP 109 and
Ind AS as per Ind norms IRACP
109 AS 109) norms
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 7.44 1.00 6.44 0.02 0.98
Sub-total 7.44 1.00 6.44 0.02 0.98
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 - - - - -
Doubtful upto 1 year Stage 3 - - - - -
1 to 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
More than 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
Sub-total for Doubtful - - - - -
Loss Stage 3 0.43 0.43 - 0.43 -
Sub-total for NPA 0.43 0.43 - 0.43 -
Total Stage 1 7.44 1.00 6.44 0.02 0.98
Stage 2 - - - - -
Stage 3 0.43 0.43 - 0.43 -

t) Disclosures asrequired in para 5 of RBI notification - RBI/DNBS/2016-17/49 Master Direction DNBS. PPD.01/
66.15.001/2016- 17 dated 29th September, 2016 ‘Master Direction - Monitoring of Frauds in NBFCs (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016’ to the extent applicable.

The frauds detected and reported for the period amounted to Nil (Previous year Nil).

u) Disclosures asrequired in para 116 of RBI notification - RBI/DoR/2021-22/85 DoR.STR.REC.53/21.04.177/
2021-22 dated 24th September, 2021 ‘Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Securitisation of Standard
Assets) Directions, 2021 to the extent applicable

Disclosures to be made in Notes to Accounts by originators - Not applicable

v) Disclosures as required in para 86 of RBI notification - RBI/DoR/2021-22/86 DoR.STR.REC.51/21.04.048/
2021-22 dated 24th September, 2021 ‘Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Transfer of Loan Exposures)
Directions, 2021 to the extent applicable.

a) Details of loans (not in default) transferred / acquired during the year - NIL

o

) Details of stressed loans transferred during the year - NIL

(@)

)  Details of stressed loans acquired during the year - NIL
d) During the year excess provisions of NIL reversed to the profit and loss account on Accounts of sale of stressed
e) Details onrecovery ratings assigned for Security Receipts (SR) by the credit rating agencies: NIL
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Note 58 :Disclosure as required by circular no RBI/2022-23/26-DoR.ACC.REC.No0.20/21.04.018/2022-23
A) Exposure

1) Exposure to real estate sector (All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at Asat
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

i) Directexposure
a) Residential Mortgages -

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will
be occupied by the borrower or that is rented. Exposure would also include
non-fund based (NFB) limits. 0.22 0.59

b) Commercial Real Estate -

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estate (office buildings,
retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, multifamily residential
buildings, multi tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse
space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, etc.).
Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits. 6.87 6.87

c) Investments in Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS) and other
securitized exposures —
i. Residential - -

ii. Commercial Real Estate

ii) Indirect Exposure

Fund based and non-fund-based exposures on National Housing Bank and
Housing Finance Companies.

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector _ 109 __ 7146
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Note 58 :Disclosure as required by circular no RBI/2022-23/26-DoR.ACC.REC.No0.20/21.04.018/2022-23

2) EXPosure to capltal market (All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at Asat
March 31,2025 March 31,2024

i) Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures
and units of equity oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively
invested in corporate debt 8,466.22 8,282.05

ii) Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean
basis to individuals for investment in shares (including IPOs/ESOPs), convertible
bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity oriented mutual funds - -

iii) Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as
primary security - -

iv) Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security
of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity
oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares /
convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual
funds does not fully cover the advances - -

v) Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on
behalf of stockbrokers and market makers 17.64 13.20

vi) Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds /
debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter’s contribu-
tions to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising resources - -

vii) Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues - -

viii) Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of primary issue
of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity
oriented mutual funds - -

ix) Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading

x) All exposures to Alternative Investment Funds:

i) Category 104.57 52.53
ii) Category Il 63.14 62.17
iii) Category III 134.30 124.08
Total exposure to capital market 8,785.87 8,534.03
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Note 58 :Disclosure as required by circular no RB1/2022-23/26-DOR.ACC.REC.No0.20/21.04.018/2022-23 dated
April 19, 2022

3) Sectoral exposure

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Total Exposure Gross  Percentage of Total Exposure  Gross Percentage of
(includes on NPAs  Gross NPAs to (includes on NPAs  Gross NPAs to
Particulars balance sheet and total exposure balance sheet total exposure
off-balance sheet in that sector and off-balance in that sector
exposure) sheet exposure)
1. Agriculture and
Allied Activities" - - - - - -
2. Industry - - - - - -
Total of Industry - - - - - -
3. Services
Financial Services 4.10 - 0.00% 4.10 - 0.00%
Healthcare 1,500.00 - 0.00% - - 0.00%
Hospitality 0.50 - 0.00% 0.50 - 0.00%
Total of Industry 1,504.60 — 0.00% 4.60 - 0.00%
4. Personal Loans
Personal Loan to Employees
House Building Loan 0.22 0.11 4.30% 0.59 042 12.86%
Consumer Durable Loan - - 0.00% 0.01 0.01 0.40%
Personal Loan 0.07 - 0.00% 0.20 - 0.00%
Personal Loan - Others 2.27 - 0.00% 2.47 - 0.00%
Total of Personal Loans 2.56 0.11 3.27 0.43
4) Intra-group exposures
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
i)  Totalamount of intra-group exposures 1,500.00 -
ii) Total amount of top 20 intra-group exposures 1,500.00 -
iii) Percentage of intra-group exposures to total
exposure of the NBFC on borrowers/customers 99.53 % -
5) Unhedged foreign currency exposure

The Company does not have any unhedged foreign currency exposure.

121



THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

q.,_.l"'r

1444
1444

¥202Z ‘1€ WreW

90¢€
90€

G202 ‘1€ Y2re|

uewispnquiQ Jo 2030 woyy JAGN Ui Aq paniedal sjurejdwiod a[qeurejureul jo laquinN G

IeaA ay} Jo pua ayj Je Suipuad sjurejdwod Jo JquinN b

D49N 241 Aq paafal spurejdwod Jo laquinu ‘YoIym i 1'¢ 1°¢
IeaA ay) Suump pasodsip sjurejdwod Jo 12quInn c

IeaA ay} Buunp paaladal spurejdwod Jo JaquinN Z

IeaA ay} Jo Butuuibaq je Suipuad sjure[dwod Jo 1 QUINN] 1

s1awo}snd s} wox JAGN 24} Aiq paaradraix sjurejduo)

‘oN

je sy je sy sienoiued CIg
SIawoIsnd wokj sJGN @Yl AQ paniedal sjurejdwod Uo Uoewliojul Arewung
sjurejdwod jo amsopsiq (O
UoIsInoid JO 12N
68'¢Sl | 8756 09'6GL | G8'TLS | 99V0€ | S9°0€c |0€9¥g | €1'6LT | 8226l | €6'9ET | — 1 Lg91 0672 (1'8Y -210N 1ejey) sasuadxy
- - Y999 SCyo1r | — - - - Y999 SCYo1 | — - - - uonesauUNWY
7826 06'€8T | ¥8'¢6 06€8T | — - - - - - - - ¥8'26 06'€81 pantadal jsalaju
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - pred jsa1aju]
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - Sjassy Jayi/paxiy Jo aeg
- c6'L - 6L — — — — — — - 800 - 181 sjasse Jayl0/paxid Jo aseyoing
00°08LT| 00°00S°Z | 00'08LT| 00°005°Z | — - - - - - - - 00°08L°T [ 000052 SaInjuaqa(] Ul sjuausanu]
0008T | 00°08T [0008T |0008T | — - - - - - - - 00°08T |0008T saleyg aduaiajaid Ul sjususanu]
89'GLE'T| 65 L6Y'T | 89GLET| 6SL6V'T | — - - - - - €99 €99 G0'69€'T | 96'06%'T 4S2Ieys Amb ur sjususanu
LZ9¢ 29°G1S'T | L2392 29'SIST| — - - - - - L2892 ¢9¢1T | — 00°00G°T SedURAPY pue sueo]
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - spsodap Jo juawiaoe|d
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - spsoda(
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - sBuimoniog
$202 - | S20%-TeW | $20g-TeN | S20T-TeN | ¥g0g TN | SE0Z-TeW | $20g-TeN| S20Z-N | H20g TN | SG0Z-TeW | YZ0GTeN | GE0CTN | Y202TeN | SE0TTEIN
Teafi ayy Supmp [ouu0siag
Burpuejsno Juawadeue)y amjua\ Jurop
Junoure WNWIXep eyo1 sasudiajug dnoxg fiay] Jo sanyejay Juawabeueyy fay] | sayerdossy saueIpisqng srenoneq

(pa1els asIMIayjo Ssajun ‘UOI[Ijl 2 Ul SJunowe [[y)

amso[osi(q Aued paje|ay (d

2202 ‘61 11dy paiep £2-220%/810°¥0°12/0¢ °N'OTH IOV HOA-92/€3-3302/I9H OU 1e[nd11d iq paiinbai se amso[asi(q: 8S 210N

(penuiuo)) sjuawialelg jeroueurj auo[epuelg ayj 0} SajoN

122



9).,_.5*
THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 58 :Disclosure as required by circular no RB1/2022-23/26-DOR.ACC.REC.No0.20/21.04.018/2022-23 dated

April 19, 2022

For the year ended March 31, 2025

Grounds of
complaints, (i.e.
complaints relating
to)

Number of complaints
pending at the
beginning of the year

Number of
complaints received
during the year

% increase/decrease
in the number

of complaints
received over the
previous year

Number of
complaints pending
at the end of the
year

Of 5, number of
complaints pending
beyond 30 days

Complaints related - 306 37% - -
to Deposits
Total - 306 - - -

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Grounds of
complaints, (i.e.
complaints relating
to)

Number of complaints
pending at the
beginning of the year

Number of
complaints received
during the year

% increase/decrease
in the number

of complaints
received over the
previous year

Number of
complaints pending
at the end of the
year

Of 5, number of
complaints pending
beyond 30 days

Complaints related - 224 18.00% - -
to Deposits
Total - 224 - -

D) Breach of covenant

The Company has not availed any loan nor issued any debt securities during the year.

E) Divergence in Asset Classification and Provisioning

No additional provisioning requirements assessed/identified by Reserve Bank of India during the current year and previous year.

Note 59: Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise deposit from public and trade payables. The Company’s
financial assets include loan and advances, investments, cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its
operations.

The Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company’s Board of Directors has an
overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The Board
of Directors is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The Company’s
identifies and analyses the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor
risks and adherence to limits. Risk management systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and the Company’s activities.

The Company’s Board of Directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk
management procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced
by the Company.

1) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter-party to financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and loans.
The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

a) Loans and Advances

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including
the default risk associated with the industry. Each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before
the Company’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Company’s review includes
external ratings, if they are available, financial statements, credit agency information, industry information etc.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk for loans and advances by type of counterparty is as follows:

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Loan to Corporates 4.60 4.60
Loanto Individuals 2.27 2.47
Loan to employees 0.29 0.80
Inter-Corporate Deposit 1,500.00 -
1,507.16 7.87
Less: Impairment (4.11) (1.43)

1,503.05 6.44

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date based on the facts and circumstances existing on that date to
identify expected losses on account of time value of money and credit risk. For the purposes of this analysis, the loan
receivables are categorised into groups based on days past due. Each group is then assessed for impairment using the ECL
model as per the provisions of Ind AS 109 - financial instruments.

Expected Credit Loss (ECL):

ECL on financial assets is an unbiased probability weighted amount based out of possible outcomes after considering risk
of credit loss even if probability is low.

The ECL provision is based on actual credit loss experience over past years. These provisions are then adjusted
appropriately to reflect differences between current and historical economic conditions and the Company’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the loan receivables. Movement in provision of expected credit loss has been provided
in below note:

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Openingprovision of ECL 1.43 2.21
Addition during the year 3.98 -
Utilization / reversal during the year (1.30) (0.78)
Closing provision of ECL 4.11 1.43

Cash and cash equivalent, Bank deposits and Investments

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent, bank deposits and investments is limited as the Company generally invests in term
deposits with banks, government securities, bonds and debentures, term deposit with other NBFC which are good rated
based on ratings on the date of investment. Investments carried at amortised cost is considered under credit risk.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

2) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with its financial
liabilities. The Company’s approach in managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities
when due. The Company is monitoring its liquidity risk by estimating the future inflows and outflows during the start of
the year and planned accordingly the funding requirement.

The composition of the Company’s liability mix ensures healthy asset liability maturity pattern and well diverse resource
mix. Capital adequacy ratio of the Company, as on March 31 2025 is in excess of the limit prescribed against regulatory
norms of 15%, which may increase from time to time depending on the requirement and also as a source of structural
liquidity to strengthen asset liability maturity pattern.

The Company's investment in Mutual Fund and Equity shares of outside companies are liquid in nature. The utilization
level is maintained in such a way that ensures sufficient liquidity on hand.

The Company has sufficient liquid assets to pay off its financial liabilities on being due for payment.

The table below summarises the carrying value and contractual cash flows of Company’s financial
liabilities :

March 31,2025 (All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)
S1 Particulars Carrying Contractual Less than Between More than
value cash flows 1 year 1 to 5 years 5 years
a) | Payables 153.35 153.35 153.35 - -
b) | Deposits* 0.00 0.00 0.00 - -
c) | Other Financial Liabilities 79.45 79.45 23.41 7.32 48.72
March 31,2024
S1 Particulars Carrying Contractual Less than Between More than
value cash flows 1 year 1 to 5 years 5 years
a) | Payables 156.68 156.68 156.68 - -
b) | Deposits* 0.00 0.00 0.00 - -
c) | Other Financial Liabilities 72.57 72.57 29.84 476 37.97

* The amount is below rounding off norms.

3) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk includes interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. The objective of market risk management
is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

This market isinfluenced by domestic/ international political, financial and other events occurring on day-to-day basis. Hence
the market is constantly volatile and uncertain. The Group has strong treasury philosophies and practices and is well geared
to meet the challenges of volatile market conditions.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

3.1 Interest rate risk

Interestrateriskis therisk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Company does not have any borrowings. The Company does not have an exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates as it has not made any investment which carries variable interest rate.

3.2 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchangerates. The Company engages consultants wherein the payments are made in foreign currency, the amount not being
material has not been hedged. There is no outstanding as on the Balance Sheet date.

3.3 Other price risk:

Other priceriskisrelated to the change in market reference price of the investments which are fairvalued and exposes the Company
to price risks. The carryingamount of financial assets subject to price risk is as below:

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

Financial Assets

Investment in Equity Instruments
Investment in Mutual Fund

Investment in Market Linked Debenture
Investment in Gold ETF

Investment in Alternate Investment Funds
Investment through Portfolio Management
Services and Wealth Management Services

2,351.97
3,992.33
250.00
656.71
104.57

1,963.04
9,318.62

1,967.58
5,251.65

363.90
52.53

1,371.83
9,007.49

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in market prices at the reporting date would have increased/ decreased

profit or loss by amounts shown below:-

Particulars

100 bps increase

100 bps decrease

As at 31 March 2025

Impact on Profit before Tax 93.19 (93.19)
Impact on Equity 69.73 (69.73)
Particulars 100 bps increase 100 bps decrease

As at 31 March 2024
Impact on Profit before Tax
Impact on Equity

90.07
67.40

(90.07)
(67.40)
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

3.4 Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk arising from inadequate or failed internal processes, people or systems, or from external events.
The Group manages operational risks through comprehensive internal control systems and procedures laid down around
various key activities in the Group viz. investment acquisition, IT operations, finance function etc. Management evaluates
key areas of operational risks and the process to adequately mitigate them on an ongoing basis.

Note 60: Revenue from Contract with Customers

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers and reconciliation
to statement of profit and loss:

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Type of Income

Construction ProjectIncome - 2.13

Total revenue from contracts with customers - 2.13

Geographical markets

India - 2.13

OutsideIndia - -

Total revenue from contracts with customers - 2.13

Timing of revenue recognition

Atapointin time - 2.13
Over aperiod of time - -

Total revenue from contracts with customers - 2.13

127



qJ_.f
“*" THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 61: Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Within After Within After
12 months| 12 months Total 12 months | 12 months Total
ASSETS
1) Financial assets
(@) Cash and Cash Equivalents 227.14 - 227.14 114.52 - 114.52
(b) Bank Balances Other Than (a) above 259.02 - 259.02 309.25 - 309.25
(c) Receivables
(I) Other Receivables 2548 - 2548 108.62 - 108.62
(d) Loans 1,496.64 6.41 1,503.05 6.44 - 6.44
(e) Investments 7,455.76 11,157.09 18,612.85 10,709.60 9,492.56 20,202.16
(f) Other Financial Assets 19.42 555 2497 38.04 497 43,01
9,483.46 11,169.05 20,652.51 11,286.47 9,497.53 20,784.00
2) Non-Financial assets
(@) Inventories 9.09 881.00 890.09 3.06 478.86 481.92
(b) Current Tax Assets 1,373.07 - 1,373.07 1,373.07 - 1,373.07
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) - 175.93 175.93
(d) Investment Property - 106.74 106.74 - 196.65 196.65
(e) Property, Plant and Equipment - 187.87 187.87 - 114.52 114.52
(f) Right of Use Asset - 10.96 10.96 - 23.88 23.88
(g0 Other Intangible Assets - 991 991 - 5.67 5.67
(h) Other Non-Financial Assets 384.68 7.09 39177 303.75 34.42 338.17
(i) Asset Held for Sale 83.07 - 83.07 0.16 - 0.16
1,849.91 1,379.50 3,229.41 1,680.04 853.99 2,534.04
TOTAL ASSETS 11,333.37 12,548.55 23,881.92 12,966.51 10,351.52 | 23,318.04
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(1) Financial Liabilities
(a) Payables
(I) Trade Payables

(i) Total Outstanding Dues of Micro
Enterprises and Small Enterprises
(ii) Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors other
than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
(IT) Other Payables
(i) Total Outstanding Dues of Micro
Enterprises and Small Enterprises
(ii) Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors other
than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
(b) Deposits*
(c) OtherFinancial Liabilities

(2) Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) Current Tax Liabiltiies (net)
(b) Provisions

(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (net)
(d) OtherNon-Financial Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET BALANCE

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Within After Within After
12 months | 12 months Total 12 months | 12 months Total
8.82 - 8.82 0.84 - 0.84
47.02 - 47.02 2712 - 27.12
0.21 - 0.21 - - -
97.30 - 97.30 128.72 - 128.72
0.00 - 0.00 0.00 - 0.00
2341 56.04 79.45 37.97 34.60 72.57
176.76 56.04 232.80 194.65 34.60 229.25
1,646.02 - 1,646.02 1,800.51 - 1,800.51
40.31 1491 55.22 12.88 12.40 25.28
_ - - 31.90 - 31.90
28.29 - 28.29 29.32 - 29.32
1,714.62 14.91 1,729.53 1,874.61 12.40 1,887.01
1,891.38 70.95 1,962.33 2,069.26 47.00 2,116.26
9,441.99 12,477.60 21,919.59 10,897.25 10,304.53 | 21,201.78

* The amount is below rounding off norms.

Note 62: Previous Year's figures

Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified to confirm to the presentation of current year's figures.

As per our Report of even date

ForLodha & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIFirmRegistrationNo.301051E/E300284

Indranil Chaudhuri
Partner

Membership No. 058940
Place: Kolkata

Date: June 26,2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

The Peerless General Finance & Investment Company Limited

Jayanta Roy
Managing Director
DIN:00022191

Asoke Kumar Mukhuty
Director-Corporate &
Chief Financial Officer
DIN:00173745

Dipankar Chatterji
Independent Director
DIN:00031256

Udita Dutta
Company Secretary
Membership No. A39589
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of The Peerless General Finance and Investment
Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Parent Company”), its subsidiary companies (the Parent Company
and its subsidiary companies together hereinafter referred to as “the Group”) and share of profit from its Joint Venture
which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss
(including the Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including a summary
of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Financial
Statement”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the
consideration of Reports of other Auditors on Standalone Financial Statements/ Intermediate Consolidated Financial
Statements and on other Financial Information of the subsidiary companies and the joint venture referred to in Other
Matter Section below, except for the matters described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid
Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to
as “the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
notified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended
from time to time (hereinafter referred to as “the Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its Joint Venture as at March 31, 2025, their consolidated profit
(including other comprehensive income), their consolidated cash flows and their consolidated changes in equity the year
ended on that date.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

Refer note no. 62 of the Consolidated Financial Statements which states that following the Directions received from
Reserve Bank of India (hereinafter referred to as “the RBI”), the Parent Company has been transferring the unclaimed
deposits to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) since the financial year 2018-19 as and when these
became due, in terms of the provisions of the Act. The additional demand for the interest earned by the Parent Company
on these unclaimed deposits over the years has been contested by the Parent Company before the Division Bench of
Hon’ble High Court of Calcutta. The matter being sub-judice pending the decision of the High Court, reliance has been
placed by us on the legal advice obtained by the Parent Company with respect to the said matter and other matters
connected therewith, and the impact in this respect on the Profit for the year and Other Equity and compliance/ impact
with/ on legal and other requirements cannot be ascertained and accordingly the comments on the adjustments/
compliances cannot be made by us.

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(hereinafter referred to as “the SAs”) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the “Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section
of our report. We are independent of the Group and its Joint Venture in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (hereinafter referred to as “the ICAI”) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence
obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in ‘Other Matters’ section below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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EMPHASIS OF MATTER

a. Attention is drawn to the note no. 71 of the Consolidated Financial Statements, in respect of restatement of previous
periods’ financial statements due to the reasons stated in the said note. Impacts in this respect have duly been
incorporated and stated therein.

b. Further to above, we also draw attention to the note no. 72 of the Consolidated Financial Statements, dealing
with the acquisition of Ayursundra Hospitals (Guwahati) Private Limited by Peerless Hospitex Hospitals and Research
Centre Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘PHHRCL’) as its wholly owned subsidiary (step down subsidiary of the
Parent) pursuant to the resolution plan submitted by PHHRCL under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process
(CIRP) approved by NCLT, Guwahati vide it’s Order dated December 20, 2024 and recognition of Goodwill
amounting to Rs. 341.54 million arising on consolidation of the said step-down subsidiary in these Financial
Statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above-mentioned matter.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’
REPORT THEREON

The Parent Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Annual Report but does not include Consolidated Financial Statements, Standalone
Financial Statements and our Auditors’ Report thereon. Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report with
respect to the above.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Parent Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation and presentation of these Consolidated Financial Statements in terms of the requirement of the Act
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance (including other
comprehensive income), consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group and its Joint Venture
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS. The respective Board
of Directors of the Companies included in the Group and its Joint Venture are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and its Joint
Venture and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in
the Group and its Joint Venture are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective companies to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate their respective companies or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group and its Joint Venture are also responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of their respective companies.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole
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are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken based on these Consolidated Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls;

e Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Company, its Subsidiary Companies and Joint Venture have adequate internal financial controls
with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements made by the Management and Board of Directors;

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the ability of the Company, its Subsidiary Companies and Joint Venture to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report
to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company, its Subsidiaries and Joint Venture to cease to continue as
a going concern;

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group and its Joint Venture to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision, and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors
remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further described in paragraph (a)
of the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph of this audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Company of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

OTHER MATTER

a. We did not audit one Financial Statements of one subsidiary company whose Consolidated Financial Statements
reflect total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 7,962.03 million as on March 31, 2025, total revenue
(before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 3,535.69 million, total net profit after tax (before consolidation adjustments)
of Rs. 45.88 million, total comprehensive income (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 41.86 million as
considered for the purpose of consolidation and net cash flows (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 549.87
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million for the year ended on that date. This Consolidated Financial Statement of the said subsidiary company
and other financial information as considered for the purpose of consolidation have been audited by other auditors
whose report has been furnished to us by the management of the Parent Company and our opinion on these
Consolidated Financial Statements insofar as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this
Subsidiary Company and our report in terms of sub section (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, insofar as
it relates to the aforesaid Subsidiary Company is based solely on the report of the other auditor.

We did not audit Financial Statements/ Financial Information of 4 (four) subsidiary companies whose Financial
Statements/ Financial Information reflect the total assets of Rs. 2,535.04 million, total revenue of Rs. 1,114.06
million, total net profit after tax of Rs. 177.01 million, total comprehensive income of Rs. 171.92 million and net
cash outflow amounting to Rs. 228.87 million for the year ended on that date as considered in Consolidated Financial
Statements. The Financial Statements/ Financial Information also includes group’s share of net profit of Rs. 9.70
million, other comprehensive income of Rs. 0.12 million and Total Comprehensive Income of Rs. 9.82 million for
the year ended March 31, 2025 as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statement in respect of the Joint Venture.
These Financial Statements/ Financial Information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been
furnished to us by the management of the Parent Company and our opinion on the Consolidated Financial
Statement, insofar as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiary companies,
joint venture and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, insofar as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiary companies and joint venture, is based on the reports of the other auditors of respective entities.

The audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 was conducted and reported
by the predecessor auditor who had expressed modified opinion vide their audit report dated June 10, 2024.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and our report on “Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1.

With respect to the matters specified in clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2020 (hereinafter referred to as “the Order/ CARQ”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of section 143 of the Act, according to the information and explanation given to us and based on
our reports and on consideration of the reports of Other Auditors on Intermediate Consolidated Financial Statements,
Financial Statements and Other Financial Information of Subsidiary Companies and Joint Venture, to which
reporting under CARO is applicable, as noted in Other Matters paragraph, we report that the remarks given in
the CARO report of the respective companies, except given below, are neither qualification, nor adverse in nature:

Name of the Entity CIN Parent, Subsidiary, Clause no. of the
Step-down Subsidiary, CARO report which is
Joint Venture qualified or is adversee

The Peerless General Finance U64990WB1932PLC007490 Parent Company (i)(c), (vii)(b)

and Investment Company Limited

Peerless Hotels Limited U55101WB1990PLC049988 Subsidiary Company (i)(c), (vii)(b)

Peerless Financial Products U70109WB1987PLC042819 Subsidiary Company (i)(c), (vii)(b)

Distribution Limited

Peerless Hospitex Hospital & U85110WB1989PLC046938 Subsidiary Company (vii)(b)

Research Center Limited

Peerless Financial Services Limited U65993WB1988PLC044077 Subsidiary Company (vii)(b), (xvii)

Ayursundra Hospitals (Guwahati)

Private Limited U85110AS2007PTC008546 Step-down Subsidiary (ix)(a), (xwii)

Bengal Peerless Housing U70101WB1994PLC063280 Joint Venture (vii)(b)

Development Company Limited
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2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act and based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of the other
auditors on the financial statements and other financial information of subsidiary companies and joint venture, as
stated in “Other Matters” paragraph above, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a)

b)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to the preparation of the aforesaid
Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept by the Parent Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors except for the matters stated in 3(vi) below
on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to
time;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation
of the Consolidated Financial Statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
notified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended from time to time;

The matter described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, may not have an
adverse effect on the functioning of the Group and its Joint Venture;

Based on the written representations received from the Directors of the Parent Company as on March 31, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company and as per the reports of the statutory auditors
of its subsidiary companies and joint venture, incorporated in India, none of the Directors of the Group Companies
and the Joint Venture, incorporated in India, are disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as
a Director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated
in paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 3(vi) below on reporting
under rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014; and

With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A” which
is based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent Company and its subsidiary companies and its joint venture
which have been audited under the Act. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Internal Financial Control with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements
of the companies included in the Group and its Joint Venture incorporated in India.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended from time to time), in our opinion and to the best of information
and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on the
intermediate consolidated financial statements, financial statements and also the other financial information of the
Subsidiary Companies and its Joint Venture as noted in “Other Matters” paragraph above we report, to the extent
applicable, that:

i.

Pending litigations (other than those already recognized in the consolidated Financial Statement) having material
impact on the financial position of the Group and its Joint Venture have been disclosed in the Consolidated
Financial Statements as required in terms of accounting standards and provisions of the Act — refer note 60
to the Consolidated Financial Statements;
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ii.

iii.

iv.

Vi.

The Group and its Joint Venture did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

Except to the extent mentioned in the Basis of Qualified Opinion relating to sub-judice and disputed matter
of transfer of amounts demanded by the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) as mentioned in note
62 of the Consolidated Financial Statements, there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be
transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Group and its Joint Venture.

a. The respective management of the Companies forming part of the Group and its Joint Venture, which are
companies incorporated in India and whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have
represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary companies and joint venture, as the case may
be, that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by these Companies to or in any other persons or entities, including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of these Companies (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The respective management of the Companies forming part of the Group and its Joint Venture, which are
companies incorporated in India and whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have
represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary companies and joint venture, as the case may
be, that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in
aggregate) have been received by the these Companies from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that these Companies
shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on the audit procedures, that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
performed by us and that performed by the other auditors of the Subsidiary Companies and Joint Venture,
which are companies incorporated in India and whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act, nothing has come to our or other auditors’ notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, as stated under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the Parent Company, its 2 subsidiary
companies and joint venture during the year, is in accordance with the provisions of Section 123 of the Act
to the extent applies to the payment of dividend. The interim dividend declared and paid by the Parent Company
during the year is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to payment of dividend.

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company and two subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated
in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, where applicable, have proposed final
dividend for the year during their respective Board Meetings which is subject to the approval of the members
of the Parent and its subsidiary companies at the ensuing respective Annual General Meetings. Such dividends

proposed are in accordance with the provisions of section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to declaration
of dividends.

Relying on information, publication and other explanations provided by the Parent Company, reports of the
respective auditors of the subsidiary companies and joint venture and test checks carried out on the software
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application, we report that, in our opinion, the Parent Company, its Subsidiary Companies and Joint Venture
use accounting software for maintaining their books of account having feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and that has been operating throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software,
and the edit logs have been preserved as per the applicable statutory requirements, save and except as listed
below:

e Parent Company- The Parent Company maintains the records for property, plant and equipment and investments
manually and hence audit trail feature is not applicable to those records. In SAP for Human Resources
department the audit trail at database level being not available as such cannot be commented upon by us.

In respect of Peerless Hospitex Hospital & Research Center Limited, the auditor has reported that audit trail feature
was not enabled at the database level to log any direct data changes.

In respect of Ayursundra Hospitals (Guwahati) Private Limited, the books of accounts is stated to be maintained
in electronic mode using accounting software, but it does not have the feature of recording an audit trail (edit log),
or where such a feature exists, the same was not enabled and accordingly was not operating throughout the year
for all transactions recorded. Consequently, the requirements relating to the maintenance and preservation of audit
trail as mandated has not been complied with.

In respect of Peerless Financial Services Limited, as stated by the statutory auditors, the feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the application and database level to log any direct data changes. Therefore,
the Company has not maintained and preserved audit trail, as per the applicable statutory requirements for record
retention.

In respect of Peerless Hotels Limited, as reported by the statutory auditor in case of software for supporting specific
functions and operations namely recording of attendance does not have feature of recording audit trail. Audit trail
has not been enabled at the database level.

4. With respect to the other matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, and based on the Auditors’ Report of the subsidiary companies and joint venture, incorporated in India,
the remuneration (including sitting fees) paid by the Parent Company and such subsidiary companies and joint
venture to their respective Directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act.

FOR LODHA & CO LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FIRM’S REGISTRATION NO: 301051E/ E300284

INDRANIL CHAUDHURI

(PARTNER)

PLACE: Kolkata MEMBERSHIP NO. 058940
DATE: duly 26, 2025 UDIN: 25058940BMMIRJ4860

140



9"..,_.#'
THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Referred to in point (f) of paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date) to the members of The
Peerless General Finance and Investment Company Limited.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Consolidated

Financial Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company as of and for the year ended
March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements
of The Peerless General Finance and Investment Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) and
refer to in “Other Matters” paragraph in our Independent Auditor’s Report of even date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company are responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal Financial Controls
based on the internal control with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group and its Joint Venture
and the respective Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls with reference to the intermediate consolidated financial statements or standalone financial statements and
other financial information based on the criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (hereinafter referred to as “the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(hereinafter referred to as “the ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to the respective Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial
Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by ICAI and
the Standards on Auditing specified Under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internal Financial Controls with reference
to the Consolidated Financial Statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls
system with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
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financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of Internal
Financial Controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors of the
subsidiary companies and joint venture, which are companies incorporated in India, in terms of their reports referred
to in the “Other Matters” paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

A company's Internal Financial Control with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's Internal
Financial Control with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Because of the inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the Internal Financial Controls with
reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Parent Company and such companies incorporated in India, which are its subsidiary companies
have in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements
and such internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements was operating effectively
as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal financial control with reference to the consolidated financial statements
criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.
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OTHER MATTERS

Our aforesaid report under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements in so far as it relates to 5 subsidiary companies
and 1 joint venture as on the balance sheet date, which are companies incorporated in India, is based solely on the
corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India. Our opinion is not modified in respect
of the above matter.

FOR LODHA & CO LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM’S REGISTRATION NO: 301051E/ E300284

INDRANIL CHAUDHURI

(PARTNER)
PLACE: Kolkata MEMBERSHIP NO. 058940
DATE: July 26, 2025 UDIN: 25058940BMMIRJ4860
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

Particulars
ASSETS

(1) Financial Assets
(a) Cashand Cash Equivalents
(b) BankBalances otherthan Cash and Cash Equivalents
(c) Receivables
(i) Trade Receivables
(ii) Other Receivables
(d) Loans
(e) Investments
(f) OtherFinancial Assets

Sub Total

(2) Non-Financial Assets
(a) Inventories
b) CurrentTaxAssets (Net)
c) Deferred TaxAssets (Net)
d) InvestmentProperty
e) Property, Plantand Equipment
f) Capital Work-In-Progress
g) Intangible Assets Under Development
h) Goodwill on Consolidation
i) OtherIntangible Assets
(j) RightofUseAssets
(k) InvestmentindointVenture
() OtherNon-Financial Assets
(m) Assets Held for Sale

Sub Total

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(1) Financial Liabilities
(a) Payables
(I) Trade Payables
(i) Total Outstanding Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
(ii) Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
(I) Other Payables
(i) Total Outstanding Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
(ii) Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
(b) Borrowings
(c) Deposits
(d) OtherFinancial Liabilities
Sub Total
(2) Non-Financial Liabilities

(a) CurrentTax Liabilities (Net)

(b) Provisions

(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
(d) OtherNon-Financial Liabilities

Sub Total
TOTAL LIABILITIES

(3) Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital
(b) OtherEquity

Equity Attributable to the Owners of the Holding Company
(c) Non-ControllingInterest
TOTAL EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Asat As at As at
Notes March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
5 1,275.96 842.31 324.24
6 1,487.45 1,393.30 890.48
7.1 395.69 308.76 302.43
72 28.99 112.34 39.02
8 7.21 7.17 729.20
9 14,737.66 17,426.46 17,158.67
10 303.50 314.61 238.47
18,236.46 20,404.95 19,682.51
11 975.35 555.88 105.18
12 1,533.89 1,434.16 1,490.37
13 178.30 1.88 86.40
14 63.72 151.57 595.08
15 3,134.03 2,067.00 1,485.13
16 2,050.16 981.54 457.43
17 - 7.55 7.55
18.1 361.55 20.01 20.01
182 17.21 12.32 10.43
19 16.53 32.95 36.60
20 585.74 654.79 611.80
21 741.93 770.59 331.86
22 83.07 0.16 -
9,741.48 6,690.40 5,237.84
27,977.94 27,095.35 24,920.35
23

63.11 42.95 30.57
529.09 460.50 266.81
5.89 1.57 -
144.24 218.18 83.97
24 0.43 - 35.71
25 0.00 0.00 0.01
26 346.19 84.85 119.62
1,088.95 808.05 536.69
27 1,646.02 1,804.81 1,800.47
28 218.77 151.19 154.57
29 259.75 219.18 132.84
30 159.45 111.58 109.62
2,283.99 2,286.76 2,197.50
3,372.94 3,094.81 2,734.19
31 331.56 331.56 331.56
32 24,122.11 23,520.68 21,722.18
24,453.67 23,852.24 22,053.74
151.33 148.30 132.42
24,605.00 24,000.54 22,186.16
27,977.94 27,095.35 24,920.35

1-4

As per our Report of even date

For Lodha & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 301051E/ E300284

Indranil Chaudhuri
Partner

Membership No. 058940
Place: Kolkata

Date: July 26, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
The Peerless General Finance & Investment Company Limited

Partha Sarathi Bhattacharyya Jayanta Roy

Chairman Managing Director
DIN: 00329479 DIN: 00022191
Asoke Kumar Mukhuty Udita Dutta

Company Secretary
Membership No. A39589

Director Corporate &
Chief Financial Officer
DIN:00173745
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THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

CONSOL]DATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS (Allamounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Yearended Year ended
Particulars Notes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(1)) Revenue from Operations
(i)  Interestlncome 33 678.10 884.13
(ii)  DividendIncome 34 60.53 47.07
(ii) Rentallncome 35 54.77 53.44
(iv) Feesand CommissionIncome 36 343.05 298.12
(v)  Net Gain on Fair Value Changes 37 676.61 2,110.65
(vi) SaleofProducts 38 292.16 292.92
(vii) Sale of Services 39 3,785.88 3,503.97
(viii) Revenue from Sale of Constructed Properties 40 - 213
(ix) OtherOperatingRevenue 41 91.36 94.32
Total Revenue from Operations 5,982.46 7,286.75
(I Other Income 42 774.27 293.39
(Il  Total Income (I+1I) 6,756.73 7,580.14
(IV)  Expenses
(i)  FinanceCosts 43 13.57 9.58
(i) Feesand Commission Expense 44 96.05 69.04
(ili) NetLossonDe-recognition of Financial Instruments under Amortised Cost Category 45 0.06 269.02
(iv) Impairmentof Financial Instruments 46 176.70 (235.06)
(v)  CostofMaterials Consumed 47 932.32 843.63
(vi) Purchase of Stockin Trade 48 63.15 78.30
(vii) Costof Constructionand Development 49 408.17 20.17
(viii) Changesin Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and Work-in-Progress 50 (408.66) (20.49)
(ix) EmployeeBenefits Expenses 51 1,419.93 1,243.58
(x)  Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment Expenses 52 180.87 126.13
(xi) OtherExpenses 53 2,552.08 2,264.86
Total Expenses 5,434.24 4,668.76
(\")} Profit before Exceptional Item, Share of Profit in Joint Venture and Tax (III - IV) 1,322.49 2,911.38
(VI)  Exceptionalitem 65 - (98.42)
(VII) Profit before Share of Profit in Joint Venture And Tax (V - VI) 1,322.49 3,009.80
(VIII) Share of Profitin Joint Venture 9.70 160.26
(IX) Profit Before Tax (VII + VIII) 1,332.19 3,170.06
X) Tax expenses : 53
Current Tax 450.57 408.15
Income Tax for Earlier Years (197.92) (150.59)
Deferred Tax (194.41) 174.18
Total Tax Expenses 58.24 431.74
(XI)  Profit After Tax (IX-X) _1,273.95 _2,738.32
(XII) Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans 58 (7.71) (14.16)
Income Tax relating to Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss 53 2.66 3.34
Share of Profit of Joint Venture (net of tax) 0.11 0.11
Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) (Net of Tax) (4.94) (10.71)
(XIII) Total Comprehensive Income for the year (Comprising Profit and
Other Comprehensive Loss for the year) (XI+ XII) 1,269.01 2,727.61
(XIV) Profit for the year attributable to
Owners of the Parent Company 1,269.19 2,720.63
Non-ControllingInterest 4.76 17.69
(XV) Other Comprehensive Loss attributable to
Owners of the Parent Company (4.64) (10.49)
Non-ControllingInterest (0.30) (0.22)
(XVI) Total Comprehensive Income for the year (XIV + XV)
Owners of the Parent Company 1,264.55 2,710.14
Non-ControllingInterest 4.46 17.47
Earnings Per Equity Share of Par Value of ¥100 each 56 382.80 820.56
Basic & Diluted (%)
Summary of Material Accounting Policies 1-4
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Lodha & Co LLP The Peerless General Finance & Investment Company Limited

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 301051E/ E300284 Partha Sarathi Bhattacharyya

Chairman

Indranil Chaudhuri DIN: 00329479

Partner . Asoke Kumar Mukhuty
Membership No. 058940 Director Corporate &
Place: Kolkata Chief Financial Officer
Date: July 26, 2025 DIN:00173745

Jayanta Roy
Managing Director
DIN: 00022191

Udita Dutta
Company Secretary
Membership No. A39589
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THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Particulars

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit Before Tax

Adjustments
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment
Share of Profit in Joint Venture
Reversal of Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment
Net Loss on De-recognition of Financial Instruments under Amortised Cost Category
Impairment of Financial Instruments
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net)
Profit on Sale of Right in Property (Net)
Profit on Sale of Assets Held for Sale
Loss on Sale/ Discard of Property, Plant and Equipment
& Intangible Assets under Development
Interest income
Interest on Income Tax Refund
Dividend income
Loss on Sale of Loan Portfolio
Net Gain on Fair Value Changes
Gain on Closure of Lease Agreements
Finance Costs
Provision No Longer Required Written Back

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes, Dividend and Interest

Movements in Working Capital
(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories
(Increase)/ Decrease in Loan & Other Receivables
(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Financial & Non-Financial Assets
(Decrease)/ Increase in Provisions & Other Payables
(Decrease)/ Increase in Deposits
(Decrease)/ Increase in Other Financial & Non-Financial Liabilities

Cash From Operating Activities before Dividend and Interest
Interest Received
Dividend Received

Cash from Operating Activities
Income Taxes (Net)

Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (Including Capital Work-in-Progress)
Proceeds from Sale of Assets
Proceeds from Sale of Other Investments (net)
Acquisition of Business (Refer note no. 72)
Investment in Deposits and Escrow Accounts (Net)

Net Cash Generated from Investing Activities

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finance Costs
Dividend Paid
Proceeds from/ (Repayment of) Borrowings
Outflow on account of buyback
Repayment of Lease Liability

Net Cash used in Financing Activities

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
March31,2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

1,332.19 3,170.06
180.87 126.13
(9.70) (160.26)

- (98.42)

0.06 269.02
176.70 (235.06)

- (0.26)

(16.73) (30.83)
(424.80) (63.41)
10.37 6.62
(678.10) (884.13)
(266.70) (161.17)
(60.53) (47.07)

- 141.69
(676.61) (2,110.65)
(0.30) -
13.57 9.58
(37.34) (27.47
(457.05) (95.63)
(418.36) (450.38)
(9.08) 485.00
(45.99) (259.43)
125.15 396.69

- (0.01)

265.86 (13.28)
(5639.47) 62.96
702.14 899.49
139.41 164.46
302.08 1,126.91
(244.47) (35.82)
57.61 1,091.09
(1,291.02) (775.07)
469.33 108.85
3,341.31 1,809.23
(1,420.00) (235.00)
(59.41) (506.96)
1,040.21 401.05
(13.57) (9.58)
(664.55) (912.79)
0.43 (35.71)

- (0.60)

(1.60) (15.39)
(679.29) (974.07)
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THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 418.53 518.07
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Year 842.31 324.24
Cash acquired through Business Combination 15.12 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 1,275.96 842.31

Foot notes:

i) COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash on Hand 7.36 9.70
Balance with Banks

In Current Accounts 577.09 402.52

In Auto Sweep Deposit 105.34 93.67

In Fixed Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 581.45 335.06
Cheques / Demand Drafts in Hand - 0.12
Stamps in Hand 0.01 0.05
Remittance in Transit 4.71 1.19
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer Note 5) 1,275.96 842.31

ii) The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in IND AS 7 "Statement of Cash
Flows".

iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents do not include any amount which is not available to the Group for its future use.

iv) Changes in Group's Liabilities arising from Financing Activities:

Particulars As at Cash Non As at
March 31, 2024 Flows Cash Flows March 31, 2025
Lease Liabilities 53.13 (1.60) (39.60) 11.93
Total 53.13 (1.60) (39.60) 11.93
Particulars As at Cash Non As at
March 31, 2023 Flows Cash Flows March 31, 2024
Lease Liabilities 52.54 (15.39) 15.98 53.13
Total 52.54 (15.39) 15.98 53.13

v) The Group has paid ¥ 55.72 (Previous Year % 32.89) in cash on account of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure during the year
ended March 31, 2025.

Summary of Material Accounting Policies 1-4

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Lodha & Co LLP The Peerless General Finance & Investment Company Limited
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 301051E/ E300284 Partha Sarathi Bhattacharyya  Jayanta Roy

Chairman Managing Director
Indranil Chaudhuri DIN: 00329479 DIN: 00022191
Partner Asoke Kumar Mukhuty Udita Dutta
Membership No. 058940 Director Corporate & Company Secretary
Place: Kolkata Chief Financial Officer Membership No. A39589
Date: July 26, 2025 DIN:00173745

147



THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

'q._'g

vbeLeve | €€181 1128198 05¥99°6 ¥b'299°L £0°S189 - 860 956 G202 ‘1€ Y21 Je se aouefeq
- - - - - - - - - (zL "ou 210U Jajay) uoneRUIQWO)) SSauIsNg U0 antasay [ende))
- - - - - - - - - ¥oeq Anq JO Junodde UO juBUISNIpY
- - - (00°00T) 00°001 - - - - an1asaY [eIAUdC) O} Iajsuel]
(95°1€€) - (95°1€€) (95°1€€) - - - - - puapiAl] WILIa}u]
(662€€) (€v'T) (95°1€€) (95°1€€) - - - - - puapinl(] [eul]
- - - (€59L2) - €5'9.2 - - - antasay [e1adg o} Jajsuel]
(v6'D) (0c0) (#99) (#99) - - - - - awoou| anisuayaidwo) JayiQ
S6'€LTT 9LV 616921 616921 - - - - - Teafl ayy Joj yyoid
GZ0Z ‘TS YoXely papua iead ayj Joj Aynba ur safuey)
86'899°€C | 0€'8Y1 89°025°€T 09°'61%°6 bbees’L 05'8€5°9 - 860 956 208 ‘10 [11dy je se aoue[eg
fueduwo)
hﬁ“mﬂh_ﬂ antasay an1asay
il
ysazapu| ajqenquye we”"_-m_““”_ \.”,M“wm m_.“.”wwwm =Mu_h“_____“ewwm :oﬁw“..“_n.vam ”M_HMM sxenonaeq
Burjjoguo) fymba i ! 9 : Pa IeH :
1oL “uoN Tafpo g0 snjding 2 an1asay
G203 ‘1€ Y21\ Papua 1ed ) 2y} 10
«AHmby 12Y0 ‘g
9G°1€¢€ v8s's1'se 9G°1€€ v8c'sI'ee Iea) ay} jo pua ay} je aduejeq
- - - - Ieai 2yl Suunp fended aieys Ajnba ur sabuey)
9G'T€EE ¥85'sI'eE 99'TEE ¥8g's1'ee Teax 2y} jo Buluuibeq ay) je aoueleq
[ende) sareyg [ende) areyg
areyg Apmbg jo ‘oN areyg Aymbgz jJo ‘oN sxe[noiueq
V202 ‘1€ Y21eW Ppapud reaq G20% ‘1€ Y21eW Papud reaq
(pa1els SIMIay0 SSajun ‘UOK[[I 3 Ul SJUnowe [[y) [epde) axeyg Ayunbyg -y

$20% ‘1€ HOYVIN A4dNd HVIA FHL HOd ALINOT NI SIONVHO 40 INFWALVLS d3LVvAITOSNOD

148



Jq._';

THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

SYLELTOO:NIA

6856EY 'ON diystaquiajy 120ff0 [o1oudUlq fa1yD
A4p324008 Aundwo) 2 27040di0)) 40102410
eyn( eyupn Ay rewny] ayosy

16122000 ‘NId 6L%62€00 ‘NId

1070241 Suibouppy upwIDY Y

foy ejuefep effireyoepeyq 1yjeieg eyued

panwr] Auedwo)) juawisaau] % 2oueUl] [eIdUDC) SSA[12d 2Y]

JO siopal( Jo pleog 2y} Jo Jleyaq UO pue 1oj

6202 ‘92 Anp :a3eQq
ejeyjoy] :ade|d

0%6850 "ON diysraquajy
Iaujred

unypney) [lueipuj

$8200€3 /41G0T0E "ON uonensiBay wilf [yO[
SJURIUNODY palajiey)

dT1 00 % 'ypoT 104
a3ep uana jo poday o 1ad sy

SJuaWiaje)g [elourUl] pajepijosuo)) ay} jo ped [eibajur ue wiioj sajou SurAuedwodde ay |

p-1 SaII[04 BURUNO29Y [eLIBRI] JO ATeWWNG
7€ "ON @jou Jaja1 Aynba 1ayjo Jo swieyl 2y} jo uonduosap 1o

86'899°€C | 0€'8Y1 8902562 09°'61%°6 bhees’L 05'8€5'9 - 860 956 9203 ‘1€ Yo1e e se aouefeq
910 100 ST0 - - - - - ST1°0 (gL "ou 2j0u Jajey) UOPRUIQUIO)) SSaUISNG UO anJasay [ende)
(09°0) (09°0) - (95°0) - - - 950 - 3oeq ANQ JO JUNOJOR UO JuBULSNIPY
- - - (007001) 00001 - - - - aA1aS3Y [RJAUAC) O} IdJSURI]
(es1€¢8) - (es1€8) (es1€¢) . . . . . puspialq wiiaju]
(92°189) (007) (9z°089) (9z°089) - - . . . puapialg [eul]
. - - (LY L) - LY’ Ly - - - an1asay [e10adg 0} Jajsuel]
(1°01) (¢z0) (6¥°01) (6¥°01) - - - - - awoou] aalsuayaidwo) 12yiQ
CE'8EL'T 69'L1 €9°02LT €9°02L'T - - - - - Iea) ayy Ioj joid

$20Z ‘1€ Yoley pepua Ieah ay) loj Aynba ur sabuey)
0995812 | 2v'eel 81°32L12 82°691°8 bresy'L £0°'160°9 - 300 1’6 €207 [11dy IST je se aoue[eq pajejsuiay
(0z°¢8) (Lg2T) (€6°0L) (ev2T) - - (05'8S) - - (T, "ou 2joN lejay) Juswajejsax 0} anp sjuauisnipy /sabuey)
08°'LE6'TC | 69¥VT I1°€6LTT ILI8T'8 bresh'L £0°'160°9 05'8S 200 Iv'6 €207 [1dy 35T je se aouefeq

Auedwo)
wm_u”um_w anrasay anasoy
o | S | S | | e e s | e
Bugjjonuo) fymba
%Emmﬁ%\éw: 0 mmmwoﬁzdo_:__z Mﬂ. ST ) snjdmg 2 an1259Y

Y202 ‘1€ Y21\ papua 1ea ) a3y} 104

$20% ‘1€ HOHYVI @4dNd HVdA FHL 404 ALINOA NI SIONVHO 40 INFWALVLS dd1LvdITOSNOD

149



-

9"..,_.#
THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025

1.

Corporate Information

The Peerless General Finance & Investment Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Company’ or ‘Parent
Company’), the flagship company of the Peerless Group, is a company limited by shares, incorporated on October
25, 1932. The Company is domiciled in India and has its registered office at “Peerless Bhavan” 3, Esplanade
East, Kolkata-700069, West Bengal, India. The Parent Company is registered with Reserve Bank of India as Non-
Banking Financial Company — Investment and Credit Company (NBFC-ICC) vide Registration no. B.05.07111
dated March 31, 2023. The Company has applied to the Reserve Bank of India for conversion of its category
from Type 1 - ND - NBFC - ICC License to Type 2 - ND - NBFC - ICC License.

The Group’s structure is provided below:

S. No. Companies Holding % Relationship
1. Peerless Financial Services Limited 92.57% Subsidiary
2. Peerless Securities Limited 97.40% Subsidiary
3. Peerless Financial Products Distribution Limited 100.00% Subsidiary
3 Peerless Hotels Limited 99.96% Subsidiary
5. Peerless Hospitex Hospital & Research Center Limited 93.94% Subsidiary
6. Ayursundra Hospitals (Guwahati) Private Limited 100.00% Step-down Subsidiary
(w.e.f. December 20, 2024)
7. Bengal Peerless Housing Development Company Limited ~ 36.70% Joint Venture

The country of incorporation and principal place of business of all the companies in the Group is India.

The Parent Company and its subsidiary companies (collectively referred to as ‘the Group’) is in varied sectors
encompassing a broad spectrum of businesses principal amongst which are investing in diversified portfolio across
equity, debt, government securities both directly or through portfolio and wealth management schemes, financial
services, securities broking, distribution of financial products, providing healthcare services, operating hotels &
related services. The Group’s joint venture is primarily in the business of real estate and construction services.

Basis of Preparation
Statement of Compliance

These Consolidated Financial Statements comprising of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, Statement of Profit
and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended have been
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Act’) read with relevant rules of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) (together hereinafter referred to as the “Ind AS”) along with other
relevant provisions of the Act, the Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company
— Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 as amended from time to time and other applicable RBI circulars/
notifications and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with the Ind
AS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”. The Management of the Parent Company (hereinafter referred to
as “Management”) is of the view that the Group and its Joint Venture shall be able to continue its business
for the near future and no material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the going concern
assumption. In making this assessment, the Management has considered a wide range of information relating
to present and future conditions, including future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

The accounting policies have been consistently applied, except in cases where a newly issued Ind AS is initially
adopted or when a revision to an existing Ind AS requires a change in the accounting policy previously in use.
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Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025

22

23

24
241

242

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 were approved by the Company’s
Board of Directors and authorized for issue on July 26, 2025 for consideration and adoption by the shareholders
in its Annual General Meeting.

Presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group and its Joint Venture prepares and presents its Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity in the format prescribed
by Division IIl of Schedule III to the Act. The Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and
presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows'.

A summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information is provided in accordance with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as notified under section 133 of the Act and accounting
principles generally accepted in India.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupee (%), which is also the functional currency
of the Group, in denomination of million with rounding off to two decimals as permitted by Schedule III to
the Act except where otherwise indicated.

Basis of Measurement

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following
assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

- Certain financial assets and liabilities, including derivative instruments if any, that are measured at fair value;
- Assets held for sale measured at fair value or carrying value whichever is lower (if any);

- Defined benefit plan assets measured based on the projected unit credit method;

- Assets and liabilities measured at fair value in accordance with Ind AS 103, Business Combinations.
Recent Pronouncements

Application of new and revised standards

During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Group considered the amendments notified by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (MCA) through the 1st Amendment dated August 12, 2024, the 2nd Amendment dated September 09,
2024, and the 3rd Amendment dated September 28, 2024 to the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015.

These amendments primarily relate to the introduction of Ind AS 117 — Insurance Contracts, along with
consequential changes to other standards including Ind AS 101, 103, 104, 105, 107, 109, and 115, which address
accounting and disclosure requirements for insurance contracts and financial guarantee contracts. The
amendments also include changes to Ind AS 116 — Leases, specifically addressing accounting and disclosure
requirements for sale and leaseback arrangements.

The adoption of these amendments to the extent applicable to the Group did not have impact on the profit
or loss and earnings per share of the Company for the year.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide notification dated May 07, 2025, has amended Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 21 — The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates and Ind AS 101 - First-time Adoption

of Indian Accounting Standards. These amendments are applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after April 01, 2025.
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Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025

25

The key amendment relates to providing guidance for assessing lack of exchangeability between currencies and
estimating the spot exchange rate when a currency is not exchangeable. Additional disclosure requirements have
also been introduced in such scenarios, including the nature and financial effect of the currency in exchangeability,
the estimation methodology used, and risks arising therefrom.

The Group is currently evaluating the impact of these amendments and expects that their application will not
have a material effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Basis of Consolidation

2.5.1 Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other

events in similar circumstances. If an entity in the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in
the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate
adjustments are made to that entity’s financial statements for the purpose of the Consolidated Financial
Statements to ensure uniformity with the Group’s accounting policies.

In accordance with Ind AS 110, Consolidated Financial Statements, the consolidated financial statements combine
like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses, and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries
and entities controlled by the Parent Company. The Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

a) Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee),

b) Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
c¢) The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

The Group re-assesses whether it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above. Consolidation of an entity begins when the Group
obtains control over the entity and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.

The carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary is offset/ eliminated with the parent’s portion
of equity of each subsidiary. Additionally, all assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses, and cash flows relating
to transactions between entities of the group are eliminated.

In accordance with Ind AS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, the Parent Company accounts
for its investments in entities with joint control or significant influence (associates) using the Equity method of
accounting. Under this method, the Group initially recognizes its investment at cost, which is adjusted thereafter
for the post-acquisition change in the Parent Company’s share of the investee’s net assets. The Group’s
consolidated statement of profit and loss includes its share of the investee’s profit or loss, and the Group’s other
comprehensive income includes its share of the investee’s other comprehensive income.

2.5.2 Non-Controlling Interest

Shares of Non—controlling interest in the net profit/ (loss) of subsidiary companies for the year is identified and
adjusted against the equity of the Group in order to arrive at the net equity attributable to the owners of the
Parent. The excess of loss for the year over the non—controlling interest is adjusted in owner’s interest.

2.5.3 Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing Subsidiary Companies

a.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiary companies that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary companies are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary companies. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.
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Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025

b.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable Ind AS). The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under Ind AS
109, or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate.

2.5.4 Business Combination

2.6

27

a. The Group accounts for its business combinations under acquisition method of accounting. Acquisition related
costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities that meet the condition for recognition are recognized at their values at the acquisition
date.

b. Purchase consideration paid in excess of the fair value of net assets acquired is recognized as goodwill. Where
the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities exceed the cost of acquisition, after reassessing the fair
values of the net assets and contingent liabilities, the excess is recognized in capital reserve.

c. The interest of non-controlling shareholders is initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement is made
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling
interest is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share of
subsequent changes in the equity of subsidiaries.

d. Ifabusiness combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured
at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income (OCI), as appropriate.

e. Business combinations arising from transfer of interests in entities that are the under the common control
are accounted at historical cost. The difference between any consideration given and the aggregate historical
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of the acquired entity are recorded in shareholders’ equity.

Use of estimates

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS requires Management of the
Parent Company to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets
and liabilities and disclosures relating to the contingent liabilities as at the date of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported amount of income and expenses for the reporting period.

Accounting estimates can change from period to period. Future results could differ from these estimates.
Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of changes in circumstances
surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the consolidated financial statements in the period
in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer liability takes place either:
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3.1

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair
value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would
use the asset in its highest and best use.

Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy
as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value so as to maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the
use of unobservable inputs.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during
which the change occurred.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above.

Summary of Material Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Consolidated
Financial Statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital Work-in-Progress, Intangible Assets, Investment Property,
Right of Use Assets and Depreciation

3.1.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

a. Freehold land is stated at cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or deemed
cost on the date of transition, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property plant and equipment, if the recognition criteria
are met. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the depreciation is calculated separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. The present value of the
expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset
if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. All additions during the reported year are considered at
cost. The costs of day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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b.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at the end of each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or Loss arising from derecognition of a property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

3.1.2 Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP)

a.

Property, plant, and equipment that are not ready for its intended use as on the reporting date are disclosed
as “Capital work-in-progress”.

Expenditure incurred on assets under construction (including a project) is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment cost, if any, under CWIP. Such costs comprise purchase price of assets including import duties
and non-refundable taxes, expenditure in relation to survey and investigation activities of projects, cost of
site preparation, initial delivery and handling charges, installation, and assembly costs, etc.

Costs including employee benefits, professional fees, depreciation on assets used in construction of project,
interest during construction and other costs that are directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management are
accumulated under “Expenditure Attributable to Construction (EAC)” and subsequently allocated on
systematic basis over major tangible assets, other than land. Net pre-commissioning income/ expenditure is
adjusted directly in the cost of related assets.

3.1.3 Investment Property

a.

Investment Property is a property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both
and are measured initially at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, an investment property is measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of investment property are reviewed at the end
of each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed or when they are permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from such disposal. The difference between
the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of asset is recognized in Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period of derecognition.

3.1.4 Other Intangible Assets

a.

Other intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates
less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing
costs and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.
Expenses on software support and maintenance are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss during the year in which such costs are incurred.

The amortization period and the amortization method for other intangible assets with a finite useful life are
reviewed at each reporting date.

Gains or Loss arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.
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3.1.5 Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation is stated at cost less impairment losses, where applicable. On disposal of a
subsidiary, attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss recognised in
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. On acquisition of an associate or joint venture, the goodwill
arising from such acquisition is included in the carrying amount of the investment and disclosed separately.

3.1.6 Right of Use Assets (ROU Assets)

a. The Group recognizes right-of-use asset at the commencement date of the respective lease. Upon initial

recognition, cost comprises of the initial lease liability, initial direct costs incurred when entering into the leases,
an estimate of the cost of dismantle and removal of the underlying assets. Prepaid lease payments (including
the difference between nominal amount of the deposit and the fair value) are also included in the initial
carrying amount of the ROU Asset. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment loss, if any.

The ROU assets are presented as a separate line in the balance sheet. The residual values, useful lives and
methods of depreciation of ROU Asset are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of ROU Assets.
The related payments are recognized as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers
those payments occurs and are included in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.1.7 Depreciation

Depreciation on items of property, plant and equipment commences when the assets are available for their intended
use. The depreciation method used by the entities within the Group reflects the pattern in which the asset’s future
economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the entity.

Method of Depreciation

Depreciation is charged using Straight Line Method or Written Down Value Method by different entities for various
classes of assets based on the usage of the individual entities.

The estimated useful lives considered are as follows:

Assets Estimated Life in Years
Buildings (including Roads) 05 - 60 years
Plant & Equipment 10 - 15 years
Lifts 15 years
Furniture and fixtures 03 - 10 years
Electrical installations 02 - 10 years
Medical Equipment 03 - 13 years
Office Equipment 03 - 06 years
Computers 03 - 06 years
Vehicles 06 - 10 years
Computer software 03 - 05 years

3.2 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Assessment is conducted at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that a non-financial asset
may be impaired due to events or changes in circumstances indicating that their carrying amounts may not be
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3.3

3.4

realized. If any such indicators exist, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. An impairment loss is
recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the greater of the assets or cash generating units’ (CGU’) fair value less cost of disposal, and its value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to assets.

In determining fair value, less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are validated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.
The calculation for impairment is based on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated.

If at the Balance Sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists,
the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the revised recoverable amount, subject to
maximum of the depreciated historical cost.

a. Impairment of Goodwill on Consolidation

A cash-generating unit to which the goodwill has been allocated, is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently, when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to other assets of the unit pro-rata, based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at their respective functional currency using spot rates on
the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
the relevant functional currency at exchange rates at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

The date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to be used on initial recognition
of the related asset or liability, expense or income, is when the Group has received or paid advance consideration
in foreign currency.

Foreign exchange gain or loss to the extent considered as an adjustment to Finance Cost are considered as part
of borrowing cost.

Revenue Recognition

In accordance with Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”, revenue is recognized upon transfer
of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration that the
Group expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.
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The Group has applied the guidance as per Ind AS 115, ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’, by applying
revenue recognition criteria for each distinct performance obligations. For allocating the transaction price, the
Company has measured the revenue in respect of each performance obligation of a contract at its relative selling
price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately is the best evidence of its selling price.
The transaction price of goods sold is net of variable consideration on account of discount, goods and services
tax & such other taxes collected on behalf of third parties, not being economic benefits flowing to the Group.

The Group presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
Performance obligation

Revenue from sale of flats is recognised when the customer obtains control of the same. Revenue from fixed
price contracts, where the performance obligations are satisfied at a point in time and where there is no uncertainty
as to measurement or collectability of consideration, is recognized when the customer obtains the control.

Contract balances

Revenue in excess of billing is classified as contract asset i.e. unbilled revenue while billing in excess of revenue
is classified as contract liability i.e. deferred revenue. Contract assets in the nature of unbilled receivables are
identified as financial assets when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required,
as per contractual terms. Unbilled revenues are classified as non-financial asset if the contractual right to
consideration is dependent on completion of contractual milestones.

Interest & Brokerage Income

The Group and its Joint Venture calculates interest income by applying Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross
carrying amount of financial assets (incl. loans) other than credit impaired assets. When a financial asset becomes
credit impaired and is, therefore, regarded as ‘stage 3’, the Group and its Joint Venture calculates interest income
on the net basis. If the financial asset cures and is no longer credit impaired, the Group and its Joint Venture
reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

In accordance with the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI), income against non-performing assets
is recognised on receipt basis.

Under Ind AS 109, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate method for all financial instruments
measured at amortised cost and financial instrument measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises interest
income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected
life of the financial instrument.

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk, the
adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the balance
sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income. The adjustment is subsequently amortised through Interest
income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Brokerage and commission on other financial products are recognized on confirmation of the transactions.
Income from Services rendered as a Broker

Income from services rendered as a broker is recognised upon rendering of the services on a trade date basis,
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in accordance with the terms of contract, Brokerage and other income earned on secondary market operations
is accounted on trade dates. Advisory services & related income are accounted on accrual basis. Depository
incomes are accounted on cash basis due to uncertainty of realization.

Dividend income

Dividends are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment is established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group, and the amount
of dividend can be measured reliably.

Commission on Insurance Products

Commission on Insurance Products is recognized on the commencement or renewal of the related policies on
receipt of necessary approval from the Insurer.

Revenue from Real Estate Projects

Revenue is recognised at a Point in Time with respect to sale of real estate units, including land, plots, apartments,
commercial units, as and when the control passes on to the customer which coincides with handing over of
the possession to the customer.

Rental and Maintenance Income

Revenue in respect of rental and maintenance services is recognised over a period of time on accrual basis in
accordance with the terms of the respective contract as and when the company satisfies the performance obligation
by delivering the promised goods and services as per the contractual agreed terms.

Medical and Healthcare Services

The Healthcare services income include revenue generated from outpatients, which mainly consist of activities
for physical examinations, treatments, surgeries and tests, as well as that generated from inpatients, which mainly
consist of activities for clinical examinations and treatments, surgeries, and supply of pharmaceutical and related
products and other fees & charges such as accommodation charges, food & beverages, nursing care etc.

The patient is obligated to pay for healthcare services at amounts estimated to be receivable based upon the
standard rates or at rates determined under reimbursement arrangements. The reimbursement arrangements are
generally with third party administrators. The reimbursement is also made through national, international or local
government programs with reimbursement rates established by statute or regulation or through a memorandum
of understanding.

Other Services

Income from academic courses, establishment charges from Eye Hospital and income from National Neuroscience
Center is recognized on the basis of services rendered and as per the terms of the agreement/ arrangements.

Sale of Products

Sale of Pharmacy products are recognized when the property in the goods or all significant risks and rewards
of their ownership is transferred to the customer and no significant uncertainty regarding the amount of
consideration exists. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable excluding
duties or taxes collected on behalf of the government. Revenue is stated net of returns and discounts wherever
applicable.

Hospitality and related services

Revenue from sale of room, food and beverage sale and banquet services is recognised once the rooms are
occupied, food and beverages are sold, and banquet services have been provided as per the contract with the
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3.5

3.6

3.7

customer. The transaction price of goods sold is net of variable consideration on account of discounts offered
and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

In respect of allied services including income from laundry, communication, etc., revenue is recognised by reference
to the time of service rendered.

Loyalty programme is operated, which allows its eligible customers to earn points based on their spending at
the hotels. The points so earned by such customers are accumulated. The revenues related to award points is
deferred and on redemption of such award points, revenue is measured based on Management’s estimate of
the fair value of the expected awards for which the points will be redeemed.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs consists of interest expense calculated using the EIR as described in Ind AS 109 “Financial
Instruments”.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets
are capitalised as part of the cost of such asset until such time the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use. Qualifying assets are assets which necessarily take substantial period to get ready for their intended use
or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

When the Company borrows funds speci—fically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the borrowing
costs incurred are capitalised. When the Company borrows funds generally and uses them for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset, the capitalisation of the borrowing costs is computed based on the weighted average
cost of all borrowings that are outstanding during the period and used for the acquisition, construction/ exploration,
or erection of the qualifying asset. However, borrowing costs applicable to borrowings made speci—fically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset are excluded from this calculation, until substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale is complete.

Income earned on temporary investment of the borrowings pending their expenditure on the qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Capitalisation of borrowing cost ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
assets for their intended use are complete.

Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.
Government Grants

Government grants are recognized when there is reasonable certainty of realization of the same. Government
Grants related to revenue is credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss on systematic basis over the period
considering the expenditure incurred there against and shown separately under Other Operating Revenue. Grants
which are meant for purchase, construction or otherwise to acquire non-current assets are deducted from costs
of such assets.

Income Tax

The tax expenses for the period comprises of current tax and deferred income tax. Tax is recognized in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in the other
comprehensive income or equity, in which case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or

equity.

3.7.1 Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
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to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities, and the entities in the Group intends either to settle on net basis or to realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.7.2 Deferred Tax

3.8

3.9

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred tax is created on the undistributed profits of the Associate or Joint Venture.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Assets held for Sale

The Group classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying amounts shall be recovered principally
through a sale rather than through continuing use. Sale transactions shall include exchanges of non-current assets
for other non-current assets when the exchange has commercial substance.

Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair value less costs
to sell. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately in the Balance Sheet.

Property, plant and equipment once classified as held for sale are not depreciated. All other assets in the
Consolidated Financial Statements are at amounts for continuing operations, unless otherwise mentioned.

Financial Instruments - Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity. A financial asset or a liability is recognized in balance sheet only when
the group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

3.9.1 Financial Assets

a. Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets measured at amortized cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss as appropriate. All financial assets
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are recognized initially at fair value and in all such cases, other than in the case of financial assets recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
are added thereto. Trade or Other Receivables that do not contain a significant financing component (as
defined in Ind AS 115) are recorded at transaction price.

Subsequent Measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets of the Company are classified in three categories:

- Financial instruments measured at amortized cost
- Financial instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCI’)
- Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

The classification depends on the contractual terms of the cash flows of the financial assets, the Group’s
business model for managing financial assets and in case of equity instruments, the intention of the Group
is relevant whether strategic or non-strategic. The said classification methodology is detailed below:

- Financial instruments measured at amortized cost

Financial instruments are measured at amortized cost if the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of
the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding. These financials assets are measured at amortized cost by using the
EIR, less impairment, if any. The Group recognizes the interest income in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss.

- Financial instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCT’)

Financial instruments are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, if the asset is held
within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The Group measures
financial instruments included within the FVOCI category at each reporting date at fair value with such changes
being recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The Company recognises interest income on these
assets in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

- Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss include assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial Assets are classified as held
for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments. Financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair value recognized
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest and Dividend incomes are recorded in Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognized i.e. removed from the Group’s Balance Sheet when:

- The contractual rights to the cash flow from the financial asset expire; or
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d.

- The Group has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement? and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Impairment of Financial Assets - Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

The Group uses ECL model, for evaluating impairment of financial assets other than those measured at
Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL).

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

i. The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or

ii. Full lifetime expected credit losses (LTECL) (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the life of the financial instrument)

Both LTECLs and 12 months ECLs are calculated on collective basis.
The Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as described below:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12 months ECL.
Stage 1 loans include those loans where there is no significant credit risk observed and also includes facilities
where the credit risk has been improved, and the loan has been reclassified from stage 2 or stage 3.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records
an allowance for the lifetime ECL. Stage 2 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved,
and the loan has been reclassified from stage 3.

Stage 3: Loans considered credit impaired are the loans which are past due for more than 90 days. The
Group records an allowance for lifetime ECL.

Calculations of ECL
The mechanics of ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

PD Probability of Default (“PD”) is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A
default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously
derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

EAD Exposure at Default (“EAD”) is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account
expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest.

LGD Loss Given Default (“LGD”) is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at
a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender
would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage
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of the EAD.

The Group calculates PD, EAD and LGD to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of loans and
discounted at an approximation to the EIR. At every reporting date, the above calculated PDs, EAD and
LGDs are reviewed and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:

Stage 1: The 12 months ECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result
from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting
date. The Group calculates the 12 months ECL allowance based on the expectation of a default occurring
in the 12 months following the reporting date. These expected 12-months default probabilities are applied
to a forecast EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD and discounted by an approximation to the original
EIR.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Group records an
allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those explained above, but PDs and LGDs are estimated
over the lifetime of the instrument. The expected cash shortfalls are discounted by an approximation to the
original EIR.

Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired, the Group recognises the lifetime expected credit losses for these
loans. The method is similar to that for stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

3.9.2 Financial Liabilities

a.

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at amortized cost or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially
at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

Subsequent Measurement

All financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost except for financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Amortized cost
is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. Financial liabilities held for trading are measured at fair value through profit or
loss.

Derecognition

Financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference
in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.9.3 Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet only
where the Group has legally enforceable right to set off the amount and Group intends, either to settle them
on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously as permitted by Ind AS.
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3.10

3.11

3.12

Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as Equity.

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences a residual interest in the Group’s assets after deducting all its
liabilities.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new equity shares and buy-back of equity shares are
shown as a deduction from the Equity net of any tax effects.

Dividends

Final dividends and interim dividends payable to the Company’s shareholders and NCI are recognised as change
in equity in the period in which they are approved.

Leases

3.12.1As a Lessee

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even
if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

The Group recognizes right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which
the Group is a lessee, except for a short-term lease of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. For short
term lease and low-value asset arrangements, the Group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense
on straight-line basis over the lease term.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
arrangement. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are measured according to such options when it is reasonably
certain that the Group will exercise these options.

The right-of-use asset are recognized at the inception of the lease arrangement at the amount of the initial
measurement of lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date of
lease arrangement reduced by any lease incentives received, added by initial direct costs incurred and an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying
asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straight-line method from
the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. Estimated useful life
of right-of-use assets is determined on the basis of useful life of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets
are tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that their carrying value may not be recoverable.
Impairment loss, if any is recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost, at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease arrangement or, if not readily determinable,
at the incremental borrowing rate in the country of domicile of such leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with
corresponding adjustments to right-of-use assets to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications.

3.12.2 As a Lessor

Leases are classified either as finance or operating lease. If the terms of the lease arrangement transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, such lease arrangement is classified as finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

In case of sub-lease, investment in sub-lease is recognised separately in the financial statements. The sub-lease
is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from such lease arrangement.
For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease arrangement.
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3.13 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company
or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability
that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognised but
its existence is disclosed in the financial statements.

Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

3.14 Retirement and Other Employee Benefits
3.14.1 Short-term Employee Benefits

Liabilities for employee benefits, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are the amounts expected
to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Short-term employee benefits are recognized in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the related service is rendered.

3.14.2 Long-term Employee Benefits

Compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which
employee renders the related services are recognized as undiscounted liability at the Balance Sheet date. The
expected cost of compensated absences, which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end
of the period in which employee renders related services are recognized at the present value based on actuarial
valuation performed by an independent actuary at each Balance Sheet date using projected unit credit method.

3.14.3 Retirement Benefits

a.

Defined Contribution Plan

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund and superannuation fund is defined contribution schemes.
No obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund exists. Contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme is recognized as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the Balance Sheet date exceeds the contribution
already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already
paid. If the contribution paid exceeds the contribution due to services received before the Balance Sheet date,
then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction
in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined Benefit Plan

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
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3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the Balance Sheet
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figure used in determination
of basic earnings per share to consider the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Inventories
Inventories are assets:

- held for sale in the ordinary course of business;
- in the process of production for such sale; or
- in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process or in the rendering of services.

The inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.
a. Cost of Construction and Development

Cost of Construction and Development includes cost of land, liaising costs, development costs, overheads,
material and construction costs and expenditure incurred during the construction period to the extent such
expenditure is related to construction or is incidental thereto.

b. Project-in-Progress

Project-in-progress is valued at cost if the completed unsold flats/ units are expected to be sold at or above
cost otherwise at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost includes cost of construction and development
and other indirect expenditure incurred during the construction period to the extent the expenditure is related
to construction or is incidental thereto.

c. Stock of Flats and Office Space

Cost is determined on first in first out basis (FIFO) and comprise all cost of purchase, construction, duties,
taxes and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location and condition.

d. Food and Beverages

Cost of inventories are computed on FIFO basis. Cost in respect of food and beverages includes expenses
incidental to procurement of the same.

e. Medicines, Medicare items, Medical consumables, Surgical equipment and other stores and housekeeping

Costs of these inventories comprises of all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition including duties and taxes other than those recoverable from taxing
authorities, applying the FIFO. In cases where expiry dates are applicable, FIFO has been applied based on
the occurrence of expiry.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and short-term investments with an original maturity of three
months or less.

Segment Reporting

Operating Segments are identified and reported considering the different risks and return, organizational structure
and internal reporting system to the Chief Operating Decision Maker.
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4.

41

4.2

4.3

44

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that require material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The key assumptions and estimate at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are described below. These assumptions and estimates are based
on available parameters as on the date of preparation of financial statements. These assumptions and estimates,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group.

Business Model Assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business model
test. The Group determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed
together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant
evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks
that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are
compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal
and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring
is part of the Group’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial
assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business
model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

Leases

The Group has entered into commercial property leases for its offices. The Group evaluates if an arrangement
qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment.
The Group management uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term and the applicable discount rate.
The Group has lease contracts which include extension and termination options, and this requires exercise of
judgement by the Company in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option
to renew or terminate the lease. The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific
to the lease period.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value, less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal
calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar
assets or observable market prices, less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value-in-use calculation
is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the projections for the next five years and do not
include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will
enhance the assets’ performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount
rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation
purposes.

Fair value of Investment Property

As per the Ind AS, the Group is required to disclose the fair value of the investment property. Accordingly, the
entities in the Group have conducted valuation to assess the fair values of investment property as at March 31,
2025, March 31, 2024 & March 31, 2023. The investment property was valued by reference to market-based
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4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

49

4.10

evidence, using comparable prices adjusted for specific market factors such as nature, location and condition
of the investment property. The key assumptions used to determine fair value of the investment property are
provided in notes to Consolidated Financial Statement.

Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net changes in the deferred tax asset or liability during
the year. Significant judgements are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including amount
expected to be paid/ recovered for uncertain tax positions, including disclosures thereof.

Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using various valuation techniques. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree
of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity
risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value
of financial instruments.

Defined Benefit Plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and
mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed annually.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular,
the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment
losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by factors, changes
in which can result in different levels of allowances. It has been the Group’s policy to regularly review its models
in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary.

Contingent Liabilities and Provisions

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow
of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated.
The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability requires the application of judgement to existing facts
and circumstances, which can be subject to change. The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed
regularly and revised to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

Estimated useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge
in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and
the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual value of the asset are determined
by the management when the asset is acquired and reviewed at-least annually during each financial year end.
The lives are based on technical evaluation, technological obsolesces and historical experience with similar assets
as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their lives. This re-assessment may result in a change
in depreciation and amortisation expense in future periods.
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(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)
As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
NOTE 5: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash on hand 7.36 9.70
Balance with banks
In Current Accounts 577.09 402.52
In Auto Sweep Deposit™ 105.34 93.67
In Fixed Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 581.45 335.06
Cheques/ Demand Drafts in Hand - 0.12
Stamps in Hand 0.01 0.05
Remittance in Transit™* 471 1.19

1,275.96 84231

*  Autosweep depositaccount have been considered as cash and cash equivalents irrespective of the maturity date as they
are readily available for prematurity without any charges.

** Remittance in Transit represents debit/ credit cards swiped on the last working day of the financial year and the amount
was cleared within the next working day after the reporting year.

As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
NOTE 6: BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Earmarked Balance with Bank

In Unpaid Dividend Accounts 41.39 7.11
Fixed Deposit Account™ 1,394.99 1,338.63
Escrow Account (Refer note no 25 and 62) 51.07 47.56

1,487.45 1,393.30

*  Fixed deposits of ¥ 1.05 (Previous Year Rs. 1.03) which have been kept as margin money for Bank Guarantee availed
from Bank. Fixed deposits amounting to ¥ 66.65 (Previous year ¥ 64.05) are under lien.
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(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

As at
March 31, 2025

NOTE 7: RECEIVABLES
7.1 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Unsecured, Credit Impaired 240.74
Less: Impairment Allowance (240.74)
395.69
7.2 OTHER RECEIVABLES -
Related Parties
Unsecured, Considered Good 2.84
Other than Related Parties
Secured, Considered Good 4.06
Unsecured, Considered Good 9.35
Unsecured, Significant Increase in Credit Risk 18.42
Less: Impairment Allowance (5.68)
Unsecured, Credit Impaired 421
Less: Impairment Allowance (4.21)
28.99
Total Receivables 424.68

Other than Related Parties
Secured, Considered Good -
Unsecured, Considered Good 395.69

Asat

March 31, 2024

202.50
106.26
4.61
(4.61)

308.76

0.54

107.80
7.17
(3.17)
1.97
(1.97)

112.34
421.10

No Trade or Other Receivables are due from Directors or other Officers of the Company either severally or jointly with
any other person, nor any trade or other receivables are due from firms (including LLPs) or private companies respectively

in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Trade and Other Receivables are non-interest bearing.
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7.1 Ageing Schedule for Trade Receivables

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment as on 31st March 2025

Particulars Lessthan | 6months |1-2vyear | 2-3year | Morethan| Total
NotDue | 6 months - 1 year 3 years
Undisputed Trade Receivables
(i) Considered Good 0.62 337.85 26.91 24.99 1.92 3.40 395.69
(i) Which have Significant
Increase in Credit Risk - - -
(i) Credit Impaired 0.74 5.14 23.17 210.65 239.70
Disputed Trade Receivables
(i) Considered Good
(i) Which have Significant
Increase in Credit Risk - -
(iii) Credit Impaired 1.04 1.04
Gross Trade Receivables 0.62 338.59 26.91 30.13 25.09 215.09 | 636.43
Less: Impairment Allowance (240.74)
Net Trade Receivables 0.62 338.59 26.91 30.13 25.09 215.09 | 395.69
Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment as on 31st March 2024
Particulars Lessthan | 6months |1-2vyear | 2-3year | Morethan| Total
Not Due | 6 months - 1 year 3 years
Undisputed Trade Receivables
(i) Considered Good 264.73 33.44 6.22 0.65 3.7 308.76
(i) Which have Significant
Increase in Credit Risk 0.69 0.91 1.60
(iif) Credit Impaired 1.98 1.98
Disputed Trade Receivables
(i) Considered Good
(i) Which have Significant
Increase in Credit Risk - -
(iif) Credit Impaired 1.04 1.04
Gross Trade Receivables 264.73 33.44 6.91 1.56 6.73 | 313.37
Less: Impairment Allowance (4.61)
Net Trade Receivables 264.73 33.44 6.91 1.56 6.73 | 308.76
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7.2 Ageing Schedule for other Receivables

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment as on 31st March 2025

Particulars Lessthan | 6months |1-2vyear | 2-3year | Morethan| Total
Not Due | 6 months - 1 year 3 years

Undisputed Trade Receivables
(i) Considered Good 16.43 0.95 0.25 2.39 20.02
(i) Which have Significant

Increase in Credit Risk 0.41 0.55 0.47 0.12 0.27 1.82
(iii) Credit Impaired 0.43 0.01 0.44
Disputed Trade Receivables
(i) Considered Good 16.60 16.60
(i) Which have Significant

Increase in Credit Risk
(iii) Credit Impaired
Gross Other Receivables 16.84 1.93 0.72 2.51 16.88 38.88
Less: Impairment Allowance (9.89)
Net Other Receivables 16.84 1.93 0.72 2.51 16.88 28.99

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment as on 31st March 2024
Particulars Lessthan | 6months |1-2vyear | 2-3year | Morethan| Total
Not Due | 6 months - 1 year 3 years

Undisputed Trade Receivables
(i) Considered Good 89.82 0.88 3.09 0.02 0.18 93.98
(i) Which have Significant

Increase in Credit Risk 3.05 3.05
(iii) Credit Impaired 0.04 0.03 0.56 0.71 1.34
Disputed Trade Receivables
(i) Considered Good 18.47 18.47
(i) Which have Significant

Increase in Credit Risk - -
(iii) Credit Impaired 0.64 0.64
Gross Other Receivables 92.91 0.88 3.12 0.58 20.00 | 117.48
Less: Impairment Allowance (5.14)
Net Other Receivables 92.91 0.88 3.12 0.58 20.00 | 112.34

173




9),_5
THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR / AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
NOTE 8: LOANS

(Measured at Amortised Cost)

Loan to Employees 0.70 1.53
Loan to Others™ 154.66 7.07
Gross Loan 155.36 8.60
Less: Impairment Allowances (148.15) (1.43)
Net Loan 7.21 7.17

8.1 Security Details

Secured by Tangible Assets 7.09 7.67
Unsecured 148.27 0.93
Gross Loan 155.36 8.60
Less: Impairment Allowances (148.15) (1.43)
Net Loan 7.21 7.17

8.2 L oans in India & Outside India

Loans in India

Other than Public Sector 155.36 8.60
Gross Loan 155.36 8.60
Less:Impairment Loss Allowance (148.15) (1.43)
Net Loan 7.21 7.17

* Loan to Others include ¥ 147.79 recoverable from erstwhile promoter group companies of Ayursundra Hospitals
(Guwahati) Private Limited, acquired during the year as stated in note no. 72. Considering the prospects of recovery, the
amount has been classified as Stage 3 (credit impaired) and accordingly the impairment allowance has been considered
by the management.
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THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR / AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

NOTE 9: INVESTMENTS

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Amortised | At Fair Value Total Amortised | At Fair Value Total
Cost Through Profit Cost Through Profit
or Loss or Loss
Mutual Funds 4,221.08 4,221.08 5,775.70 5,775.70
Investment through Wealth/
Portfolio Management Services* - 1,963.04 1,963.04 - 1,371.83 1,371.83
Government Securities 1,020.60 1,020.60 3,750.39 3,750.39
Debt Securities 3,594.05 - 3,594.05 3,615.06 3,615.06
Market Linked Debenture (MLD) 250.00 250.00 - -
Equity Instruments - 2,351.97 2,351.97 - 1,967.58 1,967.58
Fixed Deposits with NBFC 575.64 - 575.64 529.47 - 529.47
Investment in Gold ETF 656.71 656.71 363.90 363.90
Investment in Alternate
Investment Funds 104.57 104.57 52.53 52.53
Total Investments 5,190.29 9,547.37 | 14,737.66 7,894.92 9,531.54 17,426.46
Investment in India
& Outside India
(1) Investment in India 5,190.29 9,547.37 14,737.66 7,894.92 9,531.54 17,426.46
(2) Investment outside India
Total Investments 5,190.29 9,547.37 | 14,737.66 7,894.92 9,531.54 17,426.46

* Investment through Portfolio Management Services and Wealth Management Services includes Equity ¥ 1,096.20, Cash
% 42.23, Mutual Funds % 625.43 and Alternate Investment Funds ¥ 197.43 (Previous Year: Equity ¥ 784.87, Cash
% 40.09, Mutual Funds ¥ 362.61 and Alternate Investment Funds % 186.26).

9.1. No impairment allowance has been envisaged on the investments measured at amortised cost.

NOTE 10: OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Accrued Interest on Loans to Employees
Recoverable advancesto Employees

Gratuity fund (Refer Note No
Investment in Sublease

.58)

Margin money in Demat Account
Unbilled Revenue (contract assets)*

Derivative Assets

Security Deposits (Net of Impairment of ¥ 1.01 (Previous Year: nil))

March 31, 2025

As at

0.95
4.92
5.79

17.64
85.31
0.32
188.57

303.50

*  The amount outstanding for the current year represents unbilled amount for the month of March 2025.

Asat

March 31, 2024

0.87
2.77
5.93
21.54
13.20
102.82

167.48
314.61
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THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR / AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
NOTE 11: INVENTORIES

(Valued at Lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value)

Project Work in Progress 472.83 -
Add: Addition during the Year* 408.17 472.83
Net Project Work in Progress 881.00 472.83
Stock of Flats & Office Space 9.09 9.09
Medicines 47.37 41.18
Stores, Spares and Consumables 34.84 29.18
Food and Beverages 3.05 3.60

975.35 555.88

*  Costofland amountingto % 430.29 was transferred in the previous year from Investment Properties to Inventories upon
execution of operative agreements/ arrangements with key vendor entities.

As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
NOTE 12: CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

Current Tax Assets (net of provision for taxation) 1,533.89 1,434.16
1,533.89 1,434.16
Year ended Yearended

March 31, 2025  March 31,2024
NOTE 13: DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Deferred Tax Assets 241.45 1.94
Less: Deferred Tax Liabilities (63.15) (0.06)
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 178.30 1.88

The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the future taxable income of the respective companies in
the Group. Deferred Tax Assets in respect of the following tax losses has not been recognized considering the principle of
prudence:
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THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR / AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

As at
March 31, 2025
Details of Unrecognized Tax Losses with Expiry Dates

A.Parent Company
Carry Forward of Business Loss (Unrecognized)

AY 2028-29 314.60
Carry Forward of Long Term Capital Loss (Unrecognized)
AY 2024-25 -
AY 2025-26 -
AY 2026-27 808.49
AY 2027-28 23.72
AY 2028-29 1,723.53
2,555.74
Sub-Total (A) 2,870.34

B. Step-Down Subsidiary

Carry Forward of Unabsorbed Depreciation (Unrecognized) 912.80
Carry Forward of Business Loss (Unrecognized)
AY 2025-26 117.29
AY 2026-27 28141
AY 2027-28 232.23
AY 2029-30 55.57
686.50
Sub- Total (B) 1,599.30
Total (A+B) 4,469.64

Asat
March 31, 2024

265.20
0.30
1,604.00
23.72
1,723.53

3,616.75
3,616.75

3,616.75
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THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR / AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 14 : INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Description Land Building Total
Gross block

As at March 31, 2023 462.57 167.34 629.91
Add: Additions during the year - 1.31 131
Less: Transfer to Inventories (430.29) - (430.29)
Less: Disposal/ Discard during the year - (8.17) (8.17)
As at March 31, 2024 32.28 160.48 192.76
Add: Additions during the year 1.37 - 1.37
Add: Transferred from Property, Plant and Equipment - 18.29 18.29
Less: Transfer to Asset held for Sale - (141.95) (141.95)
Less: Disposal/ Discard during the year (0.06) - (0.06)
As at March 31, 2025 33.59 36.82 70.41
Depreciation

As at March 31, 2023 - 34.82 34.82
Add: Depreciation for the year - 6.32 6.32
Less: Disposal/ Discard/ Other Adjustments during the year - 0.05 0.05
As at March 31, 2024 - 41.19 41.19
Add: Depreciation for the year - 4.39 4.39
Less: Disposal/ Discard/ Other Adjustments during the year - 0.19 0.19
Less: Transfer to Asset held for Sale - (39.08) (39.08)
As at March 31, 2025 - 6.69 6.69
Net Block

As at March 31, 2025 33.59 30.13 63.72
As at March 31, 2024 32.28 119.29 151.57

The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the respective companies owning the same.

*During the year the company has reclassified properties from Properties, Plant and Equipment to Investment Property as there was
an end of Owner Occupation.

Note 14.1 : Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss for Investment Property

As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Rental Income 31.02 33.20
Direct Operating Expense 8.59 941

Contractual Obligations

The Company has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property. However, the responsibility for
its repairs, maintenance or enhancements is with the Company. Refer note no. 60 for capital commitment towards investment property.

Fair Value
The fair valuation of Investment Properties as at March 31, 2025 is ¥ 4,169.52 (Previous Year % 2,581.86).

The Fair valuation for the year is based on valuation by registered valuers.

Pledge Details
Investment property is not pledged.
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THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR / AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

15.1 Transfer includes the following:-

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Gross Block Accumulated Depriciation Net Block
For the Year For the Year For the Year For the Year For the Year For the Year
ended March ended March ended March ended March ended March ended March
31, 2025 31,2024 31, 2025 31,2024 31, 2025 31,2024
Gross Bock
Transfer to
Investment Property 26.15 7.86 18.29
Right of Use Assets (RoU) 2.56 - 0.77 - 1.79 -
Assets Held for Sale 17.56 0.22 12.86 0.06 4.70 0.16
46.27 0.22 21.49 0.06 24.78 0.16
The above transfer of the immoveable assets have been done usage of the same, as envisaged and approved by the management.
As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
NOTE 16 : CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS
OpeningBalance 981.54 457.42
Add: Additions during the Year 1,076.16 536.05
Less: Capitalised during the Year (7.54) (11.93)
2,050.16 981.54
As at Asat
March 31, 2025  March 31,2024
16.1 Details of Capital Work-in-Progress
(a) Regular Capitalisation
Medical Equipment and Surgical Instruments - 4.87
Plant & Equipment including Electrical Installations - 1.18
Installation of Fan Coil Unit 0.95 0.95
Other Capitalisations 3.40 1.49
Sub-total (a) 4.35 8.49
(b) New Extension Project of the Hospital (Refer note no. 16.4)
Building 1,769.84 819.08
Plant & Equipment including Electrical Installations 80.88 1.48
Computer Networking 0.85 0.85
Pre-operative Expenses (Refer NoteNo. 16.3) 181.32 151.64
Sub-total (b) 2,032.89 973.05
(c) Hospital at Barasat
Building 9.91 -
Professional and Consultancy Fees 3.01 -
Sub-total (c) 12.92 -
Total (a+b+c) 2,050.16 981.54
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THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR / AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

16.2 Capital Work-in-Progress Ageing Schedule
As at March 31, 2025

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Less than 1-2Years | 2-3years | More than Total
1 Year 3years
Projectsin Progress 1,180.72 527.56 341.88 -1 2,045.16
Projects Temporarily Suspended - - - - -
Total 1,180.72 527.56 341.88 - |2,045.16
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Less than 1-2Years | 2-3years | More than Total
1 Year 3 year
Projectsin Progress 536.04 341.88 103.62 - 981.54
Projects Temporarily Suspended - - - - -
Total 536.04 341.88 103.62 -| 98154
As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
16.3 Details of Pre-operative Expenses
Professional and Consultancy Fees 111.36 78.67
Legal Charges 83.74 82.91
Cost of Temporary Structure 1.03 1.03
Other Expenses (Net of recoveries, if any) 0.80 0.66
Total Pre-operative Expenses 196.93 163.27
Less: Income attributable to funds borrowed and temporarily
invested InterestIncome (15.61) (11.63)

181.32 151.64

16.4 New Extension Project of the Hospital represents Project "SRIOS" to provide comprehensive cancer services construction
of which has started. As per the current progress of construction, the project is to be completed in the next Financial Year,
as estimated by the management.

As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

NOTE 17: INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT
Amount brought forward 7.55 7.55
Less: Written off during the year* (7.55) -

- 7.55

* Intangible Asset Under Development represent a software being developed for controllingand monitoring the loan book
by one of the subsidiary companies involved in the business of lending. The system, not being required following the
disposal of the loan portfolio of the subsidiary company, has been written off during the year.
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THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR / AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 20: INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE

In Equity Instruments of Unquoted Companies (fully paid) (measured at cost)

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Par Value Number Amount Par Value Number Amount
Investment in Joint Venture
Bengal Peerless Housing
Development Co. Limited 10 6,62,850 585.74 10 6,62,850 654.79
585.74 654.79
20.1 Aggregate Book Value of Unquoted Investments 58574 64.79

20.2 Details of Joint Venture in accordance with Ind AS 112 "Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities":

Proportion of ownership interest/
Name of the Joint Principal activity Place of Incorporation/ voting rights held by the Company

Venture Company Principal Place of Business As at As at
March31,2025  March31,2024

Bengal Peerless Housing
Development Co. Limited Real Estate India 36.70% 36.70%

20.3 The following table summarizes the financial information of the Balance Sheet of the Joint Venture:

As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Non Current Assets 21753 17479
Current Assets 203712 2,744.27
Non Current Liabilities 259 24.35
CurrentLiabilities 65680 1,11057
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20.4 The following table summarizes the financial performance of the Joint Venture:

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

As at
March 31, 2025
Revenue from Operations 837.93
OtherIncome 66.59
Total Income 904.52
Total Expenses 870.49
Profit before Tax 34.03
Tax Expenses 7.60
Profit for the year 26.43
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of tax) (0.34)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 26.09
Finance Costs 191
Depreciation Expense 0.83
Parent Company's proportionate share of Profit after Tax 9.70
Parent Company's proportionate share of Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) 0.12
Parent Company's proportionate share of Total Comprehensive Income 9.82
20.5 Movement of carrying amount of Investment in Joint Venture:
As at
March 31, 2025
Restated Balance at the beginning of the Year 654.79
Parent Company's proportionate share of Profit after Tax 9.70
Parent Company's proportionate share of Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) 0.12
Less: Dividend (78.87)
Balance/ Restated Balance at the end of the Year

585.74

Asat

March 31, 2024
6,036.72
48.78

6,085.50
5,501.16

584.34
147.67

436.67
0.33
437.00

1.25
1.36
160.26
0.12
160.38

Asat

March 31, 2024
611.80

160.26

0.12

(117.39)

654.79

20.6 Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the interest in

Joint Venture recognised in the Consolidated Financial Statements:

As at

March 31, 2025

Net Assets of the Joint Venture 1,595.26
Proportion of the Parent Company's ownership interest 36.70%
Parent Company's share of Net Assets 585.74

Asat
March 31, 2024

1,784.14
36.70%
654.79
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(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

As at
March 31, 2025
NOTE 21: OTHER NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Asat
March 31, 2024

Prepaid Expenses 66.90 68.30
Advance to Suppliers 338.09 276.58
Capital Advances
-to Related Parties 15.62 26.27
-to Other Parties 297.54 386.54
Balance with Government Authorities 4.20 3.74
Security Deposits 18.21 8.25
Advance against Right to Property™ 33.90 33.90
Less: Impairment Loss Allowance (33.90) (33.90)
Deferred loss on fair valuation of financial instruments measured at amortised cost 0.73 -
Others 0.64 0.91
741.93 770.59

*  Advance against Right to Property amounting to ¥ 33.90 (net off amount recovered ¥ 12.00) is recoverable against the
non-transfer of the 9 flats by the developer M/S Ganguly Group. The Parent Company has made an impairment

allowance on the same based on its ECL policy.
As at
March 31, 2025
NOTE 22: ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Asat
March 31, 2024

Opening Balance 0.16 -
Add: Transferred from Property Plant and Equipment (Note 15) 4.70 0.16
Add: Transferred from Investment Property (Note 14 and Note 22.1) 102.87 -
Less: Sold during the year (24.66) -
Closing Balance 83.07 0.16

22.1 The Parent Company has classified certain buildings as Assets held for Sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 "Non-
Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations". These assets are measured at the lower of carrying value and

fair value less cost to sell on the date of such classification.
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(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
NOTE 23: PAYABLES

A. TRADE PAYABLES

Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 63.11 4295
Dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 529.09 460.50
592.20 503.45
B. OTHER PAYABLES
Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 5.89 1.57
Dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 144.24 218.18
150.13 219.75
Details of Other Payables
Commission to Executive Directors 87.71 121.60
Liability for Capital Goods 36.14 44 .95
Reimbursement Payable 3.30 8.18
Remittance Payable to Principal Company™ 4.55 7.97
Others 18.43 37.04

150.13 219.74

*One of the Subsidiary Companies is involved in the business Sale of Financial Products. The amount represents collections
of payments on behalf of the Principal, to be remitted as per terms of the agreement with them.

NOTE. 23.1 AGEING SCHEDULE OF TRADE PAYABLES
As at March 31, 2025

Outstanding for the following periods from the Due Date of Payment

Particulars Lessthan [1-2year | 2-3year | Morethan| Total
Not Due - 1 year 3 years

(i) Micro Enterprisesand Small Enterprises 0.68 62.43 - - - 63.11

(ii) Others 14.75 511.85 1.72 0.55 0.22 529.09

(iii) Disputed Dues - Micro Enterprises and
Small Enterprises

(iv) Disputed Dues - Others
Total 15.43 574.28 1.72 0.55 0.22 | 592.20
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(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

As at March 31, 2024

Outstanding for the following periods from the Due Date of Payment

Particulars Lessthan |1-2year | 2-3vyear| Morethan| Total
Not Due -1 year 3 years

(i) Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 0.84 42.11 42.95

(ii) Others 24.51 431.96 1.68 0.34 2.01 460.50

(iii) Disputed Dues - Micro Enterprises and

Small Enterprises
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others
Total 25.35 474.07 1.68 0.34 2.01 | 503.45

NOTE. 23.2 AGEING SCHEDULE OF OTHER PAYABLES

As at March 31, 2025
Outstanding for the following periods from the Due Date of Payment
Particulars Lessthan |1-2year | 2-3year | Morethan| Total
Not Due -1 year 3 years
(i) Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises - 5.89 - - 5.89
(ii) Others 84.73 57.00 2.27 0.24 144.24
(iii) Disputed Dues - Micro Enterprises and
Small Enterprises
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others
Total 84.73 62.89 2.27 0.24 | 150.13
As at March 31, 2024
Outstanding for the following periods from the Due Date of Payment
Particulars Lessthan | 1-2year | 2-3year| Morethan| Total
Not Due -1 year 3 years
(i) Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises - 1.57 1.57
(ii) Others 121.00 90.55 2.27 4.36 218.18
(iii) Disputed Dues - Micro Enterprises and
Small Enterprises
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others
Total 121.00 92.12 2.27 4.36 | 219.75
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(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 24: BORROWINGS As at Asat
March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Working Capital Loan 043 -

0.43 -

24.1 Security Details Working Capital Loan from Punjab National Bank, Mahabir Market Branch, Guwahati

a) First Pari Passu Charge by way of Hypothecation of Stock of Medicines, Consumables at Pharmacy, Stock of Other
[tems and Book Debts and all other current assets of Ayursundra Super Speciality Hospital, a unit of Ayursundra
Hospitals (Guwahati) Private Limited. However, the entire book debts were under Bank's charge and all other current
assets on 1st pari passu basis with State Bank of India.

b) 2ndPari-passu Charge on unencumbered Fixed Assets of the Hospital unit which was charged to consortium Banks for
the term loan on 1st pari-passu basis with State Bank of India & North Eastern Development Finance Corporation Ltd.

However, the settlements as per the Resolution Plan under CIRP is pending as on the Balance Sheet date and thus the working
capital loan facility has not been settled. Accordingly, the associated security charges have either been released (for loans
settled) or are in the process of being released by the lenders.

NOTE 25: DEPOSITS As at Asat
March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Deposit from Public - at Amortised Cost* 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00
* The amount is below the rounding off norms. (% 4,000 (Previous Year: % 4,000))

25.1 The Parent Company has transferred an amount of ¥ Nil (Previous Year: ¥ 0.01) to the Investors' Education and
Protection Fund (IEPF) Authority and repaid % Nil (Previous year: ¥ Nil) to its depositors. The amount transferred represents
the total amount of matured deposits (including interest accrued thereon till respective dates of maturity), which were lying
unclaimed for a period of 7 years or more from their respective dates of maturity. (Refer note no. 62).

25.2 The book value & accrued interest of Investments Linked with Escrow Account of the Parent Company (including
Escrow Bank Account) amounts to ¥ 50.51 (Previous Year: ¥ 47.56) against outstanding Liability towards Depositors of
%0.004 (Previous Year % 0.004).

NOTE 26: OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES As at Asat

March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Security Deposits 10.93 9.16
Unpaid Dividends 41.37 6.63
Lease Liability (Refer note no. 63) 11.93 53.13
Employee Benefit Payable 22.51 15.69
Sundry Deposits from Staff 0.25 0.24
Payable against Business Combination (Refer note no. 72) 259.20 -

346.19 84.85
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NOTE 27: CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

As at
March 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

Provision for Tax (Net of Advance Tax) 1,646.02 1,804.81
1,646.02 1,804.81
As at Asat

NOTE 28: PROVISIONS

Provision for Employee Benefits -

Gratuity (Refer note no. 58) 54.80 23.79
Leave Encashment 88.38 75.05
Bonus, Ex-Gratia & Incentive 26.88 27.27
Provision for Doctor Fees (Refer Note 28.1) 10.27 11.18
Provision for Lease Rent (Refer Note 28.2) 23.32 -
Other Provisions (Refer Note 28.3) 15.12 13.90
218.77 151.19

As at Asat

28.1 Movement of Provision for Doctor Fees

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2024

Balance at the beginning of the Year 11.18 13.78
Add: Provision made during the Year 10.27 11.18
Less: Payment/(adjusted) during the Year (11.18) (13.78)
Balance at the end of the Year 10.27 11.18

28.2 [ easefor Tower-lat 12, Jawaharlal Nehru Road, Kolkata— 700069, granted by the State Government of West Bengal
infavour of the Parent Company, which in turn has been given on sub-lease to the Peerless Hotels Ltd. vide agreement dated
July 20, 1992, has expired on October 13, 2024. Necessary application for the renewal of lease has been made by the Parent
Company with the Department of Tourism, Government of West Bengal vide letter dated August 23, 2024, and the same
is pending for execution. As stated by the management, the application for renewal of lease is under active consideration
and renewal thereof is awaited as on this date. Pending this and finalisation of the terms and condition thereof, a provision
of ¥ 23.32 towards the incremental lease rentals as estimated by the management applying it’s own judgement for possible
enhancement thereof considering the prevailing market trend, etc., following the prudent principle of accounting, hasbeen
made. Further, adjustments arising in this respect will be given effect to on determination of the amount on execution of the
agreement.

28.3 Other Provisions include claims by certain employees not acknowledged by the one of the Subsidiary Companies,
'Peerless Hotels Limited', pending resolution on the matter by Labour Court and determination of the amount thereof.
Carrying amount in this respect at the end of the reporting period is ¥ 15.12 (Previous year: 13.90). Provision of ¥ 1.22
(Previous year: ¥ 1.20) has been created and % NIL (Previous year: ¥ NIL) has been paid during the year in this respect.
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NOTE 29: DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Less: Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

NOTE 30: OTHER NON-FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Advance Received Against Sale of Property
Statutory Liabilities

Deferred Rent

Advance Fees from Academic Courses
Advance from Patients/ Customers, etc
Deferred Government Grant

TOTAL

Details of Government Grant are as follows:

Government Grant at the beginning of the Year

Add: Government Grant received during the Year

Add: Interest received during the Year

Less: Transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss (including interest)

Government Grant at the end of the Year

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
March 31, 2025

364.12
(104.37)

259.75

As at
March 31, 2025

0.82
108.52

26.27
23.82
0.02

159.45

As at
March 31, 2025

0.17
0.33

(0.48)

0.02

Yearended
March 31, 2024

407.49
(188.31)

219.18

Asat
March 31, 2024

11.10
42.70
1.80
2493
30.88
0.17

111.58

Asat
March 31, 2024

0.15
0.59

(0.57)
0.17

194



* .

9"..,_.:3
THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR / AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

As at Asat
March 31, 2025  March 31,2024

NOTE 31: SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised Capital
35,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 100/- each 350.00 350.00
(Previous Year: ¥ 100/- each) - -
350.00 350.00
Issued, Subscribed & Called up Capital - -
33,15,584 Equity shares of ¥ 100/- each fully paid up 331.56 331.56
Previous Year ¥ 100/- each I -
331.56 331.56
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31,2024
a) Movement of Share Capital: No. of Shares Zin Million No. of Shares ¥ in Million
No. of Shares Outstanding as at beginning of year 3,315,584 331.56 3,315,584 331.56
New Shares issued during the year — — — —
No. of Shares Outstanding as at end of year 3,315,584 331.56 3,315,584 331.56

b) Rights, Preferences & Restrictions attached to Shares:

The Company has issued only one class of equity shares having par value of ¥ 100 per share. Each shareholder is eligible
for dividend right and one vote per share held. The Dividend, if any, proposed by Board of Directors is subject to approval
of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation of the
Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets after distribution of all preferential
amount of the Company in the same proportion as the capital paid up on the equity shares held by them bears to the total

paid up equity share capital of the Company.
c) The Company does not have a holding or an ultimate holding company.

d) Disclosure with respect to Shareholding in excess of 5%:

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31,2024

Name of the No. of % of No. of % of % Changes
Shareholder Shares Shareholding Shares Shareholding

Mrs. Shikha Roy 7,50,048 22.62% 7,50,048 22.62% -
Shikha Holdings Private Limited 6,57,482 19.83% 6,30,192 19.01% 0.82%
Bichitra Holdings Private Limited 3,30,955 9.98% 3,29,169 9.93% 0.05%
Poddar Projects Limited 2,18,240 6.58% 2,18,240 6.58% 0.00%
Mr. R. L. Gaggar 1,79,200 5.40% 1,79,200 5.40% -
Mr. Tuhin Kanti Ghosh 2,25,920 6.81% 2,25,920 6.81% -
Total 26,86,485 81.02% 26,57,409 80.15% 0.87%

e) The Company has not allotted any shares pursuant to the contract(s) without payment beingreceived in cash for the period
of five years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date. Further, the Company has neither issued any bonus shares nor
has done any buyback during the aforesaid period.

f) The Company has neither issued nor has any outstanding securities convertible into equity/ preference shares.
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NOTE 31: SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

g) There are no calls unpaid by Directors and Officers of the Company.
h) The Company has not forfeited any equity shares during the year.
i) For details in relation to Capital Management of the Company, refer note no. 55.

j) Disclosure with respect to shareholding of promoters:

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31,2024
Name of the Shareholder No. of % of No. of % of % Changes
Shares Shareholding Shares Shareholding
Mrs. Shikha Roy 7,50,048 22.62% 7,50,048 22.62% -
Mr. Jayanta Roy 3,24,640 9.79% 3,24,640 9.79% -
Mrs. Shikha Roy & Mrs. Debasree Roy 3,019 0.09% 3,019 0.09% -
Mrs. Debasree Roy 1,08,256 3.27% 1,08,256 3.27% -
Mrs. Debasree Roy & Mrs. Shikha Roy 34,304 1.03% 34,304 1.03% -
Mr. Tushar Kanti Roy 256 0.01% 256 0.01% -
Shikha Holdings Private Limited 6,57,482 19.83% 6,30,192 19.01% 0.82%
Bichitra Holdings Private Limited 3,30,955 9.98% 3,29,169 9.93% 0.05%
Kaizen Hotels & Resorts Limited 60,000 1.81% 60,000 1.81% -
Total 22,68,960 68.43% 22,39,884 67.56% 0.87%
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023
Name of the Shareholder No. of % of No. of % of % Changes
Shares Shareholding Shares Shareholding
Mrs. Shikha Roy 7,50,048 22.62% 7,50,048 22.62% -
Mr. Jayanta Roy 3,24,640 9.79% 3,24,640 9.79% -
Mrs. Shikha Roy & Mrs. Debasree Roy 3,019 0.09% 3,019 0.09% -
Mrs. Debasree Roy 1,08,256 3.27% 1,08,256 3.27% -
Mrs. Debasree Roy & Mrs. Shikha Roy 34,304 1.03% 34,304 1.03% -
Mr. Tushar Kanti Roy 256 0.01% 256 0.01% -
Shikha Holdings Private Limited 6,30,192 19.01% 6,30,192 19.01% -
Bichitra Holdings Private Limited 3,29,169 9.93% 3,27,669 9.88% 0.05%
Kaizen Hotels & Resorts Limited 60,000 1.81% 60,000 1.81% -
Total 22,39,884 67.56% 22,38,384 67.51%
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(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)
As at Asat
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
NOTE 32: OTHER EQUITY*

Capital Reserve 9.56 9.56
Capital Redemption Reserve 0.58 0.58
Special Reserve 6,815.03 6,538.50
General Reserve 7,652.44 7,552.44
Retained Earnings 9,644.50 9,419.60

24,122.11 23,520.68

* For Reconciliation of Closing Balance of items of Other Equity, refer to Statement of Changes in Equity

As at Asat
March 31,2025  March 31,2024

Equity Dividend
Final Dividend for March 31, 2024 - ¥ 100 per share 331.56 -
Interim Dividend for March 31, 2025 - ¥ 100 per share 331.56 -
Final Dividend for March 31, 2023 - ¥ 175 per share - 580.23
Interim Dividend for March 31, 2024 - ¥ 100 per share - 331.56

The Parent Company at its Board meeting held on June 26, 2025 has proposed final dividend for F.Y.2024-25 of ¥ 100
per share, subject to approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. The said proposed dividend along with
the Interim dividend paid are in compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Capital Reserve
Capital Reserve represents profit recognised in erstwhile years on reissue of forfeited shares.

Capital Redemption Reserve

The Group has recognised Capital Redemption Reserve on redemption of Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares
and on the buyback of shares by one of the Companies in the Group (NCI portion) from its Retained Earnings. The amount
in Capital Redemption Reserve is equal to nominal amount of the said Preference Shares redeemed. The amount is available
for utilisation for issue of bonus shares to its members and otherwise as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Special Reserve

Every year the Parent Company and one of the Group Companies transfers a sum of not less than twenty per cent of the
net profit of that year as disclosed in the Statement of Profit and Loss to its Special Reserve pursuant to Section 45-IC of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

General Reserve

General Reserve has been created by appropriating profits from Retained Earnings. The amount is to be utilised in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Retained Earnings

Retained Earnings are the profits that the Group and its Joint Venture has earned till date, less any appropriation, as
applicable. Retained earnings include re-measurement loss/ (gain) on defined benefit plan (net of taxes) that will not be
reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Year ended
March 31, 2025
NOTE 33: INTEREST INCOME

On Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost

- Interest on Investments 566.44
- Interest on Loans 242
- Interest on Bank Deposits 63.27
- From Clients 25.09
- For Margin Trading Facility 991
- Security Deposit 0.55
On Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
- Interest on Investments 10.42

678.10

Year ended
March 31, 2025
NOTE 34: DIVIDEND INCOME

On Financial Assets Measured at:
Fair Value through Profit or Loss 60.53

60.53

Year ended
March 31, 2025
NOTE 35: RENTAL INCOME

Rent* 29.57
Service Fees™ 14.38
Income from Sublease 10.82

54.77

Yearended
March 31, 2024

690.33
92.81
74.35
18.10

4.54
0.62

3.38
884.13

Yearended
March 31, 2024

47.07
47.07

Year ended
March 31, 2024

39.16
11.99
2.29

53.44

* Rental income amounting to ¥ 0.19 (Previous Year: ¥ Nil) and Service charges amounting to ¥ 0.51 (Previous Year:

¥ Nil) million has not been recognised due uncertainty in its receipt.

Year ended

NOTE 36: FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME March 31, 2025
Commission Income 190.46
Brokerage on Distribution of Financial Products 2.76
Earnings from Security Brokerage Operations 149.83

Upfront Fees and charges -

343.05

Year ended
March 31, 2024

173.80
2.66
114.65
7.01

298.12
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NOTE 37: NET GAIN ON FAIR VALUE CHANGES

On Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Fair Value changes:
- Realised
- Unrealised*

*Includes reversal of unrealised gain/ (loss) incurred till previous year.

NOTE 38: SALE OF PRODUCTS

Income from Pharmacy
Food & Beverages
Wine and Liquor

NOTE 39: SALE OF SERVICES

Income from Medical and Healthcare Services (Refer Note No. 39.1)
Room Revenue

Depository Operations

Other Services

39.1 Includes:

(a) Medicine billed to inpatients of ¥ 879.31 (Previous Year: ¥ 780.16).

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
March 31, 2025

1,149.50
(472.89)

676.61

Year ended
March 31, 2025

76.44
210.51
5.21

292.16

Year ended
March 31, 2025

3,375.34
403.82
6.70
0.02

3,785.88

Year ended
March 31, 2024

1,436.62
674.03

2,110.65

Year ended
March 31, 2024

89.73
194.59
8.60

292.92

Year ended
March 31, 2024

3,125.67
372.66
5.62
0.02

3,503.97

(b) income from National Neurosciences Centre, Calcutta (NNC)amounts to ¥ 71.64 (Previous Year: ¥ 66.89)
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NOTE 40: REVENUE FROM SALE OF
CONSTRUCTED PROPERTIES

Sale of Constructed Residential/ Commercial Units

NOTE 41: OTHER OPERATING REVENUE
Income from Academic Courses

Income from Eye Hospital

Sale of Fresh Frozen Plasma

Government Grant

Fees for Research Study

Income from Promotion and Marketing Activities

NOTE 42: OTHER INCOME

Interest on Income Tax refund

Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net)
Profit on Sale of Right in Property (Net)

Profit on Sale of Asset Held for Sale (Net)

Provisions/ Liabilities No Longer Required Written Back
Gain on Closure of Lease Agreements

Liquidated Damages and Compensation

Miscellaneous Income

NOTE 43: FINANCE COST
Interest expense
On Unsecured Loan
Lease Liabilities (Refer note no. 63)
Statutory Dues
Security Deposit (unwinding)
MSME
Commission on Bank Guarantee
Other Borrowing Costs

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2025

72.87
6.98
0.07
0.48
3.46
7.50

91.36

Year ended
March 31, 2025

266.70

16.73
424.80
37.34
0.30
2.89
25.51

774.27

Year ended
March 31, 2025

121
0.08

0.99
1.40
9.89

13.57

Year ended
March 31, 2024

2.13
2.13

Year ended
March 31, 2024

75.61
7.26
0.11
0.57
3.27
7.50

94.32

Year ended
March 31, 2024

161.17
0.26
30.83
63.41
2747

10.25
293.39

Year ended
March 31, 2024

1.19
5.18
0.06
0.11
1.80
0.98
0.26

9.58
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NOTE 44: FEES AND COMMISSION EXPENSE

Commission and Brokerage
Management Fees

NOTE 45: NET LOSS ON DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS UNDER AMORTISED COST CATEGORY

Debt Securities(Bonds)

NOTE 46: IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

On Investments
Impairment allowance created during the year
Less: Reversal of opening impairment allowance

Net Impairment allowance

On Loans
Impairment allowance created during the year
Less: Reversal of opening impairment allowance

Net Impairment allowance

On Trade and Other Receivables
Impairment allowance created during the year
Less: Reversal of opening impairment allowance

Net Impairment allowance

Amount of bad debt written off (net of bad debt recovery of nil
(Previous Year % 0.69)

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
March 31, 2025

80.75
15.30

96.05

Year ended
March 31, 2025

0.06

0.06

Year ended
March 31, 2025

148.02
(1.47)

146.55

9.05
(0.78)

8.27

21.88

176.70

Year ended
March 31, 2024

56.91
12.13

69.04

Year ended
March 31, 2024

269.02
269.02

Year ended
March 31, 2024

33.90
(284.65)

(250.75)

(2.27)
(2.27)

4.79
(31.92)

(27.13)

45.09
(235.06)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR / AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

NOTE 47: COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Medicines, Medical & Other Consumables
Food And Beverages

NOTE 48: PURCHASES OF STOCK IN TRADE

Medicines for Pharmacy

NOTE 49: COST OF CONSTRUCTION AND DEVELOPMENT

Contracting Costs

Liaison and Approval Costs
Design and Consultancy Fees
Other Ancillary Costs

NOTE 50: CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED
GOODS, STOCK-IN-TRADE AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS

(A) Work-in-Progress
Inventories at beginning of the year
Add: Cost of Land Transferred
Less: Inventories at the end of the year

Total (A)

(B) Stock of Flats and Office Space
Inventories at beginning of the year
Less: Inventories at the end of the year

Total (B)

(C) Stock of Medicines
Inventories at beginning of the year
Less: Inventories at the end of the year

Total (C)
Total (A+B+C)

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
March 31, 2025

872.74
59.58

932.32

Year ended
March 31, 2025

63.15

63.15

Year ended
March 31, 2025

80.72
317.60
9.85

408.17

Year ended
March 31, 2025

472.83

(881.00)

(408.17)

9.09
(9.09)

11.69
(12.18)

(0.49)
(408.66)

Year ended
March 31, 2024

787.54
56.09

843.63

Year ended
March 31, 2024

78.30
78.30

Year ended
March 31, 2024

3.43
15.44
1.30

20.17

Year ended
March 31, 2024

22.37
430.29
(472.83)

(20.17)

10.90
(9.09)

1.81

9.28
(11.41)

(2.13)
(20.49)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR / AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

NOTE 51: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

Salaries and Wages*
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
Staff Welfare Expenses

* Includes Remuneration and Commission paid to Directors.

NOTE 52: DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT EXPENSES

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment
Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment
Amortisation on Intangible Asset

Depreciation on Investment Property
Amortisation on Right of Use Asset

NOTE 53: OTHER EXPENSES

Rent, Taxes And Energy Costs (Refer note no. 53.1)
Repairs and Maintenance

Communication Costs

Advertisement & Publicity

Director’s Fee, Allowances and Expenses

Auditors' Fees and Expenses

Legal & Professional Charges

Insurance

Consultants and Doctors expense

Consumption of Stores and Spares

Security & Manpower/ Contract Cost/ Service Charges
Catering Charges

Linen and Laundry Expenses

Expenses on Apartment and Board

Charities and Donation

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses

Loss on Sale of Loans

Loss on Sale/ Discard of Property, Plant and Equipment
& Intangible Assets under Development

Provision for Claims and Contingencies

Amortisation of Deferred Loss on Fair Valuation of Financial Instruments
Miscellaneous Expenses

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
March 31, 2025

1,256.08
92.11
71.74

1,419.93

As at
March 31, 2025

164.97
0.25
8.48
4.39
2.78

180.87

Year ended
March 31, 2025

251.48
101.11
11.72
107.24
33.05
8.52
585.19
7.76
760.97
34.10
152.00
85.96
2224
2440
60.42
55.72

10.37
1.22
0.20

23841

2,552.08

Year ended
March 31, 2024

1,101.68
75.24
66.66

1,243.58

As at
March 31, 2024

110.63

5.38
6.32
3.80

126.13

Year ended
March 31, 2024

196.01
121.02
10.40
79.97
27.85
8.60
350.43
9.74
708.65
37.49
179.30
85.40
22.82
2424
46.70
32.89
141.69

6.62
1.20
0.04
173.80

2,264.86
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(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 53.1: RENT

Companies in the Group have taken certain office premises under cancellable Operating Lease Agreements which generally
range between 11 months to 3 years and are usually renewable by mutual agreements. The Group has availed the
benefit of short term lease exemption under Ind AS 116 and charged off the lease payments to the Statement of Profit

and Loss.

NOTE 53.2: INCOME TAXES

(@) The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31,2025 and March 31, 2024 are :

Year ended
March 31, 2025

(i) Statement of Profit and Loss

Current Tax 450.57
Income Tax for Earlier years (197.92)
Deferred tax (credit)/ charges (194.41)
Income tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss 58.24

(ii) Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Deferred tax related to items recognized in OCI during the year
Actuarial (loss) gain on gratuity fund and Fair Valuation of Equity Instruments 2.66

Income tax (credit)/ charge to OCI 2.66

Year ended
March 31, 2024

408.15
(150.59)
174.18

431.74

3.34
3.34

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit for the year end March 31,2025 and March 31, 2024:

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Accounting profit/(loss) before income tax 1,322.49
Enacted tax rates in India 25.168%
Computed expected tax expenses 332.84
Tax effect
On Exempt Income (61.89)
On Income at Different Rates (115.46)
On Non-Deductible Expenses for Tax Purpose 76.83
Income Tax for Earlier Years (197.92)
Expenses Allowed for Tax Purposes (65.85)
Adjustments arising on Consolidation 90.63
Others (0.94)
At the effective income tax rate (274.60)
Income tax expense reported in Statement of Profit and Loss 58.24

Year ended
March 31, 2024

3,009.80
25.168%
757.51

(78.70)
(58.42)
(32.20)
(150.59)
(0.63)
42.52
(47.74)

(325.77)

431.74
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(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

(c) Components of Deferred Tax charged to Statement of Profit and Loss:
As at
March 31, 2025

Timing difference with respect to Property, Plant and Equipment,

Right of Use Assets, Intangible Assets and Lease Liability 5.55
Expenses allowed on Payment Basis (16.45)
Provision on Loans and Receivables 21.39
Carry Forward of Losses (47.95)
Fair Valuation of Investments (177.52)
Others Differences and Adjustments 11.93
Share of profit of Joint Venture 8.64
(194.41)

(d) Components of Deferred Tax charged to Other Comprehensive Income:
As at
March 31, 2025
Expenses allowed on Payment Basis 2.68
Others (0.02)
Share of profit of Joint Venture (0.02)
2.64

As at
March 31, 2024

47.28
2.61
(12.57)
15.74
116.43
(0.21)
4.90

174.18

As at
March 31, 2024

3.57
(0.24)
0.02

3.35
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(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 54: FAIR VALUES

The management has assessed that fair value of financial instruments approximates their carrying amounts largely due to
the short term maturities of these instruments.

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2025 is as follows:-

Particulars FVIPL Amortised cost Total
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents - 1,275.96 1,275.96
Bank Balances other than above - 1,487.45 1,487.45
Trade & Other Receivables - 424.68 424 .68
Loans - 7.21 7.21
Investments 9,547.37 5,190.29 14,737.66
Other Financial Assets 6.11 297.39 303.50
Total 9,553.48 8,682.98 18,236.46
Financial Liabilities
Trade & Other Payables - 742.33 742.33
Borrowings - 0.43 0.43
Deposits 0.00 0.00 -
Other Financial Liabilities - 346.19 346.19

Total - 1,088.95 1,088.95

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:-

Particulars FVIPL Amortised cost Total
Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents - 842.31 842.31
Bank Balances other than above - 1,393.30 1,393.30
Trade & Other Receivables - 421.10 421.10
Loans - 7.17 7.17
Investments 9,531.54 7,894.92 17,426.46
Other Financial Assets 5.93 308.68 314.61
Total 9,537.47 10,867.48 20,404.95
Financial Liabilities

Trade & Other Payables - 723.20 723.20
Borrowings - - -
Deposits 0.00 0.00 -
Other Financial Liabilities - 84.85 84.85

Total - 808.05 808.05

Fairvalue of Trade and Other Receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents,
other financial assets, trade and Other Payables, and Other Financial Liabilities approximate their carryingamounts largely
due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
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(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 54: FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)
Fair Value Hierarchy :
The following table provides the Fair Value Measurement Hierarchy of the Company’s Assets and Liabilities.

Fairvalue measurement using

Particulars Total QuotedPrices Significant Significant
in Active Observable Unobservable
Markets Inputs Inputs

Financial Assets

Assets Measured at Fair Value:
Investments in [Note 9]

Equity Instruments 2,351.97 2,351.97 - -
Mutual Funds 4,221.08 4,221.08 - -
Investment through Wealth / Portfolio

Management Services 1,963.04 1,765.61 197.43 -
Gold ETF 656.71 656.71 - -
Market Lined Debentures 250.00 - 250.00 -
Investment in Alternate Investment Funds 104.57 - 104.57 -

Assets for which Fair Values are disclosed:
Investment property [Note 14] 4,169.52 - - 4,169.52

Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2024:

Fairvalue measurement using

Particulars Total QuotedPrices Significant Significant
in Active Observable Unobservable
Markets Inputs Inputs

Financial Assets

Assets Measured at Fair Value:
Investments in [Note 9]

Equity Instruments 1,967.58 1,967.58 - -
Mutual Funds 5,775.70 5,721.03 54.67 -
Investment through Wealth / Portfolio
Management Services 1,371.83 1,187.57 184.26 -
Gold ETF 363.90 363.90 - -
Investment in Alternate Investment Funds 52.53 - 52.53 -
Assets for which Fair Values are disclosed:
Investment property [Note 14] 2,581.86 - - 2,581.86

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the Fair Values:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or
most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique. “Mutual Fund Units are measured based on their published net
asset value (NAV)”, taking into account redemption and/or other restrictions. Equity instruments are in listed entities are initially
recognised at transaction price and re-measured and valued on a case-by-case at price quoted as per stock exchanges and classified
as Level 1.

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 and Level 3 during the periods for March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.
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(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)
NOTE 55: CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Group and its Joint Venture maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business.
The primary objective of the Group and its Joint Venture’s capital management is to ensure that the Group and its
Joint Venture complies with externally imposed capital requirements and maintains healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and to maximise shareholders' value. The Group and its Joint Venture manages their capital structure
and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities.
No changes have been made to the objective and processes from the previous years. However, they are under constant
review by the Board of Directors of the respective companies in the Group and its Joint Venture.

NOTE 56: EARNINGS PER SHARE

"Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders of
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares, if any that
would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. The Company has
no dilutive potential equity shares outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date.

(in ¥ Million, except EPS)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Net Profit After Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (A) 1,269.19 2,720.63
(Attributable to owners of the Holding Company)
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares for Calculating EPS (B) 33,15,584 33,15,584
Basic & Diluted Earnings per Equity Share (in )
(Par value of ¥ 100/- per share) (A)/ (B) 3 382.80 T 820.56
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NOTE 57: RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

a) Names of Related Parties and description of relationship :

Relationship
1. JointVenture

2. KeyManagement Personnel

3. Independent Directors

4. Non Executive Directors

5. Relatives of Key Management
Personnel (KMP) &
Non - Executive Directors

6. Common Control Enterprises
(includes Enterprise over
which KMP has control)

Names of related parties
Bengal Peerless Housing Development Co. Ltd

Mr. Jayanta Roy, Managing Director

Mr. A. K. Mukhuty — Whole Time Director & Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Supriyo Sinha, Wholetime Director

Mrs. Udita Dutta, Company Secretary (upto on January 31, 2024 and from
August 01, 2024

Mrs. Bhawna Gupta, Company Secretary (from February 01, 2024 up to July
31,2024)

Mr. Deepak Kumar Mukerjee (up to September 11, 2024)
Mr. Dipankar Chatterji (from July 31, 2023)

Mr. Soumendra Mohan Basu

Mr. Sumit Bose

Mr. Partha Sarathi Bhattacharyya, Non- Executive Chairman
Mr. Dipankar Chatterji (up to July 30, 2023)

Dr. Sujit Karpurkayastha

Mr. Deepak Kumar Mukerjee (from September 12, 2024)

Mrs. Shikha Roy - Relative of Managing Director
Mrs. Debasree Roy - Relative of Managing Director

Kaizen Leisure & Holidays Limited

Kaizen Hotels & Resorts Limited

Bichitra Holdings Private Limited

Shikha Holdings Private Limited

B. K. Roy Foundation

Peerless Golden Jubilee Charitable Trust (from April 01, 2024)

Peerless Superannuation Scheme (from April 01, 2024)

The Peerless General Finance & Investment Co. Ltd. Group Gratuity Fund
(from April 01, 2024)

Peerless Sports Club (from April 01, 2024)

209



THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

q.\_.l"'r

G8°2¢1 |0L'L8 6981 [SA2! - - 00°€0T | 00°IL SL0 - 190 (Y44 [ejo]
G8'2¢1 | 0L'L8 6981 7yl - - 00°€0T | 00°TL SL0 - 160 602 asuadxg 0} AYIQerT /SaHIIQRIT JAY1Q
fnnqery
6L'¥59 |EL'S8S | - - - - - - - - 6L'¥99 | €L'G8S [ejo0]
6L'%59 | €L'G8S - - - - - - - - 6L'%59 | €L'98S Aynbg - saleyg
SJuauIISanu|
1892 | 9¥'81 - - - - - - 20 VLS 629 | EL'ST Iejo]
$5°0 ¥8'¢ - - - - - - 250 17X 200 010 a[qenladay 12430
L292 2991 - - - - - - - - 1292 29°ST 2]qeIaN023Y 2dURAPY
sjassy
€9'¥8 | L0°92 - - - - - - - I2€T | €998 | 98°Cl 1ejo]
728°G1 - - - - - - - - - 78°G1 - sysoda( jo juawheday
- 160 - - - - - - - - - 160 punjay 1soda( Ajindag
90°0 900 - - - - - - - - 900 900 pred yisodoq Aj1ndag
1649 [0221 - - - - - - - - 1649 | 0221 Pa1an0day 2ouRApY
- bLT - - - - - - - R4 - - punj Ajnjeio) woxy paniaday
- Ly0T - - - - - - - LY 0T - - pung uonenuueladng 0} UOHNQLIUO)
€80 - - - - - - - - - £8°0 - josse Jo uopisinboe 10j uanlb adueApy
. 800 . . . . - - - - - 800 j1assy Jo uonisinbay
suonjoesuel]
81°631 | 6816 - - - - - - 1€°9 0L°0T | L8'TZ1 | 6118 1ejo],
6€°LTT | 888L - - - - - - - - 6E'LTT | 88'8L auwoduf puapialq
9V €e’s ; ; ; : : - (44 867 p10 pe0 sabelanag pue poog ‘wooy
660 LS2 - - - - - - 250 181 Ly 0 SL0 awoou] JayjQ pue saaq a0lalag
P9 ers - - - - - - 99T 06°¢ 887 [ juay
awodu|
91'8G8 |IC¥9L | €V'CE | 19'C€ | 6L'CST | S8'L8T | 28'8%C | 81°00€ | 69'33€ |86°0¥C | ¥V’ 652 Iejol
I€T21 | €688 1681 €eLT - - 00°€0T | 00°TL - - - - UOISSIWwWO Y
a8 Ly9 Wy 809 8E0 A - - - - - - sea Bunyg
9929 89'GLI - - 119 €e'8 $5°99 ey | - - - - #© sijouag 2afojdwg wid] }0yg -uoyelaunWay
6V'S19 | vLESy | - - 0€9y¢ | €T'6LT | 8268 €679 16'6L5 | 69602 | - ; Pred puaplalq
89'6 026 89'6 026 ; ; : ; : : : : sasuadxg [euolssajoid 3 [eba]
LE'TE LS91 - - - - - - £6'62 86°€1 'l 652 sasuadxy 12430
a8'c1 (A7 - - - - - - a8'c1 (AR - - sasuadxy uoneuoq pue ¥s9
sasuadxy

VCRNTE [GCTRNTE | VERRNIE | GCRRINTIE | P RRNTIE | SETENTE | YOTRNIE | SCRRINTE | PERRNIE  |SEIBNIE | PGTRINIE | SCIRINTIE

s1032211(] [ouuosiag
[eloL AAIMOIAX2-UON Juawadeue)y [ouuosiag sasudiajuy
/iuapuadapuj fiay] Jo sanpe[oy yuowabeuepy iay [01U0)) UOWWO)) amjuay yuiop ste[noieq

(paels @s1MIayjo SSa[un ‘UOI[[I 3 Ul SJUNOWe [fyy)

:saouefeq Buipuelsino pue sapxed paje[ax ym suordesuer] (q

(@QINNILNOD) FYNSOTOSIA ALYVd ALVTAY LS FLON

620% ‘1€ HOYVIN 1V SV / YVIA FHL HOd SINFWALVLS TVIONVNIA dI1vVAITOSNOD FHL OL SALON

210



9"..,_!
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR / AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

Notes:

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Related parties asrequired in terms of Ind AS 24 'Related Party Disclosures' have been identified based on representations
made by key management personnel and information available with the Company. All above transactions are in the
ordinary course of business and on arms'length basis. All outstanding balances are to be settled in cash (except deemed
equity and preferential warrants) and are unsecured (except secured non-convertible debentures issued to related parties

which are disclosed appropriately).
@ Excludes perquisites amounting to ¥ Nil (Previous year ¥ 0.02)

# Includes Remuneration paid to Key Managerial Personnel as defined under Companies Act, 2013

NOTE 58: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS :
i) Defined Contribution Plans:

The Company contributed following amounts to defined contributions plans:

Employer’s Contribution to Provident Fund
Employer’s Contribution to Pension Fund
Employer's Contribution to Gratuity Fund

Employer’s Contribution to Employee's State Insurance Corporation
Contribution to Employees' Deposit Linked Insurance Scheme (EDLI)

Employer’s Contribution to Superannuation Fund

Total

ii) Defined Benefit Plans:

Year ended

March 31, 2025

25.18
2.69
17.56
0.42
0.01
10.47

56.33

Yearended
March 31, 2024

33.74
15.23
12.84
0.58
0.04
8.02

70.45

Obligation in respect of Employee’s Gratuity Fund Scheme managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India is determined
based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise
to additional unit of employee benefit entittement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation:

a) The amounts recognised in Balance Sheet are as follows:

Asset to be recognised in Balance Sheet
Fair Value of Plan Assets

Less: Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation
Amount not recognized due to asset limit

Amount to be recognised

Liability to be recognised in Balance Sheet
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation
Less: Fair Value of Plan Assets

Amount not recognized due to asset limit

Amount to be recognised

Year ended
March 31, 2025

65.78
(59.86)
(0.13)

5.79

Year ended
March 31, 2025

207.83
(153.03)

54.80

Yearended
March 31, 2024

64.35
(57.93)
(0.49)

5.93

Yearended
March 31, 2024

167.82
(144.03)

23.79
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(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 58: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

b) The amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows:

Particulars

Year ended

March 31, 2025

Current Service Cost 16.02
Net Interest (Income)/ Expenses 1.54
Net amount recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 17.56

c) The amounts recognised in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Opening Amount Recognised in OCI outside Profit And Loss Account

Due to Change in Financial Assumptions (5.12)
Due to Change in Demographic Assumptions (2.21)
Due to Experience Adjustments (5.45)
Return on Plan Assets Excluding Amounts Included in Interest Income 5.07
Adjustment to Recognize the Effect of Asset Ceiling -
Total Remeasurements Cost/ (Credit) for the year recognised In OCI (7.71)

Yearended
March 31, 2024

12.71
0.13

12.84

Yearended
March 31, 2024

(4.80)
(6.45)
(5.97)
1.46
1.60

(14.16)

d) The changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation representing reconciliation of opening and

closing balances thereof are as follows:

Particulars

Balance of The Present Value of

Defined Benefit Obligation as at the beginning of the year 225.74
Add: On account of Business Combination 11.27
Interest Expenses 14.62
Current Service Cost 16.02
Acquisitions (Credit) / Cost 8.12
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss Due to Change in Financial Assumptions 5.54
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss Due to Change in Experience Adjustments 7.53
Benefits Paid (21.69)
Liabilities Assumed/ (Settled) 0.55
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 267.70
e) Net Interest (Income)/ Expenses
Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2025
Interest (Income)/ Expense — Obligation 14.62
Interest (Income)/ Expense — Plan assets (13.08)
Net Interest (Income)/ Expense for the year 1.54

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

210.19

12.99
12.71

6.04
1191
(27.42)
(0.67)

225.74

Year ended
March 31, 2024

12.99
(12.97)

0.02
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NOTE 58: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

f) Changes in the fairvalue of plan assets representing reconciliation of opening and closing balances thereof

are as follows:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Fair Value of Plan Assets at beginning of the year 208.38 204.25
InterestIncome 13.08 12.97
Return on Plan Assets (excl. interest income) 535 1.52
Contribution by Employer 13.53 17.08
Benefits Paid (19.22) (27.42)
Assets Settled (2.30) -
Fair value of plan assets at end of the year 218.82 208.38

h) Plan assets are administered by LIC and 100% of the plan assets are invested in lower risk assets, primarily in debt
securities.

i) Principal actuarial assumptions used in accounting for the gratuity plan are set out as below:
Actuarial Assumptions pertaining to valuation of benefits of Companies in the Group:

1. Discountrate: 6.55% to 6.72% [Previous Year: 7.18% - 7.35%]
2. Salary growth rate : 7.00% to 8.00% [Previous Year: 5.00% to 10.00%]
3. Weighted average duration to the payment of the cash flows- 1.10 - 7.00 Years [Previous Year: 4.63 - 5.00 Years]

Common Actuarial Assumptions pertaining to valuation of benefits of Companies in the Group:
1. Mortality Rate: IALM (2012-14) [Previous Year: [ALM (2012-14)]

The Company evaluates these assumptions annually based on its long-term plans of growth and industry standards. The
discountrates are based on current market yields on government bonds consistent with the currency and estimated term of
the post employment benefits obligations. Plan assets are administered by the LIC and invested in lower risk assets, primarily
debt securities. The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on the expected average long term rate of return on
investments of the fund during the terms of the obligation.

NOTE 59: INCOME TAX MATTERS
Income Tax

The Parent Company/ Income Tax Department have gone into appeals for certain years and the assessments are pending
foradjudication at various stages. The Department has adjusted certain income tax demands against the refunds for various
years. The Parent Company has got certain orders in its favour, however appeal effect orders are yet to be received from
the Department.

The Parent Company has made sufficient provision in the books in respect of pending income tax assessments on the basis
of accounting policies and on the basis of legal opinions from the professionals received by the management and as such
no further adjustment in respect is considered necessary. Therefore, liabilities for interest, penalty etc., if any, are not
determined and accounted for in the accounts.

Liabilities for taxation, interest, penalty etc. on account of adjustment made/ to be made on reviewal, settlements etc. or
otherwise are provided/ made on reviewal thereof or otherwise as and when these are finally ascertained.
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NOTE 60: CONTINGENT LIABILITY AND CAPITAL COMMITMENT :

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025  March 31,2024

60.1. Contingent Liability

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
(to the extent ascertained from the available records)

i) ESIMatters (subpubic) 244.73 245.09
ii) OtherMatters (including those pending before consumer forums) 5.19 3.28
iii) Compensation claimed by customers/ other parties,

which are sub-judice (Refer note 60.1.b) 11944 148.36
iv) Claims pertaining to employee related matters pending before judicial authorities 0.58 0.58
v) Service Tax and Goods and Services Tax related Matters 57.31 43.60
vi) Compensation claimed by employees, which are sub-judice 2.55 2.55
vii) Municipal Tax related Matter 21.88 21.88
viii) Professional Tax related Matter 2.00 2.00
ix) Income Tax Matters 14.22 16.49
x) Custom Duty Matters 11540 115.40

Note: a) The amounts shown above represent the best possible estimates based on the available information. The
uncertainties and timing of the cash flows are dependent on the outcome of different legal processes which have not been
invoked by the Company or the claimants, as the case may be. The Company does not expect any reimbursement in respect
of the above contingent liabilities.

b) Compensation claimed by customers are insured and incidence of claim there off, if any, arising in this respect as such,
is covered to the extent of ¥ 17.21 accepted by the Insurer. Balance amount of ¥ 99.11 have been applied and are
pendingapproval.

¢) Union ofIndiafiled SLP in the Supreme Courtin 2016 against the proceeding of Hon'ble High Court to transfer the writ
Petition from Calcutta High Court to Supreme Court which was declined with the direction for expeditious hearingand
its disposal in respective High Court.

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
60.2. Commitment -

a) Capital Commitment

- Investment Property (not provided for, net of advances) 2.29 431
- Other Capital ltems* 1,607.69 1,796.16
b) Other Commitment 2,877.15 3,003.06

4,487.13 4,803.53

*excludingadvance of % 0.74 (Previous Year: % 0.74) paid to Greater Hyderabad Municipal Corporation (GHMC)
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NOTE 62: OTHER REGULATORY MATTERS

(a)

(b)

The Parent Company was legally advised that the provisions of section 205C of the Companies Act, 1956 (Section 125
ofthe Companies Act, 2013) in respect of subscription amounts collected from the Certificate-holders are not applicable
to it and accordingly, the Parent Company had filed a writ petition before the Hon’ble High Court of Calcutta.

In accordance with the directions received from Reserve Bank of India (RBI) vide letter dated 31st October 2014, read
with letter dated 03rd February 2015, the Parent Company was required to open an Escrow Account and investments
to the extent of Liability towards Depositors as at 31st December 2014 needed to be linked to such escrow account so
that any proceeds thereof including coupon payment received are credited only to Escrow Account. The Parent Company
has complied with the directive of Reserve Bank of India immediately and has utilised the balance in the Escrow account
in the manner directed by Reserve Bank of India.

In reply to an application made by the Parent Company for conversion of NBFC category, the Reserve Bank of India
(RBI) had directed the Parent Company in 2018-19 to initiate transfer of unclaimed deposits lying outstanding for 7 years
ormore from the respective dates of maturity to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF), pursuant to Section
125 of the Companies Act, 2013. As a matter of prudence and after obtaining relevant legal advice, the Board of
Directors of the Parent Company, on March 11, 2019, resolved to transfer the amount lying in the Escrow Account to
the IEPF, representing unclaimed deposits lying outstanding for 7 years or more. Accordingly, the Parent Company made
an application in the writ petition pending before the Hon’ble High Court of Calcutta for transfer of unclaimed deposits
lying outstanding for 7 years or more to IEPF.

The Parent Company has transferred an amount of ¥ Nil (Previous year ¥ 0.01 million) to the IEPF Authority during
the year. Thisamount transferred represents the total amount of matured deposits (including interest accrued thereon
till respective dates of maturity), which were lying unclaimed for a period of 7 years or more from their respective dates
of maturity. (Refer note no. 25).

The Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) Authority vide its letter dated June 24, 2019 has directed the Parent
Company for depositingwith IEPF, the interest earned by the Parent Company on Escrow Accountamountingto ¥ 5,049
million. In addition to this, the IEPF Authority has sought certain additional details/information from the Parent
Company i.e. interest received by the Parent Company on its matured deposits before opening of its escrow account
and other details related to matured deposits. The Parent Company has contested this directive of IEPF w.r.t above
letter dated June 24, 2019 before the Hon’ble High Court at Calcutta by way of amendment to the writ petition filed
earlier.

The Single Bench of the Hon'ble Calcutta High Court had delivered ajudgement on June 26, 2023 (the Order) against
which the Parent Company has obtained a stay on the operation of the Order consequent to an appeal filed before the
Division Bench of the Hon'ble Calcutta High Court which is pending for final disposal as on this date. As advised legally,
the Parent Company had transferred all the amounts to IEPF as required in terms of the provisions of Companies Act,
2013 in compliance of the directions received from RBl and therefore any further claim as dealt with in (d) above requiring
any provision or adjustment in the accounts as such is legally not tenable against the Parent Company.
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NOTE 63: LEASES
A.As alessee:
i) The changes in the carrying values of right-of-use asset are given in note no. 19.

ii) Setoutbelow are the carryingamounts of lease labilities and the movement during the year ended March 31, 2025 and
March 31, 2024:

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

As at beginning of the year 53.13 52.54
Addition during the year 0.38 10.80
Interest on Lease Liability 1.21 5.18
Reduction due to Modification/ Cancellation of Leases (41.19) -
Repayments (1.60) (15.39)
As at end of the year (refer note 26) 11.93 53.13

iii) Thefollowingamounts are recognized in the Statement of Profitand Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March
31, 2024:

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Depreciation Expenses on Right-Of-Use Asset 2.78 3.80
Interest on Lease Liability 1.21 518
Expense Relating to Short-Term Leases (included In Other Expenses as Rent) 90.95 75.70
94.94 84.68

iv) The Company had total cash outflows for leases of ¥ 1.60 (Previous Year - ¥ 15.39 [including interest]).

v) The Company has entered into various contracts for leasing of different properties for business purposes. Right of Use
Asset has not been created on the leases with lease term lower than 12 months or if the lease rentals are of low value

nature.
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within one year 13.34 2.72
After one year but not more than 5 years 28.62 11.17
More than 5 years 1.67 84.40
43.64 98.28

B. As a Lessor

The Group has given office premises under operating lease. The income from operating lease recognised in the Statement
of Profitand Loss are ¥ 29.57 (Previous year: ¥ 39.96). Agreements provide for cancellation by either party or contain clause
for escalation and renewal of agreements. The non-cancellable operating lease agreement assessed by the Company is for
various periods.
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Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases on undiscounted basis as at reporting date are as
follows:

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Within one year 8.39 25.46
After one year but not more than 5 years 20.12 4141
More than 5 years - 101.23
28.51 168.10

NOTE 64: ADDITIONAL REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
64.1 Relationship with Struck off companies

The Group and its Joint Venture have not entered into any transaction with Companies struck off u/s 248 of the
Companies Act, 2013 during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

64.2 Registration of Charges or Satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)
There is no Charge or satisfaction thereof yet to be registered with ROC beyond the Statutory period.

In the step-down subsidiary "Ayursundra Hospitals (Guwahati) Private Limited", no funds have been borrowed from
any lender during the year and all previous loans has been repaid and charges has been paid except the following for
which borrowings have been paid but charges are not updated on MCA portal:-

a) India Infoline Finance Limited - ¥ 33.50
b) SREI Equipment Finance Limited - ¥ 24.80
64.3 Compliance with number of layers of companies

The Group and its Joint Venture have complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2
of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 for the financial years ended March
31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

64.4 Undisclosed Income

There are no transactionsrelating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income
duringthe year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

64.5 Wilful Defaulter

The Group and its Joint Venture have not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
otherlender.

64.6 Benami Property

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Group and its Joint Venture for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.
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64.7 Ultimate Beneficiary

a) TheGroupanditsJointVenture have notadvanced orloaned any funds, nor made any investments (whether from
borrowed funds, share premium, or any other sources) to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether formal or informal, that such Intermediaries shall, in turn, lend
or invest in parties identified by or on behalf of the Group and its Joint Venture (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”).
Additionally, the Group has notreceived any funds from any parties (“Funding Party”) with the understanding that
such funds will be used, directly or indirectly, to lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf
of the Group (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or to provide any guarantee, security, or similar assurance on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) No funds (which are material either individually or in aggregate) have been received by the Group and its Joint
Venture from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Group and its Joint Venture shall, whether directly or indirectly,
lend orinvestin other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

64.8 Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure
The Group and its Joint Venture do not have any unhedged foreign currency exposure.
64.9 Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Group and its Joint Venture have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual currency during the financial

year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

NOTE 65: EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Particulars Year ended Yearended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Reversal of Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment - (98.42)
- (98.42)

During the previous year, considering the improvement in the operations and emerging business projections, etc., fair
valuation of hotel premises at Hyderabad have been undertaken by an independent valuer and impairment to the extent of
% 98.42 provided for thereagainst being no longer required had been reversed and disclosed as "Exceptional [tems".

NOTE 66: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal Financial Liabilities comprise deposit from public and trade payables. The Group’s financial assets
include loan and advances, investments, cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Groupis exposed to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk and Market Risk. The Group’s Management has an overall responsibility
for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework. The Management is responsible for
developing and monitoring the Group’s risk management policies. The Group identifies and analyses the risks faced by the
Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management systems
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group activities.

The Parent Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk
management framework. Risk management involves identifying, measuring, monitoring and managing risks on a regular
basis. To achieve this objective, the parent company employs leading risk management practices and recruits experienced
people.
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1) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counter-party to financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers, investment in debt securities
and loans. The carrying amounts of Financial Assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

a) Loans and Advances

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However,
management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk
associated with the industry. Each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Group’s standard
payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Group’s review includes external ratings, if they are available,
financial statements, credit agency information, industry information etc.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk for loans and advances by type of counterparty is as follows:

Particulars Year ended Yearended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Loan to Employees 0.70 1.53
Loan to Others 154.66 7.07
155.36 8.60

Less: Impairment (148.15) (1.43)
7.21 7.17

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date based on the facts and circumstances existing on that date to
identify expected losses on account of time value of money and credit risk. For the purposes of this analysis, the loan
receivables are categorised into groups based on days past due. Each group is then assessed for impairment using the ECL.
model as per the provisions of Ind AS 109 - financial instruments.

Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

ECL on Financial Assets is an unbiased probability weighted amount based out of possible outcomes after considering risk
of credit loss even if probability is low.

The ECL provision is based on actual credit loss experience over past years. These provisions are then adjusted appropriately
toreflect differences between current and historical economic conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions over
the expected lives of the loan receivables. Movement in provision of expected credit loss has been provided in below note:

Particulars Year ended Yearended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening provision of ECL 143 2.21
Addition during the year 148.02 -
Utilization / Reversal during the year (1.30) (0.78)
Closing provision of ECL 148.15 1.43
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NOTE 66: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Cash and Cash Equivalent, Bank Deposits and Investments

Creditrisk on cash and cash equivalent, bank deposits and investments is limited as the Group and its Joint Venture generally
invest in term deposits with banks, government securities, bonds and debentures, term deposit with other NBFC which are
rated as on the date of investment. Investments carried at amortised cost is considered under credit risk.

2) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group and its Joint Venture will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated
with its financial liabilities. The Group and its Joint Venture's approach in managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have
sufficient funds to meet their liabilities when due. The Group and its Joint Venture are monitoring their liquidity risk by
estimating the future inflows and outflows during the start of the year and plans accordingly the funding requirements.

The composition of the Group and its Joint Venture’s liability mix ensures healthy asset liability maturity pattern and well
diverse resource mix. Capital adequacy ratio of the Group and its Joint Venture, as on March 31 2025 is in excess of the
limit prescribed against regulatory norms of 15%, which may increase from time to time depending on the requirement and
also as a source of structural liquidity to strengthen asset liability maturity pattern.

The Group and its Joint Venture's investment in Mutual Fund and Equity shares of outside companies are liquid in nature.
The utilization level is maintained in such a way that ensures sufficient liquidity on hand. The Group and its Joint Venture
have sufficient liquid assets to pay off its financial liabilities on being due for payment.

The table below summarises the carrying value and contractual cash flows of Group’s financial liabilities :

As at March 31, 2025

Sl.| Particulars Contractual Less than Between More than
No. cashflows 1 year 1 to 5 years S5years

a) | TradePayables 592.20 592.19 0.01 -
b) | OtherPayables 150.13 149.49 0.64 -
c) | Deposits* 0.00 0.00 - -
d) | Lease Liabilities 11.93 2.55 0.21 9.17
e) | Borrowings 0.43 0.43 - -
f) | OtherFinancial Liabilities 334.26 285.08 9.63 39.55

As at March 31, 2024

Sl.| Particulars Contractual Less than Between More than
No. cashflows 1 year 1 to 5 years S5years

a) | TradePayables 503.45 503.45 - -
b) | OtherPayables 219.75 219.75 - -
c) | Deposits* 0.00 0.00 - -
d) | Lease Liabilities 53.13 5.32 11.46 36.35
e) | OtherFinancial Liabilities 31.72 22.69 7.41 1.62

* The amount is below rounding off norms.
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NOTE 66: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk includes interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. The objective of market risk management is
to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

This market s influenced by domestic/ international political, financial and other events occurring on day-to-day basis. Hence
the market is constantly volatile and uncertain. The Group and its Joint Venture have strong treasury philosophies and
practices and is well geared to meet the challenges of volatile market conditions.

3.1 Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Group and its Joint Venture has negligible borrowings. The Group and its Joint Venture 's
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates is negligible as it has not made any investment which carries variable
interestrate.

3.2 Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Group and its Joint Venture engage consultants wherein the payments are made in foreign
currency, the amount not being material has not been hedged. There is no outstanding in foreign currency as on the Balance
Sheet date.

3.3 Other Price Risk:

Other pricerisk is related to the change in market reference price of the investments which are fair valued and exposes the
Group and its Joint Venture to price risks. The carrying amount of financial assets subject to price risk is as below:

Particulars Year ended Yearended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Financial Assets
Investment in Equity Instruments 2,351.97 1,967.58
Investment in Mutual Fund 4.221.08 5,775.70
Investment in Market Linked Debenture 250.00 -
Investment in Gold ETF 656.71 363.90
Investment in Alternate Investment Funds 104.57 52.53
Investment through Portfolio Management Services
and Wealth Management Services 1,963.04 1,371.83
9,547.37 9,531.54

Areasonably possible change of 100 basis points in market prices at the reporting date would have increased/ decreased profit
or loss by amounts shown below:-
100 bpsincrease 100bpsdecrease

As at 31 March 2025

Impact on Profit before Tax 9547 (95.47)

Impact on Equity 71.44 (71.44)
100 bpsincrease 100 bps decrease

As at 31 March 2024

Impact on Profit before Tax 95.32 (95.32)

Impact on Equity 71.33 (71.33)
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3.4 Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk arising from inadequate or failed internal processes, people or systems, or from external events.
The Group manages operational risks through comprehensive internal control systems and procedures laid down around
various key activities in the Group viz. investment acquisition, IT operations, finance function etc. Management evaluates
key areas of operational risks and the process to adequately mitigate them on an ongoing basis.

NOTE 67: DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Revenue from Operations have been dissaggregated and disclosed in note no. 33 to 41.

NOTE 68: SERVICE CONTRACT ENTERED BY ONE OF THE SUBSIDIARY "PEERLESS HOSPITEX
HOSPITAL AND RESEARCH CENTER LIMITED (PHHRCL)

A) PHHRCL, in terms of agreement dated January 29, 2019, renewed on same terms and condition (the agreement),
with Neurosciences Foundation, Bengal, jointly controls the operations of National Neurosciences Centre, Calcutta
(NNC), ajoint project and non-profit making organisation formed and registered under the West Bengal Societies Act,
XXVI of 1961.

In terms of the agreement, NNC has agreed to provide Neurological/ Neurosurgical services under administrative control
of PHHRCL. Reimbursements and recoveries against the costs are adjusted against respective heads of accounts.

Accordingly, % 71.64 (Previous Year: ¥ 37.55), hasbeen included under “Income from Medical and Healthcare Services”.
Reimbursements of various expenses amountingto ¥ 14.00 (Previous Year: % 6.93) have been adjusted against respective
heads of accounts. None of the PHHRCL's assets has been transferred to the joint venture and there is no liability
incurred in this respect.

B) PHHRCL, has entered into an arrangement on July 20, 2015 with Dr. Agarwal’s Healthcare Limited (DAHCL), to
set up an independent eye care unit and the same has become operational with effect from February 01, 2017. Cost
of services rendered and consumables supplied to the eye care unit have been reimbursed at actual. Further, income
of ¥ 6.98 (Previous Year: % 7.26) arising in this respect representing share of revenue, in terms of the said arrangement,
has been disclosed as Income from Eye Hospital under Other Operating Revenue.
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NOTE 69: MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

The table below shows an Analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Within After Within After
ASSETS 12 months 12 months Total 12 months 12 months Total
(1)Financial assets
(@) Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,275.96 - 1,275.96 842.31 - 842.31
(b) Bank Balances other than
Cash and Cash Equivalents 631.03 856.42 1,487.45 199.13 1,194.17 1,393.30
(c) Receivables
(I) Trade Receivables 395.69 - 395.69 308.76 - 308.76
(ii) Other Receivables 28.99 - 28.99 112.34 - 112.34
(d) Loans 7.21 - 7.21 6.44 0.73 7.17
(e) Investments 7,684.51 7,053.15 14,737.66 10,016.62 7,409.84 17,426.46
(f) Other Financial Assets 109.14 194.36 303.50 141.20 17341 314.61
Sub Total 10,132.53 8,103.93 18,236.46 11,626.80 8,778.15 | 20,404.95
(2)Non-Financial assets
(a) Inventories 94.35 881.00 975.35 83.05 472.83 555.88
(b) Current Tax Assets (Net) 1,533.89 - 1,533.89 1,434.16 - 1,434.16
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) - 178.30 178.30 - 1.88 1.88
(d) Investment Property 63.72 - 63.72 151.57 - 151.57
(e) Property, Plant And Equipment 3,134.03 - 3,134.03 2,067.00 - 2,067.00
(f) Capital Work-In-Progress 2,050.16 - 2,050.16 981.54 - 981.54
(g) Intangible Assets Under Development - - - 7.55 - 7.55
(h)  Goodwill on Consolidation 361.55 - 361.55 20.01 - 20.01
(i) Other Intangible Assets 16.53 - 16.53 32.95 - 32.95
() Right Of Use Assets 17.21 - 17.21 12.32 - 12.32
(k)  Investment in Joint Venture 585.74 - 585.74 654.79 - 654.79
()  Other Non-Financial Assets 722.86 19.07 741.93 761.85 8.74 770.59
(m) Assets Held for Sale 83.07 - 83.07 0.16 - 0.16
Sub Total 8,663.11 1,078.37 9,741.48 6,206.95 483.45 6,690.40
TOTAL ASSETS 18,795.64 9,182.30 27,977.94 17,833.75 9,261.60 | 27,095.35
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March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within After Within After
12 months 12 months Total 12 months 12 months Total
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(1)Financial Liabilities
(a) Payables
(I) Trade Payables

(i) Total Outstanding Dues of Micro
Enterprises and Small Enterprises 63.11 - 63.11 42.95 - 42.95

(ii) Total Outstanding Dues of
Creditors other than Micro

Enterprises and Small Enterprises 529.09 - 529.09 460.50 - 460.50
(II) Other Payables

(i) Total Outstanding Dues of Micro

Enterprises and Small Enterprises 5.89 - 589 157 - 157

(ii) Total Outstanding Dues of
Creditors other than Micro

Enterprises and Small Enterprises 144.24 - 144.24 21818 - 218.18
(b) Borrowings 043 - 043
(c) Deposits - - . - N B
(d) Other financial Liabilities 297.02 49.17 346.19 9.03 75.82 84.85
Sub Total 1,039.78 49.17 1,088.95 732.23 75.82 808.05

(2)Non-Financial Liabilities

(a) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 1,646.02 - 1,646.02 1,804.81 - 1,804.81
(b) Provisions 128.67 90.10 218.77 93.29 5790 151.19
() Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) - 259.75 259.75 - 219.18 219.18
(d) OtherNon-Financial Liabilities 159.45 - 159.45 11158 - 11158
Sub Total 1,934.14 349.85 2,283.99 2,009.68 277.08 2,286.76
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,973.92 399.02 3,372.94 2,741.91 352.90 3,094.81
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NOTE 71: RECONCILIATION OF OTHER EQUITY
71.1 In order to give effect to certain rectifications, the balances of assets and liabilities and items of income and expenses
, the Consolidated Financial Statements of the previous years as required under Ind AS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors" have been restated with resultant regrouping and reclassifications as follows:

a) During the previous years, amount of dividend paid by Joint Venture Company even though considered asincome in the
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss was not adjusted against the amount of the investment accounted under Equity
Method of accounting. Further, the proportionate share of Other Comprehensive Income was also not considered as a part
of theamount of investment accounted for as above. The deferred tax on the differential with respect to the carryingamount
of investment as per the books and its corresponding tax base was not recognized.

b) Non-Controlling Interest in respect of the subsidiary companies as considered for the purpose of consolidation financial
statements of the PHHRCL, PHL and PFSL was in variation to the percentage of holding and thereby the figures considered
in respect of these subsidiary companies in the Consolidated Financial Statements and corresponding minority interest
considered for the purpose of consolidation

c¢) Variations have been noted in the eliminations with respect to inter-group transactions and balances.

d) The impact with respect to the above rectifications and reclassifications, regroupings etc. have been summarized under
notes 71.2 to 71.5 given below:

71.2 Reconciliation for adjustment in other equity as at :-

Particulars Year ended Yearended
March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Balance of Other Equity as published as at 23,758.66 21,793.11
Changes due to Adjustment in/ for
Elimination of Dividend from Joint Venture and Deferred Tax thereon (199.88) (77.69)
Non-Controlling Interest 16.36 12.27
Effects of Inter-Company Elimination (54.46) (5.51)
Closing Balance of Other Equity as at 23,520.68 21,722.18
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NOTE 71.3 RECONCILILATION OF THE BALANCES AS ON MARCH 31, 2023 DUE TO THE REASONS STATED IN NOTE NO. 71.1

Particulars As at Impact of Impact of As at
March31,2023 Regroupings adjustments April 01,2023
Aspublished Restated
(1) Financial assets
(@) Cash and Cash Equivalents 324.24 324.24
(b) Bank Balances Other Than (a) Above 845.49 4499 890.48
(¢) Receivables

(i) Trade Receivables 304.52 (2.09) 302.43
(ii) Other Receivables 39.02 39.02
(d) Loans 729.20 729.20
(e) Investments 17,608.54 (449.87) 17,158.67
(f) Other Financial Assets 461.52 (223.05) 238.47
20,312.53 (630.03) 19,682.50

(2) Non-Financial assets
(a) Inventories 105.18 105.18
(o) Current Tax Assets (net) 119.42 1,370.95 1,490.37
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 86.40 86.40
(d) Investment Property 643.15 (48.07) 595.08
(e) Property, Plant And Equipment 1,426.03 59.10 1,485.13
(f) Capital Work-In-Progress 457.40 0.03 457.43
(@) Right Of Use Asset 26.67 9.93 36.60
(h) Goodwill (On Consolidation) 20.01 20.01
() Other Intangible Assets 11.30 (0.87) 1043
(k) Intangible Assets Under Development 7.55 - 7.55
(i) Investments in Joint Venture Company 620.26 (8.46) 611.80
(m) Other Non-Financial Assets 334.09 (2.23) - 331.86

(n) Assets Held for Sale
3,237.20 1,988.98 11.66 5,237.84
TOTAL ASSETS 23,549.73 1,358.95 11.66 24,920.34
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NOTE 71.3 RECONCILILATION OF THE BALANCES AS ON MARCH 31, 2023 DUE TO THE REASONS STATED
IN NOTE NO. 71.1 (Continued)

Particulars As at Impact of Impact of As at
March 31,2023 Regroupings adjustments March 31,2023
Aspublished Restated
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(1) Financial Liabilities
(a) Payables
() Trade Payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises 30.57 30.57
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 266.81 266.81
(II) Other Payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 83.97 83.97
(b) Borrowings 35.71 35.71
(c) Deposits 0.01 - 0.01
(d) Other financial Liabilities 93.98 25.63 119.62
511.05 25.63 536.68
(2) Non-Financial Liabilities
(@) Current Tax Liabilities (net) 429.52 1,370.95 1,800.47
(b) Provisions 154.57 154.57
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 63.61 - 69.23 132.84
(d) Othernon-financial Liabilities 121.62 (12.00) 109.62
769.32 1,358.95 69.23 2,197.50
(4) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 331.56 - 331.56
(b) Other equity 21,793.11 (70.93) 21,722.18
Equity attributable to the owners
of the Holding Company 22,124.67 (70.93) 22,053.74
Non-controlling interest 144.69 (12.27) 132.42
TOTAL EQUITY 22,269.36 (83.20) 22,186.16
TOTAL LIABILTIES AND EQUITY 23,549.73 1,358.95 11.66 24,920.34
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NOTE 71.4 RECONCILILATION OF THE BALANCES AS ON MARCH 31, 2024 DUE THE TO REASONS STATED IN NOTE NO. 71.1

Particulars As at Impact of Regrouped Impact of As at
March31,2024 Regroupings adjustments | March31,2024
Aspublished Restated
(1) Financial assets
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 839.40 2.90 842.30 0.01 842.31
(b) Bank Balances other than Cash
and Cash Equivalents 1,343.10 50.24 1,393.34 (0.04) 1,393.30
(¢) Receivables
(i) Trade Receivables 357.45 (48.68) 308.77 (0.01) 308.76
(ii) Other Receivables 106.33 599 112.32 0.02 112.34
(d) Loans 7.17 - 7.17 - 7.17
(e) Investments 18,064.81 (637.40) 1742741 (0.95) 17,426.46
(f) Other Financial Assets 478.21 (175.80) 302.41 12.20 314.61
21,196.47 (802.75) 20,393.72 11.23 20,404.95
(2) Non-Financial assets
(a) Inventories 555.88 - 555.88 555.88
(b) Current Tax Assets (Net) 62.47 1,371.69 1,434.16 1,434.16
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 1.88 1.88 - 1.88
(d) Investment Property 197.46 197.46 (45.89) 151.57
(e) Property, Plant And Equipment 2,015.16 2,015.16 51.84 2,067.00
(f) Capital Work-In-Progress 1,007.65 1,007.65 (26.11) 981.54
(g) Intangible Assets Under Development 7.55 7.55 7.55
(h) Goodwillon Consolidation 20.01 20.01 - 20.01
(i) Other Intangible Assets 13.20 13.20 (0.88) 12.32
() Right Of Use Assets 31.82 31.82 1.13 32.95
(k) Investment Measured under
Equity Method - 780.52 780.52 (125.73) 654.79
() Other Non-Financial Assets 757.77 11.11 768.88 1.71 770.59
(m) Assets Held for Sale 0.16 0.16 0.16
4,671.01 2,163.32 6,834.33 (143.93) 6,690.40
TOTAL ASSETS 25,867.48 1,360.57 27,228.05 (132.70) 27,095.35

231



9?.3
“*" THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR / AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

NOTE 71.4 REVISION DETAILS FOR BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024 DUE TO THE REASONS STATED IN NOTE NO. 71.1

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at Impact of Regrouped Impact of As at
March 31,2024 Regroupings adjustments | March31,2024
Aspublished Restated
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(1) Financial Liabilities
(a) Payables
(I) Trade Payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises 42.05 091 42.96 (0.01) 42.95
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 426.40 22.45 448.85 11.65 460.50
(II) Other Payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises 0.84 0.73 1.57 1.57
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 187.88 30.29 218.17 0.01 218.18
(b) Borrowings -
(c) Deposits 00.00 - 0.00
(d) Other financial Liabilities 97.75 (48.74) 49.01 35.84 84.85
754.92 5.64 760.56 47.49 808.05
(2) Non-Financial Liabilities
() Current Tax Liabilities (net) 431.72 1,373.07 1,804.79 0.02 1,804.81
(b) Provisions 159.39 (8.19) 151.20 (0.01) 151.19
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 145.03 145.03 74.15 219.18
(d) Othernon-financial Liabilities 121.54 (9.95) 111.59 (0.01) 111.58
857.68 1,354.93 2,212.61 74.15 2,286.76
(4) Equity
(@) Equity share capital 331.56 331.56 - 331.56
(b) Other equity 23,758.66 23,758.66 (237.98) 23,520.68
Equity attributable to the owners
of the Holding Company 24,090.22 24,090.22 (237.98) 23,852.24
Non-controllinginterest 164.66 164.66 (16.36) 148.30
TOTAL EQUITY 24,254.88 24,254.88 (254.34) 24,000.54
TOTAL LIABILTIES AND EQUITY 25,867.48 1,360.57 27,228.05 (132.70) 27,095.35

232




9).,_.5*
THE PEERLESS GENERAL FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR / AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 71.5 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT ON THE ITEMS OF STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,
2024 DUE TO THE REASONS STATED IN NOTE NO. 71.1

Aspublished Impact of Regrouped Total Impact Restated
Regroupings of adjustments

Revenue from Operations 7,020.42 370.16 7,390.58 (103.83) 7,286.75
Other Income 690.87 (395.00) 295.87 (2.48) 293.39
Expenses 4,692.55 (24.84) 4667.71 1.05 4.668.76
Profit before Exceptional Item, Share of

Profit in Joint Venture And Tax 3,018.74 - 3,018.74 (107.36) 2,911.38
Profit before Share of Profit in Joint Venture And Tax 3,117.16 - 3,117.16 (107.36) 3,009.80
Tax Expenses 426.83 - 426.83 491 431.74
Profit After Tax 2,850.58 2,850.58 (112.26) 2,738.32
Other Comprehensive Income (9.88) - (9.88) (0.83) (10.71)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2,840.70 - 2,840.70 (113.09) 2,727.61

NOTE 71.6 Earnings Per Share for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars As published Restated
Net Profit After Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (A) 2,850.58 2,720.63
(Attributable to owners of the Holding Company)
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares for Calculating EPS (B) 33,15,584 33,15,584
Basic & Diluted Earnings per Equity Share (in ¥)
(Par value of ¥ 100/- per share) (A)/ (B) 859.75 820.56
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR / AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 72: SUMMARY OF BUSINESS COMBINATION AS PER IND AS 103

A. Acquisition of SKM Hospital (2023-24)

During the previous year, the Board of Directors of the one of the Group Company “Peerless Hospitex Hospital and

Research Center Limited (PHHRCL)” at its meeting held on January 19, 2024, approved the acquisition of SKM

Hospital, a 100 bed Multi-Speciality Hospital within the project namely “Kamala Village” located at Mouza: Noapara

PS: Barasat, North 24 Paraganas West Bengal, (hereinafter referred to as “the Undertaking”). The Undertaking was

acquired on a going concern for alumpsum consideration on a slump sale basis vide a Business/ Undertaking Transfer

Agreement dated January 31, 2024 entered between the Company (the Buyer) and M/s Sethi Diagnostic & Medicare

Private Limited (the Seller).

In consideration of acquisition of the Undertaking PHHRCL has made a total payment of ¥ 235 subject to foreclosure

of all loan accounts and release of mortgage of the immovable and moveable assets of the Undertaking.

Aspertherequirements of Ind AS 103 “Business Combinations”, the acquisition has been recognized under ‘Purchase’

method of accounting. Accordingly, all the assets and liabilities (if any) of the Undertaking at the date of conveyance

have been recorded at their fair value based on the valuation report received from a registered valuer.

The difference between the consideration paid and the net identifiable assets acquired has been considered as Goodwill/

(Capital Reserve) as follows:

Particulars Details Amount
Consideration 235.00
Less: Assets taken over
Land 64.81
Building 120.42
Medical Equipment & Surgical Instruments 34.83
Plant & Equipment 8.80
Office Equipment 0.63
Computers & Data Processing Units 0.13
Furniture & Fixtures 3.87
Vehicles 1.35
Stores and Spares 0.32
Total Assets taken over 235.16
Capital Reserve (0.16)

B. Acquisition of Ayursundra Hospitals (Guwahati) Private Limited (2024-25)

The Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) was initiated against the Ayursundra Hospitals (Guwahati)
Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as "AHPL") pursuant to a petition filed by one of its creditors, namely North
Eastern Development Finance Corporation Ltd. (NEDFi) under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“IBC”)
filed before the National Company Law Tribunal, Guwahati Bench, Guwahati. The Resolution Plan submitted by
PHHRCL pursuant to the CIRP proceeding has been approved by NCLT vide its Order dated December 20, 2024
and thereby on depositing the required consideration as specified in the said plan, AHPL became the wholly owned
subsidiary of PHHRCL w.e.f December 20, 2024 as dealt herein below:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR / AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 72: SUMMARY OF BUSINESS COMBINATION AS PER IND AS 103 (CONTINUED)

On December 20, 2024, PHHRCL deposited a sum of ¥ 1,420.00 being the consideration towards the equity share
capital to be utilized for the payment for CIRP costs, employee related dues, amount payable to lenders, financial
and other creditors and erstwhile shareholders of AHPL.

The Board of Directors of the said company was reconstituted on January 16, 2025, and thereby the earlier directors
ceased to be directors and nominees of PHHRCL were appointed.

The pre-CIRP Equity Share Capital of the AHPL has been extinguished and cancelled entirely and 142 crore equity
shares of ¥ 10 each amounting to ¥ 1,420 representing 100% equity share capital of AHPL were allotted to PHHRCL
on March 4, 2025. The fair value of the assets and liabilities as acquired pursuant to the above has been incorporated
in these financial statements as follows:-

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of acquisition date were as under :

Particulars Details Details Amount
Consideration (A) 1,420.00
(1) Assets

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 15.12

(b) Trade Receivables 11.08

(c) Loan 160.16

(d) Inventories 1.11

(e) Land 159.01

(f) Building 59391

(g) Plant and Equipment 92.83

(h) Furniture and Fixtures 0.56

(i) Medical Equipment 101.66

(j) Office Equipment 0.40

(k) Computer 0.11

(1) Vehicles 0.04

(m) Other Non-Financial Assets 13.89

Total Assets (B) 1,149.88
(2) Liabilities

(a) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 61.22

(b) Other Liabilities 10.20

Total Liabilities (C) 71.42

Net Assets of the Company (D=B-C) 1,078.46

Goodwill (A-D) 341.54

% 341 .54 representing the differential with respect to the consideration paid against the assets and liabilities acquired and
the equity share allotted has been recognized as goodwill. Further, allitems of income and expenses including depreciation
and amortisation expenses of AHPL for the period from December 20, 2024 to March 31, 2025 have been considered
in these Consolidated Financial Statements under the respective heads of accounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR / AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

NOTE 73: PREVIOUS YEAR'S FIGURES

Previous Year's figures are not comparable with those of the Current Year's figures due to acquisition of Ayursundra Hospitals
(Guwahati) Private Limited with effect from December 20, 2024.

Slgnature to Notes on Accounts For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Lodha & Co LLP The Peerless General Finance & Investment Company Limited

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 301051E/ E300284 Partha Sarathi Bhattacharyya  Jayanta Roy

Chairman Managing Director
Indranil Chaudhuri DIN: 00329479 DIN: 00022191
Partner Asoke Kumar Mukhuty Udita Dutta
Membership No. 058940 Director Corporate & Company Secretary
Place: Kolkata Chief Financial Officer Membership No. A39589
Date: July 26, 2025 DIN:00173745
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